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II Testimony Attached # 1 - 18 

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on SB2024-SB2084 and explained that 
some may be interested in the Governor's budget (SB 2024) and not excited about former 
Governor Dalrymple's budget (SB 2084). 

Jeanne Prom, Executive Director, North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and 
Control Policy 
Testified in favor of SB 2024/opposition to 2084. 
Testimony# 1 - Jeanne Prom testimony 
Testimony# 2 - BreatheND Major Accomplishments thus far in 2015-17. 

The agency is also known as BreatheND. 

Members of the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Board of Directors in attendance: 
Jay Taylor, Representative George Keiser, Allison Harrington, Becky Anderson, Dr. Eric 
Johnson, Dr. John Warford, Sara Leingang, Hannah Rexine, Pam Crawford and former 
board members Beth Hughes, and Theresa Will. 

(35:28) 
Senator Mathern: The budget - making the grant and making the 10% reduction backs us 
away from the CDC Best Practices suggestion level. What happens if we don't meet the 
CDC Best Practices suggested level of funding? 

Jeanne Prom: If we don't meet the CDC Best Practices, we wouldn't be following the current 
statute. We'd be in violation of the law. 
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Chairman Holmberg: How many other states conform to the CDC's Best Practices as far as • 
the funding they give for this program because I know North Dakota has been a leader. 

Jeanne Prom: There are two states that are at the CDC Best Practice level. We're at the 
top and right behind is Alaska. 

Chairman Holmberg: Asked if anyone wants to testify in favor of SB 2084 which is to zero 
out the funding and move the responsibilities to the Dept. of Health? (Answer - none.) 

Senator Bowman: When we talk about all the money we spent? Do you have the data on 
cigarette tax collections? Does that parallel with the amount of money - or the more your 
agency spends, the less people buy so our cigarette tax revenue is going down? You should 
be some correlation somewhere if it's working. I'd like to see that since 1995 or whenever 
the data has been recorded . 

Jeanne Prom: It's collected and reported monthly by the Office of Management and Budget 
and collected by the tax department. A major limitation of our use of that for the purposes 
that you outlined is that we can't track if those sales go to ND residents. We are making the 
presumption that we have a lot of people who are not North Dakota residents buying tobacco 
here because they've been here for extended periods of time. 

Chairman Holmberg: The cigarette shops in Grand Forks and I'm sure in Fargo, had a huge 
spike in sales after MN raised their cigarette tax because it's a lot cheaper to drive across • 
the river. 

(40:39) John Warford, Tobacco Control and Prevention Advisory Board member and 
Former Bismarck City Mayor. 
Testified in favor of SB 2024. Testimony Attached# 3 

(45:40) Jay Taylor, retired Respiratory Therapist & Board member 
Read testimony in favor of SB 2024 from: 
Marvin Lein, CEO, Mid Dakota Clinic, PC, Bismarck, ND - Testimony Attached# 4. 

Dr. Eric Johnson, Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee member -
Testimony Attached# 5. 

(50:33) Dr. James Hughes, Retired Pulmonary physician, Heart & Lung Clinic, 
Bismarck, ND Testified in favor of SB 2024. Testimony Attached# 6 

(58: 10) Senator Bowman: We just passed the marijuana bill. What's the difference between 
marijuana smoke and cigarette smoke? 

Dr. Hughes: The first drug to be studied as a gateway drug for tobacco was marijuana. It 
turned out that the usual course of events was smoking followed by alcohol followed by 
marijuana. In states that have passed comprehensive access to marijuana legally or de­
criminalized it, the occurrence of opioid overdose has dropped dramatically and the cost of 
the amount of money spent on pharmaceuticals to manage chronic pain has dropped 
dramatically. On one hand, nicotine is responsible for incredible damage around the world, 
and when you think about the number of people that have died from ... .. the rate of death from 
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heroin is approaching the rate of deaths from car accidents. Most people who use heroin 
would not be using heroin if they had not been smoking as an immature brain before they 
were exposed to the heroin. We need, with tobacco, a societal change from prospective and 
acceptance of what's normal behavior. Is a cigarette in the hand of a general contributing to 
his performance? I have a patient who died extemanating from lung cancer. So I was 
reduced to holding a basin in front of him and instructing the nurse for a dose of narcotic to 
relieve them of their problem as they were bleeding out into the basin. As I spoke to his wife 
after that, she was smoking. She had chronic lung disease. I asked, "what does it take to 
encourage you not to smoke?" She said "Doc, I need this." We learned that hundreds of 
thousands of times, that they can relieve anxiety, usually the anxiety of nicotine withdrawal 
by using it. 

The addictions to narcotics around the world has been changing. The criminalization of 
narcotics has now resulted in control as needed. The tenacity of addiction is absolutely 
typical. Someone who has been heroin has gone thru 4-6 treatment programs. The time to 
address is before they are exposed to heroin. And if they are exposed to heroin, please have 
them not be on nicotine beforehand. 

I see BreatheND as being tremendously legitimate, hardworking, a model that could serve 
as a mentor for the rest of the health department on dealing with the opioid business. They 
should continue their work with tobacco. It is making a huge difference in the cost going 
forward. The cost of treating lung cancer is going up exponentially because of the cost of 
the drugs that are used and the limited benefit they give. 

(1 :03:15) Elizabeth Bonney, Tobacco Prevention Coordinator, Lake Region District 
Health Unit, Devils Lake, ND - Read a testimony from Pam Crawford, Tobacco Prevention 
and Control Advisory Executive Committee member- Testimony Attached# 7. Testimony 
in favor of SB 2024 and opposed to SB 2084. 

(1 :05:50) Theresa Will, RN/Administrator, City-County Health District, Valley City, ND 
Testified in favor of SB 2024. Testimony Attached# 8 

(1 :08:18) Heather Austin, Executive Director, Tobacco Free North Dakota 
Testified in favor of SB 2024. Testimony Attached# 9 

(1 :12:52) Sommer Wilmeth, Senior, Century High School, member of SADD 
Testified in favor of SB 2024. Testimony Attached# 10 

(1 :15:20) Becky Anderson, Respiratory Therapist, Fargo, North Dakota 
Testified in favor of SB 2024. Testimony Attached# 11 

(1 :20:05) Allison Harrington, Practicing Respiratory Therapist, Bismarck, ND 
Testified in favor of SB 2024. Testimony Attached# 12 

(1 :22:46) Kristie Wolff, Program Manager, Tobacco Prevention and Advocacy, 
American Lung Association. Testified in favor of SB 2024. Testimony Attached# 13 
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(1 :25:04) Reba Mathern-Jacobson, Director for Tobacco Programs, American Lung 
Association. Testified in favor of SB 2024. Testimony Attached# 14 

Subcommittee: Senators Kilzer, G. Lee and Mathern. 

Senator Dever: Said that no members of the State Senate are presently smoking. 

Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on SB 2024/2084. 

Additional testimony submitted later -

Mara Ybarra, Health Community Coalition, United Tribes Technical College, Bismarck, North 
Dakota - Testimony in favor of SB 2024. Testimony Attached# 15 

Susan Kahler, Tobacco Prevention and Control Coordinator, Bismarck Burleigh Public Health 
Unit - Testimony in favor of SB 2024/SB 2084. Testimony Attached # 16 

Deb Knuth, Government Relations Director, North Dakota American Cancer Society Cancer 
Action Network. Testimony in favor of SB 2024/SB 2084. Testimony Attached# 17 

Javayne Oyloe, Executive Officer, Upper Missouri District Health Unit 
Testimony in favor of SB 2024. Testimony Attached# 18. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resoluti~ :a 
To provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco control 
advisory committee. 

Minutes: 

Legislative Council: Sheila Sandness 
OMB: Lori Laschkewitsch 

II Testimony Attached # 1 . 

Senator Kilzer: Called the sub-committee to order on SB 2024. Senators Lee and Mathern 
were also present. (Asked Jeanne Prom to come and explain what is in the bill.) You did hear 
what the health dept. had to say about this topic. What if this bill were to pass is my question? 
We're all neutral and we have no pre-conceived notions. 

Jeanne Prom, Executive Director, Breathe ND, North Dakota Center for Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Policy: I assume you need me to address if SB 2024 would be a 
budget of zero. I first want to address what we know happens in states where they have gone 
from a more comprehensive level of funding to a drastic cut, which is what we would see. 
There is a reduction in progress, but not only a great slowdown in progress, we have been 
seeing a reduction of youth smoking of 8% over an average of each year that the 
comprehensive program has been in place. Before that it was a 4% reduction per year. We 
would see that not only slow down but possibly even go back up. The progress would stall 
and there would be erosion of progress already made. (Gave an example of the smoke free 
centers and the smoke free law that was passed in 2012, and there are challenges to that all 
the time that require the department to still be around .) There could be changes. We would 
see reductions in youth tobacco move slow if not go up. We would be in grave danger of 
losing the progress that we already made in our policy areas. 

(4:02) Senator Kilzer: One of the alternatives to shutting you folks down is for the State 
Department of Health to assume these duties. It seems like the focus nowadays in the anti­
smoking effort is to increase the tobacco tax and secondly to attack e-cigarettes. Do you 
think you are better to handle those two functions than the state Department of Health? 
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Jeanne Prom: I believe that tobacco use, being the leading cause of preventable disease • 
and death in our state, deserves an1 agency with that as its only focus. The health 
department has all of health under its umbrella and we need them to focus on other areas, 
but we believe that we are perfectly suited to keep our single focused agency focusing just 
on raising that tobacco tax. We were very involved in public education and advocacy for 
raising the tobacco tax. We can't be involved in worktime on initiated measures, but we can 
be involved with doing a lot of education on that without saying to vote yes or no. We were 
doing that education before the initiated measure. We continue to do that education and 
advocacy on tobacco tax. We believe that is vital to our mission. With e-cigarettes, you 
passed a strong law in 2015 but prior to you even being able to meet in the legislative session, 
we worked with our local grantees and public health units and passed 23 local ordinances at 
the city level that made it illegal for kids under age 18 to buy e-cigarettes because they had 
to be added to the sales law on tobacco. We already had that work in place before the 
legislature was even able to meet. Going back to 2012 and before, we had already started 
putting e-cigarettes and similar devices in our smoke free ordinances because we knew they 
were on the horizon. Our partners are often part of a national organization that knows what 
is going on in other states. They bring that work to bare here in North Dakota and it has been 
invaluable to us in order to stay ahead of the curve on tackling the new and emerging 
products. We were the 3rd state to have a smoke free state law that included e-cigarettes. 
We even included other plant products in the state smoke free law because there was 
anticipation that eventually there may be a more lenient marijuana law. That is why in this 
session there doesn't need to be an amendment to our state law to add marijuana on our 
smoke free law. Our statewide grantee efforts allow us to develop the up to date model 
ordinances and laws that they know of. We are the perfect agency to continue this work. 
We have a proven track record of success that exceeds what was done before. 

Senator Kilzer: I would like to talk about the money now. You are scheduled to get your last 
distribution in April. If you spend at the CDC recommended levels, you will be out of money 
in 7 years, then what? 

Jeanne Prom: That was by design so we would maintain while the sun shines and do it 
sooner rather than later. There is language in the current law that says that any time we 
would not have enough in our trust fund for a comprehensive program, that there would be 
funds transferred over that would have otherwise gone to the water development trust fund. 
There was a continued funding mechanism provided. 

Senator Kilzer: So you have your eye on that fund? 

Jeanne Prom: We actually have our eye on the next two bills right now. We have a bill in 
front of you that has a 0 budget. 

(10:20) Senator Mathern: It appears that a fair amount of success in getting better health 
and fewer deaths relates to advocacy and public policy change and education of citizens. 
What is the difference between the Center doing it and the Department of Health doing it? I 
am thinking that it might be related to the organizational structure. Could you comment on 
that? Is that significant or not? What do you think is going on? Do you need the advisory 
committee? 
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Jeanne Prom: Our governance structure is a separate agency with a single focus that is 
very important. This is the leading cause of preventable disease and death . We have single 
focus. In order to maintain integrity to the science of what we know works, the CDC best 
practices, we are governed by a 9-member advisory committee and by law it has to include 
a medical doctor, a practicing nurse, a respiratory therapist, someone with knowledge about 
how this all works together, a (inaudible) adult on our board and we also have an at large 
member. They all need to have a passion and knowledge about tobacco prevention and 
control, and ultimately they approve a state plan that we must work on and report that 
progress to them quarterly that keeps us on track and keeps us transparent but makes us 
accountable. That makes it very hard to hide any lack of progress because we are small, 
and if we do not meet the goals and objectives, everyone knows that and we need to make 
adjustments. Being a separate agency and not being a member of the Governor's cabinet, 
it insulates us from a change in health officers. They all need to have passion about tobacco 
prevention and control. It's a different industry. Tobacco prevention is political because the 
tobacco industry has paid lobbyists to come here and talk to you. It is a very different public 
health issue than some other diseases where there is an industry pushing a product that is 
addictive, deadly, but legal. It needs insulation from the politics and a separate agency that 
is outside of the Governor's cabinet provides some of that. We need to be true to the science. 
Our 9-member committee provides that integrity. 

(15:05) Senator G. Lee: I think your services need to be commended in the work that you 
have done and how you have done it and the outcomes that you 've shared with us. It shows 
some real progress in that area. We are here to talk about the money, and I have your 
program that was through the Legislative Council. We are just trying to get a feel if the 
committee were to follow the Governor's recommendations, what things would need to be 
continued and what things might be considered overhead in your budget. Maybe it would be 
driven by someone else if that were to happen. We were estimating maybe somewhere in 
the neighborhood of about $3 million of overhead and about $15 million in professional 
services that you were providing in relation to the $18 million budget that you provided . 
Things like salaries could potentially in part go away, the benefits, the lease agreements on 
office space, some of equipment, but then getting down to professional services you were 
providing, I am not sure what they all might be? You have $11 million in grants, are those 
the grants that go to the local public health units? What are other services you provide? 

Jeanne Prom: In grants, that is primarily going to local public health units. We also have 
statewide grants that go to American Lung Association, Tobacco free North Dakota, and 
North Dakota State University. We have a vendor for health communications and we have a 
vendor for our statewide evaluation. Those are the main contract and grants that we have. 

Senator G. Lee: And you contract with some of those for what reason? 

Jeanne Prom: For various reasons. NDSU was the research that you had discussed. The 
e-cigarettes, liquid research and right now they are doing a pilot study with chiropractors and 
seeing the kind of education and policy assistance changes that they would need to ask their 
patients if they use tobacco and then they refer them to North Dakota Quits. We have more 
than one grant with the American Lung Association . We have general policy grants to support 
us in our state plan implementation on tax, smoke free, and other areas like that. 
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Senator G. Lee: Do they become advocates for increasing tax? I think there was some • 
advocacy from the lung association in relation to the tax. 

Jeanne Prom: You are correct. If they had funding, they would continue to do what the 
funder required them to do. If Breath North Dakota is their funder, it is going to be exactly 
what is in the state plan. 

Senator G. Lee: There is another line that has fees, professional services, $4 plus million. 
What is that about? 

Jeanne Prom: That are those two major contracts that are the vendors for evaluation and 
health communications. That is just how OMS wants us to code those. When we issue a 
request for proposals through state procurement for a list of services that we need. In the 
case of evaluation, we are required by law toeEvery 2 years have independent evaluation of 
the entire program. We issue a request for proposals, and we got proposals from various 
companies and they were chosen through a competitive procurement process. They are 
given a contract and that contract is for about $900,000 for more than 4 years. We wourk 
with them and we have be-weekly meetings with the contractor and they conduct surveys. 
They analyze data that already exists. They figure out were the data gaps are and need to 
collect data so they can tell us if our goals and objectives of the state plan are being met. 

Senator G. Lee: Where do the TV ads that we see show up here? 

Jeanne Prom: Those are in the $4 million line. We go through the same process to hire a 
vendor that is an advertising agency that creates and places those ads for us. 

Senator Kilzer: Does that include the $800,000 that you paid to Odney Advertising? 

Jeanne Prom: Anything we would have paid to Odney would be in that line. Are you thinking 
of what the health department had in their budget? They had about $850,000 in their budget 
to Odney. 

Senator Kilzer: Actually we had $2 million that would go to Odney over a biennium. 

Jeanne Prom: I think the $800,000 might have been the document that Arvy had walked you 
through . 

Senator G. Lee: So, the $4 million includes the advertising contract that you have with a 
vendor as well as everything that goes with the production of those ads? 

Jeanne Prom: Everything that is under professional fees and services is: $38,000 for legal 
- the office of Attorney General, $10,000 for an audit- state Auditor's Office, $2.6 million in 
health communications, $1 .2 million in evaluation , $150,000 for tobacco legal consortium, 
and $223,000 in signs for the state smoke free law. It's an ongoing effort with the signs for 
state smoke free law because every month we send out the signs and information packets 
to all the new businesses that register with our Secretary of State. 
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Senator G. Lee: I see your rent expense for your building has gone up a lot? Are you in a 
different space? 

Jeanne Prom: We were looking at moving to get more space. We were sharing office space 
in some cases. Our current location was going to have the rent raised significantly. Although 
it had been very reasonable. We didn't want to invest in remodeling costs for problems that 
we were having. We found new space that they would build to our preferences, but the cost 
was a little higher. We went from $12 to $15 per square foot, but we locked in $15 per sq ft. 
for 5 years. Whereas our lease before was going up a bit every year. 

Senator G. Lee: Do your IT services come from the state? 

Jeanne Prom: Yes. 

Senator Mathern: A lot of the struggle is finding the money to do all that we want to do. Are 
there pieces that the center could fund out of your trust fund's income that maybe you could 
take over that has to be done by the Department of Health now under their budget? Is there 
any room to actually keep the center open the way that it is, but have the center taking on 
more costs? 

Jeanne Prom: Yes. 
See Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund - Testimony Attached# 1. 

We will get our last payment into the trust fund this April. That will be about $12 million. By 
the end of the biennium, we will have the most that we will ever have in the trust fund and 
that will be around $54 to $56 million. Even if the legislature decided to fund everything that 
the Governor suggests to come out of the Prevention and Control Trust Fund, the $17 million 
for Medicaid, the $6.7 million to the Department of Health , some for tobacco or some for 
other programs that have general funds, even if all of that is funded, there would still be 
enough to fund the Breath North Dakota fully funded . I believe that the key to our outcome is 
that we are at the CDC best practice level. The second point I would like to make is that there 
is a piece of our law that should be amended , and that is the requirement that 80% of what 
comes into North Dakota from the annual tobacco settlement payments that go to the 
Department of Heath have to be used for tobacco prevention and control. I believe that 
language could be amended out, which would allow the health department and you to use 
that money for other purposes. It would still remain in the tobacco and prevention and control 
trust fund ; money to keep a comprehensive program funded. So, the money going to the 
Department of Health from the tobacco settlement could be used for other health purposes 
and then we would be funding tobacco prevention and control just from tobacco prevention 
and control trust fund. Then that would allow the health department to use the community 
health trust fund for other things besides tobacco control. Any expense related to what would 
have been funded out of that money, that is tobacco prevention and control could be funded 
by our trust fund. 

Senator Mathern: I was thinking that might be something we should consider as one of the 
variables. I would be glad to work on an amendment to that regard as a way of addressing 
some of the cost issues. 
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Senator Kilzer: There are several other public health issues (listed some) that have suffered 
tremendously in recent years. I am glad that you have come that conclusion. I ask you to 
mull it over as some of us have already. 

Senator Kilzer: Closed the sub-committee discussion on SB 2024. 
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Chairman Kilzer: Called the Subcommittee to order on SB 2024 at 10:00 am in the Harvest 
Room. Let the record show that all subcommittee members were present: Chairman Kilzer, 
Senator Gary Lee, Senator Mathern were present. Lori Laschkewitsch , OMB and Sheila M. 
Sandness, Legislative Council were also present. 

Senator Mathern: I would like to hand out a series of proposals asking that the sub­
committee consider these. The testimony has been quite clear that the success of the 
tobacco efforts has been in place. I think it is important the first sheet is a summary of the 
goals regarding tobacco use. It seems we could build on this rather than putting it in the 
department of health. On the second page is a list of amendments if we adopt, one of the 
things we could do is transferring the funding from the community health trust fund to the 
tobacco prevention and control fund, there is $3 million we could take out of the community 
health trust fund, we could do adjustments on# 1 - 5. What I would suggest that it would 
require some changes in the century code, I would add amend section 54 of the century 
Code to remove the restricting requirement of 80% of the transfers from the Tobacco 
Settlement Trust fund to the Community Health Trust fund and remove the transfer of the 
Water and Development Trust fund to the Tobacco Prevention Control Trust fund when there 
is not adequate money and use that trust fund to do some other things. The other suggestion 
is to repeal chapter 2338. The other suggestions I would have is that we would have the 
tobacco "Breath ND Organization" take up further responsibilities that are already in the 
Department of Health so it would also be responsible for funding those things. That is the $3 
million dollars on the 3rd page of the handout, which is changes to the funding pattern for 
2024. 

Chairman Kilzer: Can you get more specific about the items you would transfer from Health 
Department to the Tobacco Prevention and Control committee? 

Senator Mathern: Yes, those are the items that are done right now by the department of 
health so on the second page item # 1, we would take those things being done now out of 
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the Community Health fund and remove those duties and responsibility for funding to the • 
Tobacco Prevention and Control trust fund . So those things in the amount of $3,200,000. 
could be done by Breathe, ND directly or they might contract with the Department of Health 
to do those things. It would be more a matter of shifting the funding responsibility to the 
Tobacco Trust fund and then giving that agency the authority to work with their partners or 
the Department of Health to figure out who actually does it. It doesn't get into the detail how 
that would be carried out, we would change the funding mechanism so essentially we would 
be spending down on the measure 3 dollars to a great extent, and we would be using those 
resources where before we were using the resources through the Community Health Trust 
fund. That meets 2 purposes, 1 is we are looking for money when we are looking for a way 
to fund the positive things we want to do. The other thing it does is it actually unifies the 
tobacco cessation activities to one entity. It is the entity that has had the strong direction to 
follow the CDC guidelines. We have evidence that we have followed those guidelines and 
had a positive result. This is the proposal I would hope that we could consider. I think it 
addresses the concerns that I have heard, from both Senator Kilzer and Senator Gary Lee 
express about things in our Century Code. I think it does express adding more expenditures 
to the trust fund and doing it all in a more coordinated fashion. (1.12.47) 

Chairman Kilzer: Do you have a specific amendment to offer? 

Senator Mathern: I have reviewed all of these items with Sheila M. Sandness, Legislative 
Council, and we created sheet 2 and 3, which is sort of our process here, to address and 
then if there were agreements Sheila would put it into a format for us to adopt. Sheila, maybe 
you could address that process. 

Sheila M. Sandness, Legislative Council: We have been tracking proposed amendments 
on sheets such as this, and should the sub-committee decide to adopt those amendments 
we prepared the official amendment that you can bring to the full committee. 

Chairman Kilzer: I think Senator Gary Lee also has a proposal or a motion. 

Senator Gary Lee: If Senator Mathern isn't going to move what he has here. 

Senator Mathern: I will move these amendments if you would like to do that in this format. 

Senator Gary Lee: Seconded. 

Chairman Kilzer: Discussion? 

Senator Mathern: I believe these amendments build on the strength of Breathe, ND and on 
the strength of the partnership with the local public health units for Breathe, ND and the 
Department of Health and that they take dollars from the trust fund that we need right now to 
address our budget shortfall, and leave enough money in the trust fund to move to other 
programs that we are considering in the Department of Human Services. I would ask for a • 
yes vote on these amendments 

Chairman Kilzer: We have considered this actually more than this year. It has many 
successes and certainly the numbers prove that the goals of not smoking particularly among 
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young people, has been good. No matter, they are off to a good start on e-cigarettes, 
vaporizing and other modes of getting nicotine in the body. There are some drawbacks. It is 
difficult to deal with 2 and 3 and 4 agencies on this one health issue. In all the budgets you 
will find antismoking. If someone tries to tell me there is no overlap between the health 
Department and the Tobacco Prevention and Control committee that's not true. I have seen 
the patterns of how their money is being spent. I don't say it is being spent badly but I do say 
that there is overlap and differences in attaining the goals. There has been criticism also, of 
the overhead of this organization, salaries are at the highest levels of the classification among 
the 7 classified employees within this organization . There is also a question of terms and the 
interaction between the two agencies. I am concerned about that. The executive branch has 
chosen their budget in 2024 and the Health Department budget in 2004. After long and 
tedious and pretty thorough review of all the facts I support the governor's budget. Both the 
executive and the revised from Burgum. So I am going to vote no on Senator Mathern's 
proposal. I think Senator Lee has an alternative. 

Senator Mathern: In regard to the salary issue, I want to clarify that. I have reviewed all the 
salaries, each and every salary was arrived at by the OMB classification by the experience 
the people had. I believe those are proper. (20.14) We need people at that salary range and 
that success rate. They are all within those guidelines. 

Chairman Kilzer: That is true when you look at it from one angle. When you look at the 
group of people listed in each classification, these employees are in the top 5 out of all the 
hundreds of state employees that are in this classification. 

Senator Gary Lee: I agree with the comments in terms of success of Breathe, ND.and the 
role they played. I agree with both Senator Kilzer: and Senator Mathern and all the 
comments . We went back and forth , where would be the best place to put that in the long 
term. The trust fund eventually will be depleted, so from there on where is the best place for 
these services to potentially continue because there will always be pressure on where will 
the funding come from then. I believe the Health Department will be the long term place 
where this can be carried on and will have the best funding success. I do agree with the 
work Senator Mathern did here, I am not going to support it. I think going forward with the 
Health Department would be the better choice for the long term. 

Chairman Kilzer: Roll call on Senator's Mathern's Amendments. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 1; Nay: 2; Absent: 0. 

Senator Gary Lee: Moved the budget with 2024 with those amendments. So it will have 
potential discussion in the House. 

Senator Mathern: One of the concerns I have of the amendment, is the success of the 
reduction of tobacco use is adequate programing , and thus far I haven't seen that we would 
have adequate programming to zero out this budget. What would be available in 2004 , it 
would not meet the level. I am concerned, even though you noted the efficiencies of bringing 
it together there are also problems with the focus not being as clear as if we zero out this 
agency. The focus of this agency has been clear and successful and without the dollars I 
believe our smoking rates will start to go up instead of going down. 
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(25.26) Senator Gary Lee: Your points are well taken. When we get to 2004, I have a 
financial proposal that will include additional fund ing to the local public health units and the 
overall budget for that Department of Health in terms of tobacco of about $14 million . That is 
about $5 million over what has been proposed by the governors. 

Chairman Kilzer: Are your concerns mainly the money or the personnel? Or some other 
factor to make the figures come out. Which one is the bottleneck. 

Senator Mathern: I think for me it's the professional focus on this problem of tobacco use. It 
is the# 1 driver of health care cost. The best way to impact it is to have an agency to focus 
on that issue. So that's a combination of resources and staff and partnerships. 

Chairman Kilzer: Further discussion? 

Roll call on Senator Gary Lee's motion. 2nd by Senator Kilzer. 

Chairman Kilzer: Senator Lee, please explain the amendment again. 

Senator Gary Lee: The amendment to 2024 that we have a 0 budget that we would have 
the emergency clause to move that forward. 

Chairman Kilzer: Sheila, do we need any notation about the 1 % pay raise or the 5% health 
insurance? 

Sheila M. Sandness, Legislative Council: No, because the funding would be at 0 no need . 

Senator Mathern: I wonder if there are some expenses with this. I am not sure how 
personnel would be addressed. Would there be issues of unemployment. Offices being 
liquidated, if the bill passed. I am wondering if that is an issue there that needs to be 
addressed. We need to have a plan for the next few years. Would there be some expenses? 

Chairman Kilzer: I am sure the present biennium would continue. 

Sheila M. Sandness: Their funding continues through June 3Q1h. 

Chairman Kilzer: Any other obligations beyond that time. 

Sheila M. Sandness: Typically, most is based on appropriation. Agreements would be 
written that way. The attorney general writes that. 

Chairman Kilzer: Call the roll on Senator Gary Lee's amendment. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 2; Nay: 1; Absent: 0. Motion carried . 

Those will be ready Monday. 

• 
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Chairman Kilzer: we will do the full pass when we see the amendment. We will meet next 
Tuesday and see the amendment. The hearing was closed on SB 2024. 
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Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A Subcommittee hearing for Tobacco Prevention 

Minutes: 1.Proposed Amendment# 17.0532.01002 (Mathern) 
2.Proposed Amendment# 17.032.01003 (Lee) 

Chairman Kilzer: Called the subcommittee to order on SB 2024. Subcommittee members 
Senator Gary Lee and Senator Mathern were present. Lori Laschkewitsch, OMS, Sheila M. 
Sandness, Legislative Council were also present. 

Senator Mathern: See Attachment #1 for proposed amendment 17.0532.01002. 
Moved Amendment. 

Senator Gary Lee: Seconded. 

Senator Mathern: Explained the amendment. (2:00-4:59) This is the amendment that I had 
discussed in the prior subcommittee. I would like to propose this to the full appropriation 
committee even if it does not pass the subcommittee. Walked through the 5 strongest 
reasons to continue BreatheND (5:00-9:04). I got all of these things from testimony that came 
before us. I would just highlight those. The reason for this amendment is to keep this agency 
in place and give them more work to do yet and use the resources of the tobacco fund to do 
that work. 

Senator Kilzer: Before I ask questions that I have, I would ask any of you to take a close 
look at the editorial in the Fargo Forum. It is full of inaccuracies. They don't seem to 
understand the difference between the master settlement of 1998 and the subsequent 
settlement in the year 2008. Particularly, in the source of funds for the tobacco prevention 
and control committee. Take that with a grain of salt because there are inaccuracies 
throughout that editorial. First, in your amendments, you added 1 FTE and you tell us that 
FTE would be a health communications coordinator. Could you describe what that person's 
job description would be? 

Senator Mathern: I don't have that information with me. I saw the job description as a way 
to further coordinate that kind of activity. It is a way to make sure that we are not just talking 
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about decreasing smoking, but we are also talking about increasing the quality of health for • 
our citizens. It is going the next level in making a difference in North Dakota. 

Senator Kilzer: You increased funding for grants by $1 .26 million. Does that money come 
out of the trust fund? 

Senator Mathern: Yes, that would come out of the trust fund and would be put together to 
follow the best practices of CDC, in terms of comprehensive tobacco control program. It 
comes from the trust fund and only moves forward what is recommended as best practices. 

Senator Kilzer: Is there one area that we are short that we need that money? Which of the 
5 divisions would you be putting that money in? 

Senator Mathern: This doesn't limit it to any specific division. That would be up to that 
department. Each time there is a change in population and what is viewed in the country as 
to what is working, there is a best practice update. This would help us make sure we are on 
top of the game. This amount of money would in fact do that. · 

Senator Kilzer: does the best practices of CDC vary from one year to the next depending 
on that situation? As far as I know they are more dependent on the demographics and the 
population rather than the perceived things that you are eluding to. 

Senator Mathern: I think the population and those kinds of changes are very important, but 
I am saying that the CDC continues to do research and part of the research of this agency 
that is also funded here brings new information and new insight. We can use that new insight 
to get better yet. This agency was just noted by the national agency as being one of the top 
agencies in the country. They measure these agencies and the outcome and that impacts 
the recommendations as to good programming. 

Senator Kilzer: You are asking for added funding of $3.2 million for a cessation program. 
Are you anticipating that supplements the health department? They are the ones that have 
been working with treatment and cessation more so than the tobacco prevention and control 
committee. How would that fit in? 

Senator Mathern: This would put all that activity into this agency. I wouldn't see that the 
department of health would need to continue what it is doing in terms of that specific 
cessation program. This would take the pressure off the Department of Health. There are 
other programs that could be funded by the Department of Health if we relieve them of this 
programming responsibility. We would move this responsibility to the center and the $3.2 
million would not have to be spent by DOH. 

Senator Kilzer: Would you close down the tobacco portion of the Health Department? 

Senator Mathern: I would leave that up to the department, but I would say that we have 
moved the primary responsibility to this agency. I would thing the Department of Health, in 
light of the pressure on its budget, would probably discontinue that service. 
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Senator Gary Lee: So the $21.5 million that you are using here would come out of the 
tobacco trust fund? 

Senator Mathern: Yes. 

Senator Gary Lee: The Governor's proposal was to take $24 million from the trust fund for 
the purposes that they had designated, so that is about $45 million from the trust fund if we 
did not find another source for those other dollars. I think that the estimated ending fund 
balance that we are starting with, at the end of this biennium, is $56 million. Then $11 million 
is left over. So you are suggesting one more year of BreatheND. 

Senator Mathern: I am not suggesting 1 year for BreatheND. As we have not taken those 
other dollars for those other programs. But, if we did take those trust fund dollars and move 
them to non-tobacco dollars, you are correct, we would limit the future funding. Even that 
would be better than closing this entity. Even doing it orderly. The closing of an agency would 
be preferable than just zeroing out this agency in this biennium with no preplanning like we 
do in other agencies. (Gave an example of an agency that is being created and the bill is for 
two years from now.) Even if we were to fund this like this, spend all of the other money, that 
would at least give us 3 years of programing in this area which I think would be very positive. 

Senator Kilzer: We have a motion and second. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 1; Nay: 2; Absent: 0. Motion Failed. 

Senator Gary Lee: See Attachment #2 for proposed amendment 17.0532.01003. 
Moved Amendment. 

Senator Mathern: Seconded. 

Senator Gary Lee: (Explained the amendments.) 

(23:25) Senator Kilzer: Asked for further discussion. 

Senator Mathern: I believe that this is essentially terminating all these employees. While I 
think that it would be a very negative thing to our state to lose that expertise, it would seem 
that there would also be some expenditures associated with that. It would seem that there 
would be some costs associated with the closing of this office, which these amendments 
appear to do. I would assume all those people would be eligible for unemployment 
compensation, and I am wondering where the funding would be if this was shut down both 
with an effective date and an emergency measure that would shut it down immediately. 

Senator Gary Lee: The current budget runs through June 30,2017, that should 
accommodate those persons that are employed there until then. 

Senator Mathern: I am wondering about after that. Let's assume they all stay on staff to do 
this work until then. The following day they would be unemployed. There would be some 
expense with that. 
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Senator Kilzer: From the state's prospective, all of the overhead costs to any agency are • 
supposed to be contained within the contract that they have. Whether it be their rent, lights, 
personnel, etc. We have not seen the Health Department budget, but this is not just going to 
end the efforts in anti-smoking. It is being turned over to the Health Department and they will 
carry it on. It does not shut down BreatheND. It does take their funding away. They are a 
strong advocacy group and they have done a lot of good things, but it is the appropriation 
that is the responsibility of the legislature that is going to be appropriating appropriately. I 
have been kind of quiet about how other public health issues have be underserved in recent 
years, and I will repeat my litany once again. That includes such things as Women's Way, 
suicide prevention, gambling addiction, colorectal cancer screening, all of the various cardio­
vascular and stroke events happening etc. Granted, smoking is a large part of those diseases 
and probably why the Department of Health includes them within their chronic disease 
division. I am glad to see the Governor, in his revised executive budget, does include those 
public health issues and we should pay attention to those. This bill has a long road yet. It has 
to clear the House and then the conference committee as well as be signed by the Governor. 
We want to put it in the best possible situation. Those of us in the majority agree with the 
Governor. Those are the reasons that I favor it. I know that BreatheND opposes it, and there 
are actions available. 

Senator Mathern: One of the issues you noted in your comments, was all of these other 
programs. I agree with you. Those important programs need to be funded at the proper level. 
My amendments would have given the department more opportunity to do that. It appears 
these amendments, in light of the comments you have made, would give the Department of 
Health more duties but at a reduced appropriation than what is available through the center 
in my amendment. I am just concerned that we are saddling the Department of Health with 
more responsibilities and fewer resources. 

Senator Kilzer: Asked for a roll call. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 2; Nay: 1; Absent: 0. Motion Carried. 

Senator Kilzer: This proposal will be brought before the full appropriation committee. Closed 
the hearing on SB 2024. 
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A DO PASS AS AMENDED for the Tobacco Prevention and cessation Agency 

Minutes: 1.Proposed Amendment# 17.0532.01003 
2,Pro osed Amendment# 17.0532.01002 Mathern 

Chairman Holmberg: Called the committee to order on SB 2024. All committee members 
were present. Levi Kinnischtzke, Legislative Council, Allen H. Knudson , Legislative Council 
and Lori Laschkewitsch , OMB were also present. 

Senator Kilzer: Submitted Amendment 17.0532.01003 to the committee. 

Senator Mathern: Just to clarify I have a set of amendments also. 

Chairman Holmberg: Let's look at these amendments and then look at your amendments. 

(1 :25) Senator Kilzer: SB 2024 basically undoes measure 3, which was an initiated measure 
that was passed in November of 2008. The amendment removes the organization called the 
Tobacco Prevention and Control Committee and its executive committee and removes the 
funding. In section 4 is the repealer, and section 6 is the emergency clause that is being 
requested to make the effective date coincide with the end of the present biennium so there 
would not be a one-month lag between the end of the biennium and the date that this bill 
takes effect. That is basically the change we see here. 

Senator Kilzer: Moved Amendment 17.0532.01003. 

Senator Gary Lee: Seconded. 

Senator Mathern: I oppose this amendment, and I have an alternative amendment. I oppose 
the amendment because we have clear evidence that this agency has in fact been 
instrumental in reducing tobacco rates of usage among North Dakota youth and among North 
Dakota adults. The agency has also been recognized nationally as being the most successful 
in carrying out the guidelines for the Center of Disease Control regarding tobacco use and 
impacting use and reducing it. The agency has been involved in a very comprehensive 
partnership with public health units across the state and with private, non-profit entities to 
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educate the public about the dangers of tobacco use. It has translated into a projected $241 • 
million reduction in our health care costs. I think what's important is that we recognize that 
this has been a positive development for our state and that we keep the agency intact. I 
would ask for a no vote on these amendments 

Chairman Holmberg: Any further discussion? Call the roll on this Amendment 
17.0532.01003. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea:11; Nay: 3; Absent:O. Motion carried. 

Senator Mathern: Moved Amendment 17.0532.01002. 

Senator Grabinger: Seconded. 

(6:38) Senator Mathern: (Explained his amendments.) The back side is a listing of the 5 
strongest reasons to continue funding BreatheND, and those are the reasons why I think I 
would encourage you to vote yes on these amendments. This would be the first measure 
that we will have completely eliminated. 
(0.11.19) (Went over the dollars on the front part of the amendment.) This amendment not 
only continues the center, but it assumes other responsibilities of tobacco functions that are 
in the Department of Health. It brings them all together in one place. It is not using more 
dollars to do the same thing, it is taking on more responsibilities from the health department. 
So it saves some other dollars for other programing, and brings even closer focus to this 
effort in North Dakota. 

(12:30) Chairman Holmberg: One hears. We all get messages. Clearly the messages I 
received support the current agency. We are not arguing that there should not be a 
comprehensive plan for tobacco control. It is the delivering system that the health department 
would be called upon to put together, and whether it is going to be as effective and is it going 
to be not only effective in cessation but also physically effective than the separate agency. 
Part of the argument is that we are looking at the delivery system for tobacco cessation and 
control. There are advocates that say that they have had some good data, so they should 
not be folded into the Department of Health. And, others say they should be folded in for 
efficiencies. 

Senator Kilzer: The anti-smoking effort has two homes at the present time. It is true the one 
alone is focused on prevention, and the other is focused more on cessation and treatment. 
Right now we are appropriating for both homes, and the overhead is disproportionately high. 
We have excellent advocacy groups, BreatheND and Tobacco Free North Dakota, and I hope 
that they continue. The bill is more about the money and the appropriating. This is where all 
the funds should be appropriated. That is my request, that we do not accept this motion. It 
needs to remain in the hands of the legislature. I would hope we resist this. 

Senator Robinson: We had a bill on the floor yesterday that proposes to take away some • 
responsibilities from the health department because of the magnitude of the charge of that 
department. Tuesday, we are going to hear a bill that is going to bring to that department 
some major responsibilities on the implementation of marijuana. There is no question here, 
that in mind, is the right thing to do. It is working. We heard from physicians. We know that it 
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is a gateway drug. The corrections budget is out of hand. Why would we mess with this? We 
have something that is working. Is it perfect, no. it is not going to be perfect where we put 
it. The mail I am receiving is from folks that have seen the success of this program back at 
the grass roots level. Leave it alone. It is having a significant impact. 

Senator Grabinger: I would tag on to what Senator Robinson said. In the interim, before 
this session started, we heard many times that we needed to look at the programs that were 
effective and keep them. This is a program that is working, and there is proof of that. That is 
why we should support this. 

Senator Mathern: I just have a couple of questions. I want to clarify some of the comments 
from Senator Kilzer. These entities will cease to exist if we don't adopt my amendments. 
BreatheND is eliminated if we don't adopt these amendments. Tobacco Free ND is funded 
in the policy efforts of this agency. These go away if we adopt the amendments that were 
previously brought out. This center follows a number of aspects recommended and proven 
to work in tobacco cessation. It is everything from policy work, to treatment, advertising, etc. 
BreatheND is over if we don't adopt these amendments. We have overhead costs in two 
places. These amendments bring overhead costs to one place, and they eliminate every 
general fund dollar. This entity would not have funds from the general fund . It all comes from 
the trust fund dollars. 

Senator Kilzer: In response to that, the amendments in no way get rid of any advocacy 
group. Breathe ND is not mentioned in the code or in the amendment. If the amendment that 
was previously adopted stays, BreatheND can apply for grants and carry on their good work. 

Senator Dever: A month ago, it dawned on me that I was exactly the same age as my father 
was when he passed away. He smoked all his life and lived with cancer for about a year and 
a half. The only time I smoked was when I was a child. I think tobacco prevention is primary. 
I helped create the structure of this agency. We were committed to that. Now we are talking 
about a different approach to the same purpose. Whether it is a separate agency or in the 
Department of Health, I think we are all committed to that purpose. There is something else 
that I think about This agency has as its singular purpose, prevention of tobacco. We can 
look at all the numbers and it appears to me that we are giving this agency 100% of the credit, 
even though a lot of the things that have happened in the last several years have been 
associated with campuses going tobacco free. The legislature banned smoking in 
restaurants. I am not so sure that it should be given that. As a singular purpose, two sessions 
ago, we were considering in the human services committee, funding for some programs with 
youth to make better decisions and we were unable to find the funding to promote better 
decisions for youth. I suggested that this agency had some dollars to use for that purpose. 
There was no interest in doing anything outside of tobacco. I think the actions we are 
undertaking broaden the use of those dollars and that is why I am supporting the bill and 
opposing the amendment. 

(24:20) Senator Mathern: This agency, in its public policy work, was involved in getting us 
to the point of banning smoking in restaurants. It was involved in the education of our citizens 
to help us pass the statewide smoking ban. Those things just didn't happen on their own. It 
was because of the resources that this agency had. So it works on public policy functions. 
The CDC has said that is a major best practice, changing public policy. Those changes that 
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we made had a proceeding activity. On the amendment, item# 2, the health communications • 
coordinator position ; the agency recognized the value of being very comprehensive in its 
approach of making sure that our tobacco use is connected with all of the other kinds of 
health issues. They came with a request for another staff person, but it is not funded . They 
said they would fund it with the resources they have. This amendment suggests what you 
are suggesting. I wanted to clarify that. 

Chairman Holmberg: Call the roll on amendment 17.05.01002. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: Yea: 3; Nay: 11; Absent: 0. motion failed. 

Chairman Holmberg: Is there a motion on the bill? 

Senator Kilzer: Moved a Do Pass As Amended. 

Senator Gary Lee: Seconded. 

Senator Robinson: I would hope as a legislature, if we come back and see the trends going 
in the wrong direction, we have the courage to reinstate this. We had a success story. We 
should build on it, but that is not the direction that we are going. This is a serious issue. It 
leads to a lot of addiction. I know what it costs, not only monetarily but with the other costs 
that are involved. 

Senator Wanzek: I want to make sure that those people on the front lines, county health 
units and the people who receive grants, as we shift to the Department of health, that they 
have input. They are on the front lines, and I sure hope they have some role to play and input 
into the program. 

Senator Kilzer: I think that will appear in SB 2004. 

Senator Grabinger: Has there been any plan suggested by the Health Department on how 
they would handle that and include those in the discussions? 

Senator Kilzer: They have not gone on the assumption that they would assume all of the 
responsibilities. In the revised executive budget there are changes for FTE's and funding etc. 

Senator Mathern: For clarification, killing this agency doesn't transfer all the money and all 
of the staff to the Department of Health. It transfers some of the resources, and it is none of 
the staff which would be 9 people laid off. Whether or not the Department of Health will pick 
them up, we do not know but probably not. There is 1 person in the Department of Health 
under this effort. 

Senator Kilzer: In the short term, the defunding of the Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Committee they have one last payment coming in April , and there is no more money coming • 
into this organization. With the bill as we are about to vote it, in the long term , and I am talkin~ 
10 years from now, it is going to be much better passing this bill than it would have been 1f 
we left the status quo. The long term effects are much better for the anti-smoking effort. 
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• Chairman Holmberg: Call the roll on do pass as amended on 2024. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 11; Nay: 3; Absent: 0. Motion passed. 

Senator Kilzer will carry the bill. 
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17.0532.01002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Mathern 

Fiscal No. 2 February 13, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2024 

Page 1, replace lines 11 through 13 with: 

"Comprehensive tobacco control $16,548,039 $4,906,884 $21,454,923 
Total special funds $16,548,039 $4,906,884 $21,454,923 
Full-time equivalent positions 8.00 1.00 9.00" 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 
 

Senate Bill No. 2024 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Senate Action 
 

 Base 
Budget  

Senate 
Changes 

Senate 
Version 

Comprehensive tobacco control $16,548,039 $4,906,884 $21,454,923
 
Total all funds $16,548,039 $4,906,884 $21,454,923
Less estimated income 16,548,039 4,906,884 21,454,923
 
General fund $0 $0 $0
 
FTE 8.00 1.00 9.00

 
Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of Senate Changes 
 

 
Adds Funding 

for Base Payroll 
Changes1  

Adds 1 FTE 
Health 

Communications 
Coordinator2

Increases 
Funding for 
Operating 
Expenses3

Increases 
Funding for 

Grants4

Adds Funding 
for a Cessation 

Program5  
Total Senate 

Changes 
Comprehensive tobacco control $42,512 $404,199 $1,260,173 $3,200,000  $4,906,884 
 
Total all funds $42,512 $0 $404,199 $1,260,173 $3,200,000  $4,906,884 
Less estimated income 42,512 0 404,199 1,260,173 3,200,000  4,906,884 
 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 
 
FTE  0.00 1.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  1.00 

 
____________________ 
 

1 Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2015-17 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other 
base payroll changes. 
 
2 One health communications coordinator FTE position is added, but related funding is not included. 
 
3 Funding is increased for various operating expenses, including rent, information technology, and 
operating fees and services. 
 
4 Funding for grants is increased to meet Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's Best Practices for 
Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs recommendations. 
 
5 Funding is added for a cessation program. The Comprehensive Tobacco Control Advisory Committee 
may assume the duties of administering the cessation program or provide funding to the State 
Department of Health to continue the program. 
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17.0532.01003 
Title.02000 
Fiscal No. 3 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senate Appropriations Committee 

February 13, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2024 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsection 2 of section 23-12-10.4, subsection 2 of section 54-27-25, and 
subsection 1 of section 54-59-22.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
smoking prohibited signage, the tobacco settlement trust fund, and required use of 
centralized desktop support services; to repeal chapter 23-42 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to the tobacco prevention and control program; to provide an 
effective date; and to declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 23-12-10.4 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. The owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of a public place 
or place of employment where smoking is prohibited by this chapter may 
request from the executive committee of the tobacco prevention and 
control advisory committeestate department of health the signs necessary 
to comply with the signage requirements of subsection 1. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 54-27-25 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. There is created in the state treasury a tobacco prevention and control 
trust fund. The fund consists of the tobacco settlement dollars obtained by 
the state under section IX(c)(2) of the agreement adopted by the east 
central judicial district court in its judgment entered December 28, 1998 
[Civil No. 98-3778] in State of North Dakota, ex rel. Heidi Heitkamp v. Philip 
Morris, Inc. Interest earned on the fund must be credited to the fund and 
deposited in the fund. Moneys received into the fund are to be 
administered by the executive committee for the purpose of creating and 
implementing the comprehensive plan. If in any biennium, the tobacco 
prevention and control trust fund does not have adequate dollars to fund a 
comprehensive plan, the treasurer shall transfer money from the 'Nater 
development trust fund to the tobacco prevention and control trust fund in 
an amount equal to the amount determined necessary by the executive 
committee to fund a comprehensive planused as appropriated by the 
legislative assembly. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 54-59-22.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. The following state agencies shall obtain centralized desktop support 
services from the information technology department: 

a. Office of administrative hearings. 

b. Office of the governor. 
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c. Commission on legal counsel for indigents. 

d. Public employees retirement system. 

e. North Dakota university system office. 

f. Department of career and technical education. 

g. Department of financial institutions. 

h. Department of veterans' affairs. 

i. Aeronautics commission. 

j. Tobacco prevention and control executive committee. 

k; Council on the arts. 

hk. Agriculture commissioner. 

m-:-L. Department of labor and human rights. 

R-:m. Indian affairs commission. 

e:-n. Protection and advocacy project. 

f:r.O . Secretary of state. 

Er.J;l State treasurer. 

r.g. State auditor. 

S:f,. Securities department. 

SECTION 4. REPEAL. Chapter 23-42 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
repealed . 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on July 1, 2017. 

SECTION 6. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2024 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Senate Action 

Base Senate Senate 
Budget Changes Version 

Comprehensive tobacco control $16,548,039 $16 548 039 

Total all funds $16,548,039 ($16,548,039) $0 
Less estimated income 16,548,039 16 548 039 0 

General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 8.00 8.00 0.00 
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Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of Senate Changes 

Removes 
Funding for 

Comprehensive 
Tobacco Total Senate 
Control' Changes 

Comprehensive tobacco control ($16,548,039) $16 548 039 

Total all funds ($16,548,039) ($16,548,039) 
Less estimated income (16,548,039) 16 548 039 

General fund $0 $0 

FTE (8.00) 8.00 

1 Funding for comprehensive tobacco control, including 8 FTE positions and related salaries and wages, 
is removed. 

This amendment also: 
Removes the appropriation section of the bill. 
Adds a section to amend North Dakota Century Code Section 23-12-10.4(2) relating to the 
signage responsibility of proprietors to transfer the responsibility to provide compliant signage 
from the Executive Committee of the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee to the 
State Department of Health. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-27-25(2) relating to the tobacco settlement trust fund to 
remove the transfer from the water development trust fund to the tobacco prevention and control 
trust fund if there is not adequate funding for the comprehensive plan and to provide the money 
deposited in tobacco prevention and control trust fund are to be used for purposes appropriated. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-59-22.1 ( 1) of the North Dakota Century Code related to 
required use of centralized desktop support services to remove the reference to the Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Executive Committee. 
Adds a section to repeal Chapter 23-42 relating to the tobacco prevention and control program. 
Adds a section to provide for an effective date. 
Declares the bill to be an emergency measure. 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 17, 2017 2:20PM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_32_011 
Carrier: Kilzer 

Insert LC: 17.0532.01003 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2024: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(11 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2024 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsection 2 of section 23-12-10.4, subsection 2 of section 54-27-25, and 
subsection 1 of section 54-59-22.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
smoking prohibited signage, the tobacco settlement trust fund, and required use of 
centralized desktop support services; to repeal chapter 23-42 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to the tobacco prevention and control program; to provide an 
effective date; and to declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 23-12-10.4 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. The owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of a public 
place or place of employment where smoking is prohibited by this 
chapter may request from the exeoutive oommittee of the tobaooo 
prevention and oontrol advisory oommitteestate department of health the 
signs necessary to comply with the signage requirements of subsection 
1. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 54-27-25 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. There is created in the state treasury a tobacco prevention and control 
trust fund . The fund consists of the tobacco settlement dollars obtained 
by the state under section IX(c)(2) of the agreement adopted by the east 
central judicial district court in its judgment entered December 28, 1998 
[Civil No. 98-3778] in State of North Dakota, ex rel. Heidi Heitkamp v. 
Philip Morris, Inc. Interest earned on the fund must be credited to the 
fund and deposited in the fund. Moneys received into the fund are to be 
administered by the exeoutive oommittee for the purpose of oreating and 
implementing the oornprehensive plan. If in any biennium, the tobaooo 
prevention and oontrol trust fund does not have adequate dollars to fund 
a oomprehensive plan, the treasurer shall transfer money from the water 
development trust fund to the tobaooo prevention and oontrol trust fund in 
an amount equal to the amount determined neoessary by the exeouti'w<e 
oommittee to fund a oomprehensive planused as appropriated by the 
legislative assembly. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 54-59-22.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. The following state agencies shall obtain centralized desktop support 
services from the information technology department: 

a. Office of administrative hearings. 

b. Office of the governor. 

c. Commission on legal counsel for indigents. 

d. Public employees retirement system. 

e. North Dakota university system office. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_32_011 
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f. Department of career and technical education. 

g. Department of financial institutions. 

h. Department of veterans' affairs. 

i. Aeronautics commission. 

j. Tobasso prevention and sontrol exesutive sommittee. 

k:- Council on the arts. 

Hs.,. Agriculture commissioner. 

m:-L. Department of labor and human rights. 

R:-m. Indian affairs commission. 

&.-!1. Protection and advocacy project. 

fr.O . Secretary of state. 

er.R:. State treasurer. 

f:-g. State auditor. 

&.L Securities department. 

SECTION 4. REPEAL. Chapter 23-42 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
repealed. 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on July 1, 2017. 

SECTION 6. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2024 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Senate Action 

Base Senate Senate 
Budget Changes Version 

Comprehensive tobacco control $16,548,039 $16,548,039 

Total all funds $16,548,039 ($16,548,039) $0 
Less estimated income 16,548,039 16 548 039 0 

General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 8.00 8.00 0.00 
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Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of Senate 
Changes 

Removes 
Funding for 

Comprehensive 
Tobacco Total Senate 
Control' Changes 

Comprehensive tobacco control ($16,548,039) $16 548 039 

Total all funds ($16,548,039) ($16,548,039) 
Less estimated income (16,548,039) 16,548,039 

General fund $0 $0 

FTE (8.00) 8.00 

1 Funding for comprehensive tobacco control, including 8 FTE positions and related salaries 
and wages, is removed . 

This amendment also: 
Removes the appropriation section of the bill. 
Adds a section to amend North Dakota Century Code Section 23-12-10.4(2) relating 
to the signage responsibility of proprietors to transfer the responsibility to provide 
compliant signage from the Executive Committee of the Tobacco Prevention and 
Control Advisory Committee to the State Department of Health. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-27-25(2) relating to the tobacco settlement trust 
fund to remove the transfer from the water development trust fund to the tobacco 
prevention and control trust fund if there is not adequate funding for the 
comprehensive plan and to provide the money deposited in tobacco prevention and 
control trust fund are to be used for purposes appropriated. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-59-22.1 (1) of the North Dakota Century Code 
related to required use of centralized desktop support services to remove the 
reference to the Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee. 
Adds a section to repeal Chapter 23-42 relating to the tobacco prevention and 
control program. 
Adds a section to provide for an effective date. 
Declares the bill to be an emergency measure. 
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2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee - Human Resources Division 
Sakakawea Room, State Capitol 

SB2024 
3/8/2017 

28858 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 23-12-10.4, subsection 2 of 

section 54-27-25, and subsection 1 of section 54-59-22.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, 

relating to smoking prohibited signage, the tobacco settlement trust fund, and required use 

of centralized desktop support services; to repeal chapter 23-42 of the North Dakota Century 

Code, relating to the tobacco prevention and control program; to provide an effective date; 

and to declare an emergency. 

Minutes: Attachments 1-2. 

Chairman Pollert called the committee to order on SB 2024. 

Sheila Sandness, Legislative Council: reviewed changes to the bill made by the Senate. 
The Senate followed the Governors recommendations and they were included in 2084 which 
was the bill that unfunded the committee and included language to repeal Chapter 23-42 
which is the section related to the tobacco provision control program. That language was all 
included in 2084 and they amended 2024 which was their base budget and included funding 
from the last biennium and amended that to be the same as 2084. The only difference is the 
Senate added an emergency clause and effective date to have the bill become effective July 
1. (1 :36-2:43) 

Rep. Nelson: Was there a fiscal note prepared for this bill with the emergency clause? 

Sheila Sandness, LC: There was a fiscal note, the Senate wanted the effective date July 1 
and without an appropriation it becomes effective August 1. If the emergency clause does 
not carry, the effective date becomes August 1. There would be a committee for one month 
but there would be no funding . 

Rep. Nelson: I still don't know why we need an emergency clause. 
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Sheila Sandness, LC: They thought it was important for everything to wrap up at the end • 
of the current biennium. 

Chairman Pollert: Does anyone want to testify in support of SB 2024 in its current form? 
Anyone want to oppose SB 2024? 

Jeanne Prom, Executive Director of the ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Policy: read written testimony (See attachment #1) . (6:56-16:45). 

Chairman Pollert: You said you need $10-12 million to run the program. Does that include 
your administrative costs because the original budget was $16.5 million, correct? 

Ms. Prom: That's an annual cost. Our budget is biennial and doesn't take into account the 
$5million dollar that the Health Department also invests. 

Chairman Pollert: Is that the total amount needed? 

Ms. Prom: Yes, $10-12 million total is what the state needs to invest. That is and annual 
figure so it is $21-$24 million. 
Continued to read written testimony.(17:53-

Vice Chairman Kreidt: Statewide people who are involved in this including local health units 
and dentists have information on the wall why I shouldn't smoke. With every patient at my 
dentists the receptionist said we go over why you shouldn't smoke, the effects on your health 
and on your teeth. I asked do you do this for everyone and she stated yes. I thought what 
better buy can you get for your money than this. We're spending a lot of money doing this 
but this is an example of a free service by my dentist. I don't know if this happened because 
of your group or if they have been doing this for many years. I am sure they will still do this 
regardless if your group is still part of state government. 

Ms. Prom: The ask, advise, refer to ND Quits has been around for a while and was initiated 
at the State Health Department level and carried out at Local Public Health units. We also 
provide the funding to the local public health units. They provide those materials for free. I 
don't know about every specific dentist if they relied on us or the Health Department to get 
those materials. We have spent a lot of time coordinating the training for these healthcare 
providers. It is a statewide coordinated effort to train the health care providers on the system 
of ask every patient if they use tobacco, advise them to quit and refer them to ND Quit. 

Rep. Nelson: You mentioned the healthcare benefits. In the first half of the legislative 
session we had the Human Services budget and we reauthorized Medicaid expansion. In 
some of the recent initiated measures we were told we shouldn't raise tobacco tax because 
the poorest of the poor are being affected by that and also the poorest of the poor are the 
ones using Medicaid expansion. In your analysis of healthcare savings and with the 
uncertainty of where Medicaid expansion is headed, do you have any numbers as to potential 
costs that would be saved? Youth smoking has dropped in half in your tenure. That's a 
significant piece of the population. Can you put hard numbers of savings for us to look at? • 
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Ms. Prom: Our staff has been working on this with the Department of Human Service staff 
but we haven't gotten to that point yet because they have the new Medicaid database. It can 
be done; it hasn't been done yet. That was one of the many items we were looking forward 
to working on in the future. 

Rep. Nelson: Can you give us hard numbers as to the accomplishments without Medicaid 
expansion being part of the equation? I know your agency won't give us numbers unless 
they are accurate. 

Ms. Prom: The back page of the testimony I gave you has a sheet that goes into the cost 
savings. (See attachment #1 ). 
Continued to read written testimony. 27:47-40:31. 

Chairman Pollert: That is a challenge we have as legislators. I have a concern too that we 
may be on different as far as general concept wise but I have a little heartache over the $16 
million that is sitting in the DH budget too but we also have funding problems statewide. We 
always thought the tobacco group should let your scope broaden more than what you are 
allowing money to be used for. I still think we're kind of on the same page of how you want 
to spend those monies versus how we want them spent. 

Ms. Prom: The Department of Health Budget the Senate did amend 54-27-25 in the Century 
Code that deals with where the tobacco settlement money that we receive in our state goes. 
They did amend out the requirement that 80% of the Community Trust fund had to be used 
for tobacco control. That's been a perennial concern among Legislators that when the 
measure passed 8 years ago it locked in that 80% for tobacco control. 

Rep. Meier: Does any of your funding go toward smoking cessation? 

Ms. Prom: Yes, but the majority of smoking cessation investment is made by the Department 
of Health they fund and manage many free services. 

Rep. Meier: What amount of your money goes toward smoking cessation? 

Ms. Prom: I can get you that amount. Between us and the Health Department we are 
meeting the CDC best practices amount. I know there is $1 million a year is going out to local 
Public Health Units and we have increased that amount. As a requirement the Health Units 
are to be asking all the clients if they smoke and advise them to quit and refer them to ND 
Quits. 

Rep. Nelson: Walk me through the discussion in the Senate. It seems like as we look at 
this today and the repeal, you point out that your single focus is what your agency has been 
charged with and carried out. I have always disliked the 80% rule. I thought there was a lot 
of other health-related programs that were caused by smoking that could have been brought 
in there. You only had tobacco control and cessation in your office, was there any discussion, 
especially with the medical marijuana that you could be the only smoking prevention and 
control agency in state government and center all of that in your office rather than any of it in 
the Department of Health. Let them do their work on the medical marijuana and turn it all 
over to you. Was there any discussion about that? 
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Ms. Prom: There was; there wasn't a lot of discussion. There was an amendment brought • 
forward at the Subcommittee, the committee and the Senate floor level, but it did not pass. 
There was the idea that this just needed to be folded, nothing is moving anywhere with any 
proposal that is on the table now. One agency, with the bill you have in front of you, is being 
completely shut down. My take is they wanted it done cheaper and did not meet with me 
specifically on how the $16.5 million could be something different than that. Maybe we could 
start funding the cessation services or ND Quit. I wasn't given that opportunity. They were 
meeting with the Department of Health on how they could come up with a $12 or $13 million 
budget total. I didn't feel there was interest on their part to go over my budget. I did provide 
them with a 90% budget. 

Rep. Nelson: It's fair to say that you can certainly do it cheaper. The grant funding to the 
local public health units is cut in the Department of Health budget. You could have done that. 
The people that are implementing the policies and programs in our communities are related 
to the local public health unit staff. I'm very unsure how they're going to have the same 
footprint with less grant funding with all the other duties. This is not that well thought out in 
my opinion. 

Chairman Pollert: We also had the previous Governor and current Governor who made the 
decision to go forward with this in their budgets. The Senate isn't the only one who thought 
of this because it was in both executive budgets. 49:21 

Rep. Holman: Should this stay where it's at right now, what would the program be under 
the current proposal if it passes? You have talked about the CDC requirements, also how 
would this program going forward compare with what is going on in the surrounding states? 
Is our program better or worse? 

Ms. Prom: Right now, North Dakota is the only state that funds its tobacco program at the 
best practice level recommended by the CDC. We have 75% of the funding for the 
comprehensive program. Governor Dalrymple and Governor Burgum recommended that 
this agency be eliminated but they also recommended $3 million be used for local grants and 
that was changed by the Senate. 

Chairman Pollert: It's the House and the Senate that decides where the money is 
appropriated and probably the Health Department will not agree with us either. 

Rep. Holman: You said that $56 million would carry you for 7 years. That gives you about 
$9.5-10 million a year. How does that compare to what you are doing right now? 

Ms. Prom: That compares with what we're doing now. It cuts the program in half even 
though the Senate did give the Health Department more funding. 

Rep. Holman: What percentage of the program is being done in the Health Department right 
now an what percentage is being done in your department? 

Ms. Prom: Our biennial budget is $16.5 million so the is $8.25 million a year. The Health 
Department budget actual dollars they get is closer to $5 million and the budget is$6 million. 
So theirs is $2.5 to $3 million a year. • 
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Rep. Nelson: We have no comparison in numbers so in your preparation for a 90% budget 
request, do the programs still meet all the requirements of the CDC best practice? 

Ms. Prom: No, it would have been less than that but it is much closer than we are right now. 
I do provide you in the next couple pages some figures for that. 
Continued to read written testimony (0:54:00-58:34). 

Rep. Nelson: The biggest decrease in the 90% budget was for professional fees and 
services. Can you tell us briefly what the $700,000 how that came to be? 

Ms. Prom: Professional fees and services, we have a couple of big contracts for evaluations, 
surveillance and for Health communications and we would be reducing those. 

Rep. Nelson: The other area was IT processing. Was that usage? 

Ms. Prom: That's based on current spending levels and we didn't need the spending that 
we budgeted last time. 

Rep. Nelson: If you were charged with coming up with a budget that is less than CDC best 
practices but you have experience in this program to say that the most effective program for 
the budget you were giving, could you do it for less than 90% and provide a program that 
would meet the general needs of your mission that you have followed and want to continue. 

Ms. Prom: I would have to take a close look at how that aligns. We've been adjusting for 
inflation and population every year and if we didn't adjust for that a less than 90% budget 
may be closer. 

Rep. Nelson: The population is still increasing so that's a negative. Certainly from an 
advertising standpoint you reach the same amount of people. You hear so much about what 
this agency does and doesn't do. How much of your budget was spent on political ads and 
your lobbying effort? 

Ms. Prom: None because we can't be involved in initiated measures. 

Chairman Pollert: This is going to come down to a philosophical viewpoint for a number of 
votes as well as dollars. I would like you to go through this now. There's going to be a vote 
done; it's going to be philosophical and it's going to be both dollar related and whether we 
agree with the Senate and the Governors recommendations as well. 

Ms. Prom: Continued to review testimony. (1 :03:20-1 :04:32). 

Chairman Pollert: Why is the data processing that high? 

Ms. Prom: We were collocated with some other state agencies and we could share those 
costs. Now we are not there anymore. There is space there and we could share those 
costs. That is also one effect of our relocation . Professional fees and services were based 
on maintaining the CDC best practice level of spending. We have seen advertising costs go 
up 30%. Continued to review testimony. (1 :05:40-1 :06:00) 
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Chairman Pollert: Is the 12.8% in grants due to the population growth? 

Ms. Prom: Most of local grants a high percentage of grants is staff time. 
Continued to review testimony. (1 :06:46-1 :09:45) 

Chairman Pollert: What are professional fees? 

Ms. Prom: We have legal, the office of the Attorney General, we have the audit, heatlh 
communications, examination and we have a contract with the tobacco legal consortium for 
policy work, smoke cessation. 

Chairman Pollert: What is the health communications for $1 .5? 

Ms. Prom: That is our advertising. 

Rep. Nelson: Do you have one contract for advertising? How many vendors do you work 
with? 

Ms. Prom: We have one contract for advertising . It is a competitive state process that we 
use to select our vendor. 

Rep. Nelson: Is the vendor Odney? 

Ms. Prom: Yes. 
Continued to review testimony. (1: 12:20-1: 14:37). 

Chairman Pollert: Looking at the graph and talking about North Dakota and CDC best 
practices, we are at 11 .7% and you have the United States at 10.8%. Is all of the United 
States on the CDC best practices, and if they're not on the CDC best practices, why are they 
lower and we've been putting all this money into North Dakota and I don't' know if we could 
say that about the United States. There are a lot of states that aren't funding CDC best 
practices. I'm just questioning if we are spending all this money my thought is why? 

Ms. Prom: Upper Midwest is an area of the country besides the southeast that has a high 
smoking and tobacco rate. There are other parts of the country that have much lower 
smoking rates in the northeast and west. That is bringing the average down because of the 
large population. We didn't all start at the same place; all the states had a different rate. 
We're almost at what the national average is. If we continue this momentum of reducing our 
youth rates and we will be the same and maybe even lower than the national average if given 
another 7 years. It does take some time. 

Rep. Nelson: A 44 cent cigarette tax, it is one of the lowest in the country and it works. We 
raise taxes on cigarettes you get less smoking , it is that simple. 

Chairman Pollert: There must be an equilibrium somewhere. Do these include marijuana? 

Ms. Prom: The smoking rates? No, they include just tobacco. 

• 

• 
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Rep. Nelson: You could do everything in this budget except for the repeal with a reasonable 
increase in tobacco tax. That would fund the program, fund some of the things in this session 
that the Governors weren't willing to look at and make this an ongoing program. 

Chairman Pollert: We could also talk about that we probably wouldn 't be here if there had 
been something different than the two and a quarter. 

Vice Chairman Kreidt: If we really wanted to do something out of the box we would 
eliminate tobacco in the state. 

Ms. Prom: continued to review testimony (1 :20:15-1 :21 :42). 

Rep. Holman: I look at this in two ways; one is you work with individual behaviors and also 
there is the group of institutional behaviors. Do you track which one works better or do they 
all blend together? 

Ms. Prom: We know that smoke-free laws cause people to quit and smoke less and so do 
increasing price policies. You can look at after the state's smoke-free law and what was the 
impact. You see it most in youth prevention because children respond to examples and what 
they see in the world. Since the smoke-free state law cleared the air and there wasn't the 
visible smoking that there used to be, 

Chairman Pollert: Group behavior is an important element in what we all do. I just don't get 
why people smoke. It's disgusting, so I should automatically be agreeing with you, but 
philosophically I don't. 

Ms. Prom: We haven't gotten into the tobacco industry and their marketing but they spend 
more than $30 million here every year to advertise. 
Continued to review testimony (1 :25:20-1 :37:51 ). 

Rep. Nelson: What you're telling us is that with the transfers that have taken place, the $15 
million the Medicaid grants line and the Opioid treatment grants line there is $32 million left 
in your trust fund . If we choose to continue your work, we could do really do both for this 
biennium with the money that flows into the trust fund from the tobacco settlement dollars. 
Could we do the same for the next biennium? 

Ms. Prom: Yes. 

Rep. Nelson: Without a tobacco tax increase? 

Ms. Prom: We still want that. 

Rep. Nelson: So do I. We could do what we're charged to do. We do have some very 
significant budget issues this biennium and if it is either or I know where it might end up. U 
wanted to paint the picture that isn't the case, we could do both. 
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Chairman Pollert: Any other questions? Seeing none. Rep. Nelson talked about the $32 • 
million, I want to talk about it. In the book, it talks about $28.9 being in there. We talked 
about the $4 million to the local Public Health units and at cross over it shows $2 million going 
there and I have a note that says extra $3 million to local public health units. Sheila would 
you explain. 

Sheila Sandness, LC: (1 :40:54) If you're looking at the $32.9 million that was the executive 
recommendation and the $ 4 million was local public health unit grants. Of that $4 million $3 
million were tobacco grants and $1 million was to provide general funding to local public 
health units. That $ 1 million was used to replace $1 million in general funds for grants to 
local public health. The $4 million was two different types of grants. There was a funding 
shift for a $1 million and $3 million for tobacco type grants. That is the $3 million. As 
approved by the Senate if you go to the other schedule the $28.9 million. We prepared this 
and as of cross over that $3 million is no longer in there and instead you have the $2 million 
and it is for general grants to local public health units. The Senate continued that 
replacement of $1 million when they did the funding shift but then they gave the local public 
health units and extra $1 million of just general funding grants. You look further down and 
$6.4 million and that is to shift the Tobacco Prevention and Control duties to the Department 
of Health. They increased $4 million to the Department of Health by that $6.4 million and 
also gave them one FTE. (See attachment# 2) 

Chairman Pollert: Do you have what money is distributed by the Senate to the Department 
of Health? 

Sheila Sandness, LC: The Department of Health has a tobacco prevention line item that 
totals $12.1 million and $6.5 million is from the tobacco prevention and control trust fund. 
$3.2 million is from the community health trust fund, and about $2 million is federal funds. 
Actually in the tobacco prevention and control trust fund is $7 million. 

Chairman Pollert: recessed the hearing on SB 2024. 

• 

• 
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and to declare an emergency. 
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Chairman Pollert called the committee to order. 

Larry Shireley, Evaluation Programs Manager for the ND Tobacco Prevention and 
Control Policy (BreatheND) read written testimony (attachment 1 ). 

Rep. Nelson: I got an e-mail from Elizabeth Hughes that talked about the fact that nicotine 
is determined to be a gateway drug. From a science-based standpoint what is that? 

Mr. Shireley: We know that when looking at studies of drug use, marijuana use, many of 
those started as smokers. As you look at many studies, it will indicate that cigarette smoking 
and nicotine is a gateway drug and that is one of the reasons why we are so concerned about 
the increase in electronic cigarettes. They don't have the effects that smoking does, but most 
of them contain nicotine so what the impact that's going to be on both gateway situations and 
increase in cigarette smoking we don't know. 

Donna Thronson, Health Communications Manager for the ND Tobacco Prevention 
and Control Policy (BreatheND) read written testimony (attachment 2). 

Susan Simonson, Health Communications Coordinator for the ND Tobacco Prevention 
and Control Policy (BreatheND) read written testimony (attachment 3). 
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Barbara Andrist, Statewide Programs Manager at the ND Tobacco Prevention and • 
Control Policy (BreatheND) read written testimony (attachment 4). 

Chairman Pollert: How many states are using CDC best practices, funding-wise? 

Ms. Andrist: There are two states. We're number one. 

Chairman Pollert: Do all states try to implement the CDC best practices? 

Ms. Andrist: Yes, the CDC grants that are given to the state say they are to use that. 

Rep. Holman: When you have a smoke-free facility, there are two things that are impacted 
by that; one would be the lower cost of operation because of a smoke free environment. Also 
their might be an insurance factor on any facility. Do insurance companies pay attention to 
whether a facility is smoke-free? 

Ms. Andrist: Yes, they do. 

Rep. Nelson: You're a key piece as far as the direct impact with local public health units 
and the work in the communities. How will that continue if the center isn't there and how the 
Health Department will communicate with local public health units? 

Ms. Andrist: I can't answer that question because I don't have the answer. 

Rep. Nelson: Can you recreate that within your job description of how much of your time 
you spend dealing directly with local public health units across the state? 

Ms. Andrist: In my position, I spend 35-40%. The person who spends the most time, which 
would be 100% of her time, is the local grants manager. 

Rep. Nelson: We are looking at a 1.5 FTE position that spends time with the local public 
health units. 

Rep. Meier: I'm on your campaign for tobacco-free kids website and seeing that the high 
school students who use e-cigarettes is 22.3%. Is that number going up? 

Ms. Andrist: That number is the first one we had for the state of North Dakota, so we're 
waiting for that. The national average shows they have been going up. 

Becky Anderson, Respiratory Therapist read written testimony (attachment 5). 

Jay Taylor read written testimony from Dr. Eric Johnson, Tobacco Prevention Advisory 
Committee Member (attachment 6). 

Rep. Nelson: The 24% decrease after the smoke-free law was passed in one hospital. Is 
there documented evidence that has been followed up with since the law went into effect that 
would support that number? 

• 

• 
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Mr. Taylor: Yes there is. There have been a number of studies that were done throughout 
the country. The one in Grand Forks was one of them and they all show the same results in 
a direct decrease in heart attacks following the implementation of the smoke-free policy. 

Theresa Will, Director at City-County Health District read written testimony (attachment 
7). 

Rep. Holman: Without state-coordinated effort, what might you be doing in Barnes County? 

Ms. Will: We haven't looked completely in the future because we are still working where we 
are at. I can see with the funding decrease, the time that we have to pay employees to do 
the work that we are currently doing decreases. 

Rep. Nelson: In Valley City, how many smoke-free apartment buildings do you have? 

Ms. Will: We currently have three smoke-free apartments. 

Chairman Pollert: Do you feel the Department of Health has your best interest at heart like 
the tobacco group does? 

Ms. Will: Absolutely. Local public health is boots on the ground for the Department of Health 
and the Center. We work well with both; I have no concern about working with either one. 
The primary concern is a comprehensive program and I don't feel we will have that with the 
current situation. 

Chairman Pollert: You have that concern going to the Department of Health? 

Ms. Will: Yes, not that they can't do the work, but the funding isn't there and the center has 
that single focus. 

Javayne Oyloe, Executive Officer of Upper Missouri District Health Unit read written 
testimony (attachment 8) and written testimony from Kathleen Mangskau (attachment 9). 

Rep. Holman: You have a reservation community in your district, what differences do you 
do as far as attacking this problem in the reservation community? 

Ms. Oyloe: Currently the Department of Health holds the tribal grants and Upper Missouri 
has been asked not to work with the tribes, unless we've been asked to help. 

Beth Hughes, Respiratory Therapist and Educator for University of Mary read written 
testimony for Dr. John Warford (attachment 10) and her written testimony (attachment 11 ). 

Rep. Nelson: We have the Corrections budget where 75% of the people that we work with 
have an addiction. It's important to know where it starts, so if you have some basis for that. 

Ms. Hughes: We have had in the past suspicion that nicotine and smoking is related to other 
addictions. Now we have a number of articles that demonstrates at a molecular level, a DNA 
level, that what nicotine does is open up neuro-pathways in the brain to make those pathways 
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more receptive to addiction to opioids. One of our concerns is that nicotine is a gateway • 
drug. 

Jennifer Mauch read written testimony from Pam Crawford, member of the Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Advisory Committee (attachment 12) and from Marvin Lein, CEO 
of Mid Dakota Clinic (attachment 13). 

Heather Austin, Executive Director for Tobacco Free North Dakota read written 
testimony (attachment 14). 

Vice Chairman Kreidt: What role do you play? Are you a service organization? Are there 
members that pay dues? 

Ms. Austin: Yes, we are a membership organization and we've been in existence since 
1985. We currently administer one of the statewide initiative grants funded by BreatheND to 
help with education and advocacy across the state. 

Vice Chairman Kreidt: You've been in business since 1985. What were you doing before 
you got the grant from BreatheND? 

Ms. Austin: A lot less work. It was primarily a volunteer board of directors with a small 
membership. 

Vice Chairman Kreidt: The membership dues that the organizations pay into must give 
some benefits? 

Ms. Austin: We are approximately 85% funded by the grant we administer from BreatheND. 

Kristie Wolff, Program Manager, American Lung Association in ND read written 
testimony from Reba Mathern-Jacobson (attachment 15) and her written testimony 
(attachment 16). 

Rep. Nelson: With the changes being proposed by the Senate, would the grant that you 
receive now continue? 

Ms. Wolff: Currently I'm not 100% sure how it will work through the Health Department. 
Most of the money will go to local public health units. We would potentially need to eliminate 
some of the positions that we have at the American Lung Association. 

Written testimony submitted for Sommer Wilmeth (attachment 17), Mara Yborra 
(attachment 18), and Alison Harrington (attachment 19). 

Chairman Pollert adjourned the committee. 
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of centralized desktop support services; to repeal chapter 23-42 of the North Dakota Century 

Code, relating to the tobacco prevention and control program; to provide an effective date; 

and to declare an emergency. 

Minutes: ttachments 1-2 

Chairman Pollert called the committee to order. 

Jeanne Prom, Executive Director for the ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and 
Control Policy: Yesterday there were three items you requested . Rep. Meier had asked 
about our budget and the percent that was spent on cessation. That is 20%. It's $3.2 million 
altogether. The majority of that, $2 million, goes to grants to local public health units to do 
the Ask, Advise , Refer work to refer the clients that use tobacco to NDQuits which is operated 
by the Department of Health. Another $500,000 went to the Department of Health in a grant 
for promotion of NDQuits and cessation. Also we do our own advertising to promote 
cessation. 

Chairman Pollert: Do you have that on a schedule or hard copy? 

Ms. Prom: I'm verbally reporting that. The rest of what you asked for is in document form. 

Reviewed written testimony (attachments 1 and 2). 

Chairman Pollert closed the hearing . 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 23-12-10.4, subsection 2 of 

section 54-27-25, and subsection 1 of section 54-59-22.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, 

relating to smoking prohibited signage, the tobacco settlement trust fund, and required use 

of centralized desktop support services; to repeal chapter 23-42 of the North Dakota Century 

Code, relating to the tobacco prevention and control program; to provide an effective date; 

and to declare an emergency. 

Minutes: II Attachment #1 

Chairman Pollert: called the committee to order to SB 2024. 

Rep. Nelson: Reviewed the proposed amendment 17.0532.02002. (See Attachment #1) 
(1 :40-5:30) 

Rep. Nelson: I would move the amendment 17.0532.02002 to SB 2024. 

Rep. Holman: Seconded. 

Rep. Nelson: I have always opposed the 80/20 rule in the Community Health trust fund. 
This amendment does get rid of that. The reason for the amendment is that we've made 
great strides in this state; mainly with cessation but mostly prevention. Most of the value that 
has occurred is with youth smoking. We received an email that nicotine is a gateway drug, 
there is scientific research to support that. We've cut youth tobacco rates in half since the 
beginning of the center. Prior to that smoking rates within the population of North Dakota 
were on a flat line and some age groups were increasing. The best mileage has come from 
youth tobacco use. There is vast savings. It's undeniable in my opinion that the center has 
accomplished its goal. They control 75% of the program of prevention and cessation in this 
state and now we are going to turn it over to the agency that administers 25% of it. In the 
private sector that wouldn't even be thought about. We should be building on our success, 
not turning it over to an agency whose hands are tied because they have so many other 
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things to do. You can't expect the same results from the Health Department. This is not an • 
indictment on that Department. The people of ND were the ones that said to us that they 
think strongly enough about tobacco use in this state and the Measure 3 vote was prior to 
any oil activity in the state. It was at a different time. They said it was an important enough 
issue that they wanted a comprehensive tobacco program in the state. It was and it has been 
successful. I would hope that we would look at this from a performance standpoint. It will 
save money in the future. We can go through the next session with the trust fund as it 
existed today and as it is proposed today. Whether it is in the Health Department or in this 
budget it would be funded for another session. 11 :35 

Rep. Holman: I think that the motivation behind this is wrong if we're trying to generate 
some money somewhere. Personally I came from a culture where everyone smoked 
because of my age. I also, more importantly, grew up with a father who smoked and he 
would cough at night and get up and light a cigarette to quit smoking. I look back at that and 
it seemed normal back then. We all have those points in our life where you have a before 
and after point. I vividly remember the day he was diagnosed with lung cancer. He survived 
but for the next 25 years he was so short of breath with COPD. Because of organizations 
like this, because we in ND put together an agency to combat the tobacco lobby, we have 
improved the health of ND. The timing is wrong because down the road we will reap benefits 
on this, long term benefits. That's the problem; pay now or pay later. By making this change 
and cutting the funding and using the money elsewhere, we will end up paying more later. 

Rep. Nelson: When we heard this bill, I thought that if we were going to encapsulate this • 
issue into two paragraphs: 
Read from previously submitted written testimony from Beth Hughes. (14:39-15:17). 

Vice Chairman Kreidt: If we really want to get rid of smoking in ND, why hasn't someone 
put up a bill to eliminate tobacco products in ND? If we want to think out of the box, let's do 
that. I think it is something we should be thinking about. Rep. Nelson says that it's not money 
coming from individuals; it's from a tobacco settlement. But we are to some degree paying 
for these dollars that are being used here. We passed a bill in 2005. That bill at that time 
was meant to be a first step in this non-smoking atmosphere. I felt the state opened the door 
and it was up to communities, counties, cities and schools to keep it rolling and we didn't 
need to spend this money to accomplish that. I can't support the amendment at this time 
and I think we should move forward. 

Rep. Nelson: I have to respond to a couple of the points that Rep. Kreidt made. To eliminate 
tobaccouse in the state wouldn't obviously have some effect but it wouldn't have the 
comprehensive effect because we would have sovereign nation and bordering states that 
are willing to sell tobacco. We can't make ND an island and protect the borders. The other 
issue about the funding mechanism that's being used is the same funding that the Health 
Department is going to use. We are not talking a different funding mechanism. We have 
two proposals on the table today; one to fund the Health Department and the other to fund 
the Center. The decision we have to make is which would be the most efficient and the most 
effective program. By their performance, it's basically proven that the Center has shown the 
best results. In the times you said that we weren't spending any money on it, I would caution 
you to look at the smoking rates and I think you will find they continue to rise. There are • 
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millions of dollars that go into advertising by the tobacco lobbyists. The most important thing 
to remember is that tobacco use in youth has dropped in half in the last seven years. 

Chairman Pollert: Any other discussion? Rep. Holman we had a similar situation but for 
some reason we have a different philosophical stance of why we are where we are at. I also 
think with us transferring this to the Department of Health, I feel they can do what we're 
asking here. The tobacco group has 8 people, when we look at the funding for the tobacco 
group I think it is 5.85 and increase of 1.1 . Why can they do it for 5.85 people and they only 
need 1.1 increase. So have we not taken enough FTEs from their budget? Yet if I look at 
that it is still more efficient. I thought the tobacco group could expand their horizons with 
tobacco related issues but those measures would never pass. I am looking at this as going 
to the Department of Health. They have people in place. I think they know tobacco. Will we 
see the same results? I guess we would have to amend the Health Department if this 
amendment doesn't pass and we vote on the bill for the repeal. I would have language in 
there that will have the Health Department prove to us or to show us what the results are. I 
would also ask why is vaping at that at 22% and smoking is at 11%? Are those kids just 
switching over? We need to find that out. So if they're switching, is it really working? We 
need to find that out. I am looking at the Health Department to be doing tobacco related with 
those dollars and expand that a little bit. I myself will oppose this amendment. 

Rep. Nelson: You make a good point on the vaping. But we don't need to reinvent the 
wheel. The Center has done the research. It's an unregulated industry where the FDA is 
not involved in the ingredients. One ingredient is nicotine but there are others and most of it 
comes from outside this country and there is not good evidence on what the ingredients 
actually do to people. tobacco. It's a replacement for smoking and the Center has done 
that work. They've been involved in tobacco use, in smoking and in the chewables, that's 
what they've done. They have a relationship with local public health units that goes unnoticed 
in this whole discussion. They are the people with the boots on the ground agencies that 
bring the program to the businesses, schools and communities where we live. That 
relationship is in place, it's working well. They've proven themselves. It's redundancy that 
we don't need today in state government. This is one of the most efficient agencies we have 
working for us. 

Chairman Pollert: Could it not be said that if there's 8 in the tobacco group and there 4.85 
and there will be 5.85. Couldn't you say that is a double up of services too? 

Rep. Nelson: They started at six. We've looked at every increase in personnel that they've 
come to our section with . We're not known as a subsection of appropriations that gives away 
FTEs without making the case there is a good reason for it. I think we have responsibly 
looked at their budgets and they purposed an increase and I think one was a grant 
administrator. There is Federal sources and there is a lot of reporting mechanisms that take 
place. If we do what is purposed in the bill I would be very surprised if the Health Department 
doesn't come in the next season and ask for an increase in FTEs. We will see about that 
too. 

Chairman Pollert: Any further discussion? Seeing none. I remember our fights on the 
House floor. I also remember fights when we were on the same side. I'm to the point now 
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that I'm not going to support the amendment. I have supported the tobacco group in the past • 
but I think it is time for something different. 

Rep. Nelson: There is still the opportunity for us to be on the same side again. 

Roll Call Vote: Yes - 2, No - 4, Absent - 0. 

Motion fails to adopt the amendment 17.0532.02002. 

Chairman Pollert: Any further amendments to SB 2024? Seeing none. 

Vice Chairman Kreidt: I would move a do pass the engrossed SB2024 the way it came to 
us originally. 

Rep. Kading: Seconded. 

Vice Chairman Kreidt: I don't want to rehash what has already been discussed. I think the 
Health Department is more than adequate to take over this responsibility. As we work the 
Health Department budget as we have before us I think we can more than make that budget 
and the part that will now include the Breathe ND was doing very efficiently. I look forward 
to working with the Health Department to get that in place. 

Chairman Pollert: Any other discussion? Seeing none. I'm going to support the Do Pass. • 
But I also remember our discussions on nursing homes and surveys and how we weren't 
getting along with the Health Department and other things. But I will support the do pass. 

Roll Call Vote: Yes - 4, No - 2, Absent - 0. 

Motion carries on Do Pass on SB 2024. 

Vice Chairman Kreidt: will carry the bill. 

Rep. Nelson: I'll probably try this same amendment in full committee. 

Chairman Pollert: I thought that and would be disappointed if you didn't. Hearing closed 
on SB 2024. 



2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

SB 2024 
3/13/2017 

29119 

0 Subcommittee 
0 Conference Committee 

Explanati nor reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to smoking prohibited signage, the tobacco settlement trust fund, and required use of 
centralized desktop support services; to repeal chapter 23-42 of the North Dakota Century Code 

Minutes: 

With Recording of SB 2042 at 8:30 

8:40 Representative Kreidt: This is Senate Bill 2024 versions 17.0532.02000, that how it 
came over from the senate. Came out of our committee this morning with a 4-2 DO Pass, 
same way it came from the senate. No changes in committee, there was an amendment 
that didn't pass. 

This is a bill to repeal the Breath ND group, chapter 23-42 of the ND Century Code. Section 
1, lines 12 and 13 of the bill, the state department of health will be the signs necessary to 
comply with the signage requirements of subsection 1. Section 2, line 22 Moneys received 
into the fund are to be appropriated by the legislative assembly. Then in section 3, line 19 
removes the Tobacco prevention and control executive committee from the group of 
entities that are provided this service. Section 4 is the repeal, section 5 is the effective date 
and section 6 makes it an emergency. The reason for the emergency is so it goes into 
effect July 1st instead of August 1st. 

The department of health will assume the majority of the duties. The tobacco and 
Prevention committee there were 8 FTEs and 1 temporary employee. With the department 
of health, we are looking at 4.85 employees to assume the same the same duties. 

14:00 Chairman Delzer: I understand you guys are still detailing the dollars in the health 
department and that's where the actual funding will be? 

Representative Kreidt: We have a preliminary appropriation line item and a schedule that 
will be incorporated into the health department's budget. 
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14:45 Representative J. Nelson: Make a motion to amend SB 2024 with 17.0532.02002 

Representative Holman: I'll second that motion. 

Representative J. Nelson: In section 1 of the bill this amendment does fund the tobaccos 
and prevention agency at the 90% level that the governor asked for from all agencies, that 
would total $14,893,235. In section 2 it does remove the 80% rule in community health trust 
fund; that 80% of the funding would have to be used for tobacco prevention programs. 
Section 3 it does add language because under both the bill and the amendment there is the 
discontinuation of an agency that over sees some parts of the tobacco sensation program. 
Under this provision the health department would be removed and we would ask for an 
independent third party review, to see if at the end of the process how this is working. 

They have cut youth smoking in half, that's important in the number of areas. The studies 
show that smoking is a gateway drug. We see that in corrections, we see it in behavioral 
health. It's that group of people that we should be the most concisions of when we are 
talking about dismantling one of the best programs in the country. This amendment funds 
the program for nearly the same type of money that the health department is looking at. 

• 

Right now there are three things that get funded out of the community trust fund; 3.2 million 
dollars goes to tobacco and prevention control, 329 thousand goes to woman's way, and 
470 thousand goes to behavior risk factor state survey. With the passage of this 
amendment that fund would be whole at 4 million dollars, we could fund a number of these • 
programs, domestic violence is another one that there are needs that we are not going to 
be able to fund . This community Health Trust fund would be a very good sources of funding 
for some of these programs. 

20:25 We are going backwards, if you look at the Representative Carlson's casino HCR 
3033 bill, if you look at section 2 subsection 8, Notwithstanding any other provision of law or 
this Constitution, the legislative assembly may provide by law for smoking and service of alcoholic 
beverages in parts of the casino facility. So we are already going back on what has worked and 
what people expect. 

75% of the work is being done by the center and 25% of it is being done by the center. It 
doesn't make any sense to turn this over to the group that only covers 25% of the program. 

Quoting Beth Hues, a provider in the Bismarck area, Do you want to have the dubious 
distinction of being the first legislators in ND history to go on record as voting directly 
against the will of the people? Do you want to go down in history as law makers who chose 
to dismantle a nationally recognized, efficiently run, model program that saves the lives of 
North Dakotans of all ages? Do you want to go on record as saying that the number 1 killer 
of North Dakotans is not worthy of a comprehensive program that does not use any general 
funds, that aims to stop kids from ever starting to use tobacco? 

22:55 Chairman Delzer: Further discussion? With our revenue short fall, we have to look 
wherever we can to increase efficiencies of state government. 

Representative J. Nelson: We have the funds in the trust fund for one more cycle under 
either case, I don't know that there is any difference of money. 
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Chairman Delzer: Well the health department already has 4 members already working on 
this. You adding a little bit? 

Representative Pollert: With the health department, it's at 4. 75 FTEs and it will go to 5.85 
FTEs. It's hard to get into talking this bill without getting into the health department budget. 

Chairman Delzer: That's where we will have the discussion of how much we do and how 
we do it. I think both governors did recommend that the Breath ND cease. 

We will try a voice vote Motion fails 

Chairman Delzer: Representative J . Nelson would you like a roll call vote? 

Representative J. Nelson: Sure. 

Chairman Delzer 

A Roll Call vote was taken to amend with 17 .0532.02002. 

Yea: 6 Nay: 14 Absent: 1 

Motion Fails 6-14 

Representative Kreidt: I should have mentioned that as well, both governors did eliminate 
this from their budgets. I would make a motion to Do Pass for SB 2024 

Representative Pollert: Second the motion 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 16 Nay: 4 Absent: 1 

Motion carries 

Representative Kreidt will carry the bill 

Chairman Delzer: That closes this hearing. 



17.0532.02002 
Title. 
Fiscal No. 1 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative J. Nelson 

March 10, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2024 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide an 
appropriation for defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco control 
advisory committee; to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 54-27-25 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to the tobacco settlement trust fund; and to 
provide for an independent review and report to the legislative management. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section, or so much 
of the funds as may be necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys in the tobacco 
prevention and control trust fund, not otherwise appropriated, to the comprehensive 
tobacco control advisory committee for the purpose of defraying the expenses of the 
committee, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. 

Comprehensive tobacco control 
Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Base Level 
$16,548,039 
$16,548,039 

8.00 

Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

($1 ,654,804) 
($1 ,654,804) 

0.00 

Appropriation 
$14,893,235 
$14,893,235 

8.00 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 54-27-25 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. There is created in the state treasury a tobacco settlement trust fund. The 
fund consists of the tobacco settlement dollars obtained by the state under 
subsection IX(c)(1) of the master settlement agreement and consent 
agreement adopted by the east central judicial district court in its judgment 
entered December 28, 1998 [Civil No. 98-3778] in State of North Dakota, 
ex rel. Heidi Heitkamp v. Philip Morris, Inc. Except as provided in 
subsection 2, moneys received by the state under subsection IX( c)( 1) must 
be deposited in the fund. Interest earned on the fund must be credited to 
the fund and deposited in the fund. The principal and interest of the fund 
may be appropriated to the attorney general for the purpose of enforcing 
the master settlement agreement and any disputes with the agreement. All 
remaining principal and interest of the fund must be allocated as follows: 

a. Transfers to a community health trust fund to be administered by the 
state department of health. The state department of health may use 
funds as appropriated for community-based public health programs 
and other public health programs, including programs with emphasis 
on preventing or reducing tobacco usage in this state. Transfers under 
this subsection must equal ten percent of total annual transfers from 
the tobacco settlement trust fund of which a minimum of eighty 
percent must be used for tobacco prevention and contro l. 

b. Transfers to the common schools trust fund to become a part of the 
principal of that fund. Transfers under this subsection must equal 
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forty-five percent of total annual transfers from the tobacco settlement 
trust fund. 

c. Transfers to the water development trust fund to be used to address 
the long-term water development and management needs of the 
state. Transfers under this subsection must equal forty-five percent of 
the total annual transfers from the tobacco settlement trust fund . 

SECTION 3. TOBACCO PREVENTION AND CONTROL PLAN -
INDEPENDENT REVIEW AND REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT. At least 
once during the 2017-19 biennium, the comprehensive tobacco control advisory 
committee shall provide for an independent review to evaluate the effectiveness of the 
statewide tobacco prevention and control plan and report the results of the review to 
the legislative management." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2024 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - House Action 

Base Senate 
Budget Version 

Comprehensive tobacco control $16,548,039 

Total all funds $16,548,039 
Less estimated income 16,548,039 

General fund $0 

FTE 8.00 

House 
Changes 
$14,893,235 

$0 $14,893,235 
0 14,893,235 

$0 $0 

0.00 0.00 

House 
Version 

$14,893,235 

$14,893,235 
14,893,235 

$0 

0.00 

Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of House Changes 

Restores 
Funding to 

90 Percent of 
Base Level' 

Comprehensive tobacco control $14,893,235 

Total all funds $14,893,235 
Less estimated income 14,893,235 

General fund $0 

FTE 0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

$14,893,235 

$14,893,235 
14 893 235 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding is provided from the tobacco prevention and control trust fund to restore the funding for the 
Comprehensive Tobacco Control Advisory Committee to 90 percent of base level. 

This amendment also adds sections to: 
Amend North Dakota Century Code Section 54-27-25(1) to remove the requirement that 80 
percent of the transfers from the tobacco settlement trust fund to the community health trust fund 
be used for tobacco prevention and control. 
Provide, at least once during the biennium, the Comprehensive Tobacco Control Advisory 
Committee arrange for an independent review to evaluate the effectiveness of the statewide 
tobacco prevention and control plan and report the results of the review to the Legislative 
Management. 
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2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. S82024 

House Appropriations - Human Resources Division 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 17.0532.02002 

Date: 3/13/2017 
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

Committee 

------------------------

Recommendation: ~ Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By _R_e.._p_. _N_e_ls_o_n ______ Seconded By _R_e..._p_. _H_o_lm_a_n _____ _ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Pollert x Representative Holman x 
Vice Chairman Kreidt x 
Representative Kading x 
Representative Meier x 
Representative Nelson x 

Total (Yes) 2 No 4 ----------- ----------------
Absent 0 --------------------------------
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB2024 

House Appropriations - Human Resources Division 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Date: 3/13/2017 
Roll Call Vote #: 2 

Committee 

------------------------

Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

Other Actions: 

~ Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By _R_e_p_. K_re_id_t ______ Seconded By _R_ep~._K_a_d_in~g~-----

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Pollert x Representative Holman x 
Vice Chairman Kreidt x 
Representative Kadinq x 
Representative Meier x 
Representative Nelson x 

Total (Yes) 4 No 2 ----------- ----------------
Absent 0 --------------------------------
FloorA~ignme~ _R_e_p_. _K_re_id_t ______________________ ~ 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: 3/13/2017 
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

House Appropriations 

2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2024 

D Subcommittee 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 17 . 0532.0200~ 
~~~~~--='----~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Recommendation: ~ Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 

Other Actions: 

D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Representative J. Nelson Seconded By Representative Holman 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes 
Chairman Delzer x 
Representative Kempenich x Representative Streyle 
Representative: Boehning x Representative Vigesaa 
Representative: Brabandt x 
Representative BrandenburQ x 
Representative KadinQ x Representative Boe x 
Representative Kreidt x Representative Delmore A 

Representative Martinson x Representative Holman x 
Representative Meier x 

Representative Monson x 
Representative Nathe x 
Representative J. Nelson x 

Representative Pollert x 
Representative Sanford x 
Representative Schatz x 
Representative Schmidt x 

Total (Yes) 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

MOTION FAILS 

No 

x 
x 
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Date: 3/13/2017 
Roll Call Vote #: 2 

House Appropriations 

2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2024 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Committee 

----------------------~ 

Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

~ Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Representative Kreidt Seconded By Representative Pollert 

Representatives Yes Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Delzer x 
Representative Kempenich x Representative Streyle x 
Representative: Boehning x Representative Vigesaa x 
Representative: Brabandt x 
Representative BrandenburQ x 
Representative Kading x Representative Boe x 
Representative Kreidt x Representative Delmore A 

Representative Martinson x Representative Holman x 
Representative Meier x 

Representative Monson x 
Representative Nathe x 
Representative J . Nelson x 

Representative Pollert x 
Representative Sanford x 
Representative Schatz x 
Representative Schmidt x 

Total (Yes) 16 No 4 

Absent 1 -------------------------------
Floor Assignment Representative Kreidt 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

MOTION CARRIES 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2024, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) 

recommends DO PASS (16 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed SB 2024 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar. 
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Prepared for the Senate Appropriations Committee 

Department 305 - Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee 
Senate Bill Nos. 2024 and 2084 

E xecu 1ve u 1get f B d c omparison o nor 1enmum t P · B. ,ppropria ions "f A 
FTE Positions General Fund Other Funds 

2017-19 Executive Budget 0.00 $0 $0 
2015-17 Adjusted Legislative Appropriations 8.00 0 16,548,039 

Increase (Decrease) (8.00) $0 ($16,548,039) 

Agency Funding FTE Positions 

$18.00 

$16.00 
$15.82 $16.55 

~ 

9.00 
8.00 8.00 

8.00 

$14.00 12.92 7.00 

"' 
$12.00 

,._ 
- 6.00 

c: 
,g $10.00 - 5.00 

~ $8.00 - 4.00 

$6.00 - 3.00 

$4.00 - 2.00 

$2.00 ~ 1.00 
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 

Total 
$0 

16,548,039 

($16,548,039) 

0.00 

$0.00 
2011 -1 3 2013-15 2015-17 2017-19 2011 -13 2013-15 2015-17 2017-19 

Adjusted Executive 
Budget 

•General Fund oOther Funds 

E 

2017-19 Executive Budget 
2017-19 Base Level 

Increase (Decrease) 

f B d tC xecu 1ve u 1ge omparison t B 0 ase L eve 
General Fund Other Funds 

$0 $0 
0 16,548,039 

$0 ($16,548,039) 

Executive Budget Highlights 
General Fund 

1. Removes funding for 8 FTE positions and dissolves the agency $0 
Other Funds 
($16,548,039) 

Executive 
Budget 

Total 
$0 

16,548,039 

($16,548,039) 

Total 
($16,548,039) 

Other Bill Sections Recommended to be Added in the Executive Budget 
(As Detailed in Senate Bill No. 2084) 

Signage responsibility of proprietors - Section 2 amends North Dakota Century Code Section 23-12-10.4(2) to provide the 
owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of a public place or place of employment where smoking is prohibited by 
Chapter 23-12 may request signage that meets the requirements of the section from the State Department of Health rather than 
the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee. 

Tobacco prevention and control trust fund - Section 3 amends Section 54-27-25(2) to remove restrictions relating to the 
administration of the tobacco prevention and control trust fund and provide money received into the fund is to be used for the 
purposes appropriated. 

Centralized desktop support services - Section 4 amends Section 54-59-22.1 (1) to remove the Tobacco Prevention and 
Control Executive Committee from the list of agencies required to obtain centralized desktop support services from the 
Information Technology Department. 

Tobacco prevention and control program - Section 5 repeals Chapter 23-42 relating to the tobacco prevention and control 
program to eliminate the Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee. 

Continuing Appropriations 
There are no continuing appropriations for this agency . 

Significant Audit Findings 
There are no significant audit findings for this agency. 

January 10, 2017 

\ 



Major Related Legislation 
House Bill No. 1075 - Section 12 of House Bill No. 1075, the executive recommendation for the Office of Management and 
Budget, amends Section 54-27-25(1) to provide 45 percent of tobacco settlement proceeds be deposited in the general fund 
rather than the common schools trust fund. 
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Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee - Budget No. 305 
Senate Bill Nos. 2024 and 2084 
Base Level Funding Changes 

Executive Budget Recommendation 

FTE 
Position General Fund Other Funds Total 

2017-19 Biennium Base Level 8.00 $0 $16,548,039 $16,548,039 

2017-19 Ongoing Funding Changes 
Base payroll changes $0 
Salary increase - Performance 0 
Health insurance increase 0 
Removes 8 FTE positions and dissolves the (8.00) (16,548,039) (16,548,039) 
agency 
Total ongoing funding changes (8.00) $0 ($16,548,039) ($16,548,039) 

One-time funding items 
No one-time funding items $0 
Total one-time funding changes 0.00 $0 $0 $0 

Total Changes to Base Level Funding (8.00) $0 ($16,548,039) ($16,548,039) 

2017-19 Total Funding 0.00 $0 $0 $0 

Other Sections in Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee - Budget No. 305 

Executive Budget Recommendation 

Signage responsibility of proprietors Section 2 amends Section 23-12-10.4 (2) to provide the owner, 
operator, manager, or other person in control of a public place or 
place of employment where smoking is prohibited by Chapter 23-12 
may request signage that meets the requirements of the section 
from the State Department of Health rather than the Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Advisory Committee. 

Tobacco prevention and control trust fund Section 3 amends Section 54-27-25 (2) to remove restrictions 
relating to the administration of the tobacco prevention and control 
trust fund and provide money received into the fund is to be used 
for the purposes appropriated. 

Centralized desktop support services Section 4 amends Section 54-59-22.1 (1) to remove the Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Executive Committee from the list of 
agencies required to obtain centralized desktop support services 
from the Information Technology Department. 

Tobacco prevention and control program Section 5 repeals Chapter 23-42 relating to the tobacco prevention 
and control program to eliminate the Tobacco Prevention and 
Control Executive Committee . 



Prepared by the Legislative Council staff 

Department 305 -Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee 

Historical Appropriations Information 

Total Other Funds Appropriations Since 2009-11 
Agency Funding (in Millions) 
$18.00 .-------------~~~--­
$16.00 -+--------
$14.00 +--"-='-'=------"'-'~'--­

$12.00 
$10.00 
$8.00 
$6.00 
$4.00 
$2.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 2017-19 
Adjusted Executive 

Budget 

FTE Positions 
9.00 ,-------=-=~------::-::~-----, 

8.00 t-------------r----1 
7.00 +-------~"--------~-----! 

6.00 +--------,,,_-----~----j 
5.00 +---'-'-=---:::;;;;o---------~---1 
4.00 +---P"'::c___ _________ __,l;----j 

3.00 +--------------~---1 
2.00 +--------------~r---1 
1.00 +---------------~-=-.""'oo:--1 
0.00 +----.------.---.-------r---1---1 

2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 2017-19 
Executive 

Budget 

Total Other Funds Appropriations 

2015-17 
2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 Adjusted 

Total other funds appropriations $12,882,000 $12,922,614 $15,815,828 $16,548 ,039 
Increase (decrease) from previous biennium N/A $40,614 $2,893,214 $732,211 

Percentage increase (decrease) from N/A 0.3% 22.4% 4.6% 
previous biennium 

Cumulative percentage increase (decrease) N/A 0.3% 22.8% 28.5% 
from 2009-11 biennium 

Major Increases (Decreases) in Total Other Funds Appropriations 
2011-13 Biennium 

1. Reclassified 1 temporary position, to be determined by the Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Executive Committee, to an FTE position. 

2013-15 Biennium 

1. Increased funding for comprehensive tobacco control for signage costs related to House Bill 
No. 1253 ($250,000) and grants ($2, 750,000). 

2. Transitioned 3 temporary positions to FTE positions, including 1 field coordinator FTE position, 
1 statewide programs manager FTE position, and 1 evaluation program manager FTE position . 

3. Reduced temporary salaries. 

2015-17 Biennium 

1. Added funding to provide a grant to the State Department of Health to be used for the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention's Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs. 

2017-19 Biennium (Executive Budget Recommendation) 

1. Removes funding for 8 FTE positions and dissolves the agency. 

2017-19 
Executive 

Budget 
$0 

($16,548,039) 

(100.0%) 

(100.0%) 

$0 

$3,000,000 

$0 

($190,876) 

$500,000 

($16,548 ,039) 

January 10, 2017 
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Testimony 
In support of Senate Bill 2024 and in opposition to Senate Bill 2084 

1 :30 p.m., January 11, 2017 
Senate Appropriations Committee 

Senator Ray Holmberg, Chair 

Good afternoon, Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations 
Committee. I am Jeanne Prom, executive director of the North Dakota Center for 
Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy. The Center, also known as "BreatheND," is the 
state agency office operated by the N.D. Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive 
Committee. I am testifying in support of Senate Bill 2024, which provides the 
appropriation for the N.D. Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee. I am 
also testifying in opposition to Senate Bill 2084, which repeals the law that establishes 
this agency. 

Background 
The Executive Committee is responsible for the comprehensive tobacco control 
program in North Dakota (North Dakota Century Code §23.42.01 through 
§23.42 .08, and §54.27.25). This law requires that a small portion of the money 
North Dakota receives from the Master Settlement Agreement with tobacco 
companies ("tobacco settlement"), be: 

• placed in the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund, to be 
• used for a comprehensive tobacco prevention program that is 
• funded at the state level recommended by the U.S. Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention (CDC) in Best Practices for Comprehensive 
Tobacco Control Programs. (Seep. 7.) 

The agency's comprehensive work must be described in a State Plan that 
outlines how the agency will significantly reduce tobacco use at an 
accelerated rate . 

The law also created the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory 
Committee, a nine-member board appointed by the Governor. The board 
elects three of its members to the N.D. Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Executive Committee. The Advisory Committee is responsible for developing 
the comprehensive statewide plan to prevent and reduce tobacco use. The 
Executive Committee is charged with implementing, administering and 
evaluating the plan, which includes establishing and staffing the agency and 
expending funds appropriated by the Legislative Assembly. 

In most cases during this testimony, I will refer to the Executive Committee or 
BreatheND as the agency. 

BreatheND 
Saving lives, saving money. The vo ice of t he people. 

www.breatheND.com r 

! 



About 75 percent of the comprehensive program is administered and funded by 
the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee has resources to administer 
and fund all of the program if necessary. However, because the N.D. 
Department of Health receives a federal grant and some tobacco settlement 
dollars for tobacco control, the health department is able to fund and administer 
about one-fourth of the program. 

Key points 
• The Executive Committee is funded entirely by a legislative appropriation 

from special funds in the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund. 
• All trust funds are from a small portion of the tobacco settlement. 
• The agency receives no state general funds, federal funds, or other tax 

dollars. 
• The sole source of funding for this agency, the Tobacco Prevention and 

Control Trust Fund, will begin deficit spending in May 2017, after receiving 
its last deposit in April 2017. 

• Based on legislative appropriations and expenditures from FY2010 
through FY2017, the trust fund balance that is "in the bank" this year will 
be enough to sustain the agency for 7 more years, without any need for 
any state general funds. 

• The agency is small - 8.0 FTE, with a fulltime temporary position 
requested to be permanent. 

• The agency has a single focus - reducing tobacco use, especially through 
prevention. 

See attachments - tobacco settlement trust funds. 

Requested information 
2015-17 

• original budget and budget after the August 2016 special session - p. 3, 
column 1 

• estimated spending and percent - p. 3, columns 2 and 3 
NOTE: SB 2379 passed by the Legislative Assembly in Special Session on 
August 4, 2016, did not include any reductions in funding for this agency, as 
this agency does not receive any state general funds. 
NOTE: The agency budget contains no one-time funding. 

2017-19 
• budget changes compared to 2015-17 appropriation - p. 3, column 4 
NOTE: The agency budget contains no one-time funding requests. 
NOTE: The agency receives no federal funding. 
• 90% budget - p. 4 
• Optional budget request compared to executive recommendation; optional 

request is transferring a temporary position to a permanent position - p. 5 
• Agency requested changes compared to executive recommendation - p. 6 

• 
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2015-17 AND 2017-19 BUDG ET INFORMATION : 

COLUMN 1: ORIG INAL BUDG ET AND BUDGET AFTER AUGUST 2016 

Expenditures 

Account Descripti on 

Salaries and Benefits 

Salaries - Rerrranent 

Temporary Salaries 

Overtime 

Fringe Benerns 

Salaries and Benefits 

Operating Expenses 

Travel 

Supplies - rr Software 

Supply/Mlteria l - Professional 

Groceries 

Bldg, Grounds, Vehicle Supply 

Mscellaneous Supplies 

Off ice Supplies 

R:lstage 

Printing 

rr Equipment under $5,000 

Other Equip under $5,000 

Off ice Equip & Furniture-Lklder 

Insurance 

Rentals/Leases- Equipment&Other 

Rentals/Leases - Bldg/Land 

Repairs 

rr -Data Processing 

rr -Corrrrunications 

rr Contractual Services and Re 

Professional Dlvelopment 

Operating Fees and Services 

Profess ional Fees and Services 

Operating Expenses 

rr Equip I Software Over $5000 

Capital Assets 

Grants , Benefits & Claims 

Total 

Current 

Budget 

15/17 

1,328,524 

199,972 

11,248 

526,656 

2,066,400 

83,180 

4,500 

9,179 

0 

200 

0 

14,214 

10,736 

27,500 

0 

126 

5,000 

6,315 

1,000 

108,000 

8,500 

99,051 

25,000 

272,500 

43,332 

114,336 

3,782,305 

4,614,974 

0 

0 

9,866,665 

16,548,039 

2 

Es ti mated 

Spendi ng 

for 15/17 

1,306,955 

170,145 

6,735 

521,400 

2,005,235 

73,931 

2,380 

5,372 

284 
-

8,442 

11,393 

22,369 
-

-

-

5,749 

-
114,810 

2,219 

76,156 

19,218 

304,600 

42,673 

76,931 

3 198,708 

3,965,237 

9,866,665 

15,837,137 

3 4 5 6 

Es ti mated Base 

Percent Budget Tota l Base To ta l Opt i onal 

of Budget Change s Budget Request Budget Req uest 

Soent fo r 17/19 17/19 17/19 

39,312 1,367,836 160,618 

(5,796) 194,176 

11,248 

8,996 535,652 59,677 

97% 42,512 2,108,912 220,295 

83,180 

4,500 

(3,825) 5,354 

0 

200 

0 

14,214 

1074 11,810 

500 28,000 

0 

(126) 0 

5,000 

(315) 6,000 

1,000 

11,400 119,400 

(3,500) 5,000 

21,000 120,051 

25,000 

(72,500) 200,000 

(31) 43,301 

(45,666) 68,670 

496,188 4,278,493 

86% 404,199 5,019,173 

100% 1,260,173 11,126,838 

96% 1,706,884 18,254,923 220,295 



Proposed budget reductions to meet Governor's 90% budget request 
guideline 
The guidelines from the Office of Management and Budget issued to our agency 
on June 8, 2016 stated: "Your agency's special fund request amount is not 
limited with the exception of dollars related to new FTE. However, we hope you 
will take this opportunity to examine your level of spending in all areas to ensure 
the most efficient operation and most effective use of resources from all funding 
sources." 

The agency submitted a budget which was estimated at about 90% of the CDC 
Best Practices recommended budget, based on estimates in 2015. 
CDC Best Practice suggested spending adjusted for Population and inflation 

Less 10% Reduction 

Submitted 17/19 budget and Current 15/17 Budget 

Center 

ND DOH 

Reduction of the current Center Budget (10%) 

Equates to 94% of CDC Best Practices 

Salaries and benefits 

Operating Expenses 

Grants 

Current Center Budget 

Less 10% Reduction 

Reduced BudgetTota I 

ND DOH included 500,000 in their budget which i s granted to them 

by the Center. It has been removed from these budget numbers as 

to not count it twice 

17/19 

18,254,923 

5,180,040 

23,434,963 

Efficiencies in level of spending and effective use of resources -
Attachment C 
The most efficient program going forward must continue to achieve health 
outcomes greater than the ones already realized. 

17/19 

24,871,367 

(2,487,137) 

22,384,230 

15/17 

16,548,039 

6,410,177 

22,958,216 

1,654,804 

82,740 

761,210 

810,854 

1,654,804 

16,548,039 

-1,654,804 

14,893,235 

• Progress already made cannot be allowed to erode. We need to lock in 
current cuts in youth and adult smoking. 

• BreatheND must continue to get out ahead of new tobacco and nicotine 
addiction products like electronic cigarettes, identified in the 2016 Surgeon 
General's Report on E-cigarettes and Youth as the next tobacco epidemic. 

• BreatheND must further reduce youth and adult tobacco use at the new, 
accelerated rates. Nearly ending youth tobacco use in North Dakota is 
within our reach, by funding BreatheND using the remaining balance of 
the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund. 

• BreatheND must document health care costs savings and return on 
investment. 

• 

• 



OPTIONAL REQUEST BUDGET COMPARISON TO EXECUTIVE RECOMMENDATION 

Account Description 

Salaries and Benefits 

Salaries - Permanent 

Terrporary Salaries 

Overtime 

Fringe Benefits 

Salaries and Benefits 

Operating Expenses 

Travel 

Supplies - IT Software 

Supply/11/aterial - Professional 

Groceries 

Bldg, Grounds , Vehicle Supply 

Mscellaneous Supplies 

Office Supplies 

Postage 

Printing 

IT Equipment under $5,000 

Other Equip under $5,000 

Office Equip & Furniture-Under 

Insurance 

Rentals/leases Equip. & Other 

Rentals/lease Bldg./Land 

Repairs 

IT - Data Processing 

IT - Comn.mications 

IT Contractual Services and Re 

Professional Development 

Operating Fees and Services 

Professional Fees and Services 

Operating Expenses 

IT Equip/Software Over $5000 

Capital Assets 

Grants, Benefits & Claims 

Total 

Executive 

Budget (2084) 

Recommendation 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Senate Bill 

Budget (2024) 

Recommendation 

1,328,524 

199,972 

11,248 

526,656 

2,066,400 

83,180 

4,500 

9,179 

-

200 

-

14,214 

10,736 

27,500 

-
126 

5,000 

6,315 

1,000 

108,000 

8,500 

99,051 

25,000 

272,500 

43,332 

114,336 

3,782,305 

4,614,974 

0 

0 

9,866,665 

16,548,039 

Base Total Optional 

Budget Request Budget Request 

17/19 17/19 

1,367,836 160,618 

194,176 

11,248 

535,652 59,677 

2,108,912 220,295 

83,180 

4,500 

5,354 

-

200 

-

14,214 

11,810 

28,000 

-

-

5,000 

6,000 

1,000 

119,400 

5,000 

120,051 

25,000 

200,000 

43,301 

68,670 

4,278,493 

5,019,173 

11,126,838 

18,254 923 220,295 



AGENCY REQUESTED CHANGES TO EXECUTIVE RECOMMENDATION 

Account Description 

Salaries and Benefits 

Salaries - Permanent 

Terrporary Salaries 

Overtime 

Fringe Benefits 

Salaries and Benefits 

Operating Expenses 

Travel 

Supplies - rr Software 

Supply/Material - A-ofessional 

Groceries 

Bldg, Grounds , Vehicle Supply 

Miscellaneous Supplies 

Office Supplies 

Postage 

A-inting 

Postage 

A-in ting 

rr E"!:!uipment under $5,000 

Other Equip under $5,000 

Office Equip & Furniture-Under 

Insurance 

Rentals/Leases-Equipment&Other 

Rentals/Leases - Bldg/Land 

Rentals/leases Equip. & Other 

Rentals/lease Bldg./Land 

Repairs 

rr - Data A-ocessing 

rr - Communications 

rr Contractual Services and Re 

A-ofessional Development 

Operating Fees and Services 

A-ofessional Fees and Services 

Operating Expenses 

rr E"!:!uip/Softw are Over $5000 

Ca pita I Assets 

Grants, Benefits & Claims 

Total 

Executive 

Budget (2084) 

Recommendation 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Base 

Budget Request 

17/19 

1,367,836 

194,176 

11,248 

535,652 

2,108,912 

83,180 

4,500 

5,354 

-

200 

-

14,214 

11,810 

28,000 

-

-

5,000 

6,000 

1,000 

119,400 

5,000 

120,051 

25,000 

200,000 

43,301 

68,670 

4,278,493 

5,019,173 

11,126,838 

18,254,923 

Total Optional 

Budget Request 

17/19 

160,618 

59,677 

220,295 

220,295 



• 

Best 
Practices 
,., Comprehensive Tobaa:o Control Programs ________ Section C. Recommended Funding Levels, by State 

North Dakota 

Recommended Annual Investment 

Deaths In State Caused by Smoking 

Annual average smoking-attributable deaths 

Youth aged 0-17 pro1ected to die from smoking 

Annual Costs Incurred in State from Smoking 

Total medical 

State Revenue from Tobacco Sales and Settlement 

FY 2012 tobacco tax revenue 

FY 2012 tobacco settlemen t payment 

Total state revenue frorn tobacco sales and settlement 

Percent Tobacco Revenue to Fund at Recommended Level 

Annual Total (Millions) 

$9.8 million 

1,000 

13,900 

$326 million 

$28.2 million 

$31 .5 rrnll1on 

$59 7 m1ll1on 

16% 

Annual Per Capita 
Minimum ! Recommended Minimum Recommended 

I. State and Community Interventions 
Multiple social resources working together will 
have the greatest long-terrn population impact 

II. Mass-Reach Health Communication Interventions 
Med ia interventions work to prevent smoking initi.3t1on, 
promote cessation , and shape social norrns 

Ill. Cessation Interventions 
Tobacco use treatment 1s effective and high ly cost-effective. 

IV. Surveillance and Evaluation 
Publicly funded programs should be accoun ta ble and 
demonstrate effectiveness. 

V. Infrastructure, Administration, and Management 
Complex, integrated programs requ ire experienced 
staff to provide fi scal management, accountabil ity, 
and coordina tion 

TOTAL 

$2.9 

$09 

$23 

$0.6 

$03 

$70 

$3 7 $415 $5 29 

$1.3 $129 $1.86 

$35 $3 29 $500 

$0.9 $087 $1.22 

$04 $044 $0.61 

$9.8 $1004 $13.98 

Note: A justification for each program element and the rationale for the budget estimates are provided 1n Sect ion A The funding esti mates pre­
sented are based on adjustments for changes 1n population and cost-of-living increases since Besr Praccices-2007 was p ublished. The actual 
fur1d1ng required for implementing prog rams will vary depending on state charaGe ri stics, such as prevalence of w bacco use, soc iodemographic 

factors, and other factors. See Appendix E for da ta sources on deaths, costs, revenue, and state-specific facto1s 

Centers for Disease (.)ntrol and Prevention • Office on Smoking and Health 
wwwcdc gov/tobacco • tobaccoinfo@cdc.gov • 1 (800) COC-INFO o r 1 (800) 232 -4636 

Funding Recommendation Formulas: The recoomended levels of investment (per capita and total) are presented in 2013 dollars using 2012 population estimates. 
To account for inflation and changes in the U.S. population over time. these estinates can be updated using data from the U.S. Deparlment of Labor Consumer 
Price Index and U.S. Census Bureau. 



Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund 
Status Statement 

2013-15 2015-17 
Legislative 

Actua1'1 
Appropriation 

Beginning Balance $40,654,657 

Revenue: 
Fiscal Year 1 Payments $11 ,392,521 
Fiscal Year 2 Payments 11 ,402,609 
Investment Income 43,462 

Total Revenue $22,838 ,592 

Expenditures: 
Tobacco Center -Appropriated Expenditures ($13 ,744,928) 

Department of Health: 
Local Public Health Units 
Cancer Programs 
Stroke and Cardiac Care 
Physician Loan Repayment 
Behavioral Health Loan Repayment 
Tobacco Program Grant 

Department of Human Services: 

Medicaid Grants 
Opioid Treatment 

Total Expenditures ($13 ,744,928) 

Ending Balance $49,748,321 

11 Final revenue and expenditures per state accounting system reports dated June 30, 2015. 
12 Actual July 1, 2015 balance. 
13 Actual revenue received during fiscal year 2016. 
\4 Estimated revenues based on fiscal year 2016 actual amount 

$49,748,321 

$11 ,304,243 
11 ,304,243 

56,521 
$22,665,007 

($16,548,039) 

($16,548,039) 

$55,865,289 

Revised 
Estimate 

$49,748,321 

11,480,889 
11,480,889 

142,460 
$23, 104,238 

($16,548,039) 

($16,548,039) 

$56,304,520 

\5 Proposed that North Dakota Century Code 23-42 is repealed which dissolves the Tobacco Prevention and Control agency. 

Notes: 

2017-19 
Executive 

Budget 

\2 $56,304,520 

\3 0 
\4 0 

142,460 
$142,460 

$0 \5 

(4,000,000) 
(744,804) 
(756,418) 
(480,000) 
(243,640) 
(500,000) 

(15,000,000) 
(1,799,076) 

($23,523,938) 

$32,923,042 

In November 2008, voters approved Measure No. 3, which created a tobacco prevention and control trust fund. All tobacco settlement strategic contribution fund 
payments received by the state will be deposited in the fund . After 2017, no additional strategic contribution fund payments are anticipated. 

House Bill 1015 (2009) , based on the intent of Measure No. 3, created the Tobacco Prevention and Control Committee as a state agency. Section 35, 
appropriates funding for the 2009-11 biennium. Section 36, provides retroactive funding for expenditures that occurred during the period of January 1, 2009, 
through June 30, 2009. Section 39 changes language in the measure concerning the ability to spend funding from the water development trust fund. The 
legislature required that water development trust fund moneys may only be spent pursuant to legislative appropriation. 

46 



How North Dakota Distributes 
heir Tobacco Settlement Dollars 

for water, schools, health, and tobacco prevention 
Tobacco Settlement (Master Settlement Agreement - MSA) payments to ND (actual/estimated) 

1000/oofthe 
Annual Tobacco 

Settlement 
Payments PLUS 

the Strategic 

Annual Tobacco Settlement Payments Strategic 
Contribution 

Fund 
Tobacco 

Prevention & 
Control 

Trust Fund 
ND State Contribution 
Biennium Fund 

1999-2001 

2001-2003 

2003-2005 

2005-2007 

2007-2009 

2009-2011 

2011-2013 

2013-2015 

2015-2017 

Subtotal 

2017-2019 

2019-2021 

2021-2023 

2023-2025 

2025-perpetuity 
(no end date) 

Subtotal 
Annual Tobacco 
Settlement payments 
continue for perpetu ity 

$ 52.9 

53.5 

46.2 

43.7 

75.6 

64.0 

63.0 

64.6 

63.0 

$526.5 

52.5 

52.5 

52.5 

52.5 

52.Sfr perye r 

$789.0 

45% 
Water 

Development 
Trust Fund 

$ 23.8 

24.1 

20.8 

19.7 

27.7 1 

18.2 

18. 1 

19.0 

18.1 

$189.5 

23.6 

23.6 

23.6 

23.6 

23.6/ 
per year 

$307.5 

45% 
Common 

Schools 
Trust Fund 

$ 23.8 

24.1 

20.8 

19.7 

27.7 1 

18.2 

18. 1 

19.0 

18.1 

$189.5 

23.6 

23.6 

23.6 

23.6 

23.6/ 
per year 

$307.5 

1 First of ten payments from the Strategic Contribution Fund was disbursed 
45-45-10 to water, schools and health trust funds. 

2 From 2008 forward, 80% of the Community Health Trust Fund must be 
used for tobacco prevention and control. 

3 Nine often Strategic Contribution Fund payments will be deposited in the 
Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund for a comprehensive tobacco 
prevention program administered by BreatheND. 

10% 
Community 

Health 
Trust Fund 

(ND Health Department) 

$ 5.3 

5.3 

4.6 

4.3 

6. 1 1,2 

4.1 

4.0 

4.2 

4.0 

$41.9 

5.3 

5.3 

5.3 

5.3 

5.3/ 
per year 

$68.4 

(BreatheND) 

$14. l3 

23.53 

22.83 

22.43 

22.83 

Total $105.6 

Breathe ND 
Saving lives, saving m oney. The voice of the people. 

North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy q 



What you need to know about the 
Tobacco Settlement in North Dakota 
In November 1998, North Dakota and 45 
other states signed the Master Settlement 
Agreement (MSA). The MSA is called the 
"tobacco settlement" because it settled state 
lawsuits against major tobacco companies. 
North Dakota's lawsuit cited how tobacco 
companies violated N.D. consumer protection 
and anti-trust laws (N.D. Century Code 51-15 
and 51-08.1), resulting in more N.D. youth and 
adults becoming addicted to tobacco. 

States agreed that the central purpose of the 
tobacco settlement is to reduce smoking and 
tobacco use, especially by youth. 

The tobacco settlement requires that major 
tobacco companies pay states billions each year, 
based on U.S. tobacco sales. These "annual 
payments" continue "in perpetuity" - without 
any end date. From the first payment in 1999 
through 2008, North Dakota received an average 
of more than $25 million/year. The 1999 Legisla­
ture invested only 10% in a new Community 
Health Trust Fund, funding some tobacco control 
efforts through the N.D. Department of Health. 
The other 90% was split evenly, with 45% 
deposited into a new Water Development Trust 
Fund, and 45% into the Common Schools Trust 
Fund. (The 45-45-10 distribution is in NDCC 
54-27-25.) 

From 2008 to 2017, North Dakota will receive 
10 additional "Strategic Contribution Fund" 
payments, averaging about $12 million/year, 
over and above the annual payments. Strategic 
Contribution Fund payments are based on each 
state's contribution to finalizing the tobacco 
settlement, and North Dakota's contribution was 
significant. North Dakota's negotiation assured 
that payments to small states would be large 
enough to fund a comprehensive statewide 
tobacco prevention program. The state's first 
Strategic Contribution Fund payment, received 
in April 2008, was disbursed according to the 
45-45-10 formula to water, schools and health. 

In November 2008, N.D. voters passed Initiated 
Measure 3. This law (NDCC 23-42, 54-27-25) 
requires that the remaining 9 of 10 Strategic 
Contribution Fund payments be placed in a 
Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund for 
a comprehensive tobacco prevention program. 
The law also requires 80% of the community 
health trust fund be used for tobacco control at 
the state health department. The law continues 
to direct the annual payments to trust funds for 
water (45%), schools (45%), and community 
health (10%). 

The Governor-appointed nine-member Advisory 
Committee of tobacco control experts developed 
a state plan for the new comprehensive program. 
Three Advisory Committee members, an 
Executive Committee, implement the state plan 
through the N.D. Center for Tobacco Prevention 
and Control Policy, also known as "BreatheND:' 
The state plan must follow the U.S. Centers for 
Disease Control's (CDC) Best Practices funding 
and program recommendations. 

Strategic Contribution Fund payments to 
North Dakota end in 2017. The Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Trust Fund's balance of 
about $54 million provides funding and time to 
further reduce high school smoking from 11.7% 
to the low single digits. Nearly eliminating N.D. 
youth tobacco use is within reach! 

The other tobacco settlement annual payments 
to North Dakota do not end. North Dakota will 
continue to receive an estimated $26 million/year, 
split 45-45-10 between water, schools and the 
N.D. Department of Health's Community Health 
Trust Fund. 

BreatheND 
Saving lives, saving money. The voice of the people. 

North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy ID 
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Breathe ND 
Saving hves, saving money. The voice of the people. 

ND's Comprehensive Tobacco Prevention Plan: 
Saving Lives, Saving Money 
uses tobacco settlement dollars for tobacco prevention. 

Btsl 

2009 2009 2011 20121~1 
Smoking Rates: Local Policy Implemented Smoking Rates: LPHUs helped pass 

Youth 22.4% Grants awarded CDC Best Practices Adults 21.9% 9 city ordinances 
to all Local into State/Local Youth 19.4% to prevent smoking in 

Public Health Units Tobacco Programs workplaces, protecting 
(LPHUs) 35% of ND's population 

2013 2012 Smoke Free! 

Smoking Rates: LPHUs provide assistance 
Adults 21.2% to local law enforcement 
Youth 19% on Smoke-Free Law 

11 O tobacco-free grounds 
17 smoke-free cities on smoke-free multi­

unit housing (MUH) 

2014 2014 ~"~·;~~;""";" 
~--~ 

LPHUs begin working 
on restricting 

e-cigarette 
youth access 

FDA proposes 
deeming rules to 

regulate e-cigarettes and 
other tobacco products 

Advisory Committee 
writes Letter of 

Support for 
e-cigarette 

deeming rules 

2016 2016 

Surgeon General report LPHUs pass 
publishes North Dakota's local policies* 

Smoke-Free law as a 154 tobacco-free schools 
. . 126 tobacco-free grounds 

model e-c1garette policy 18 smoke-free cities 

6,883 smoke-free MUH units 

2018 2019 2020 

education/compliance 

2015 

LPHUs helped pass 
24 city ordinances 

to restrict youth access 
toe-cigarettes 

2016 

Final FDA 
Deeming Rules 

classify e-cigarettes 
as tobacco product. 

2021 

Smoking rates: 
Adults 18.7% 
Youth 11.7% 

E-cigarette use rate: 
Youth 22.3% 

2022 

IT'S THE LAW 

North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 
701-328.5130 • 1680 East Capitol Avenue, Suite A· Bismarck, ND 58501 -5603 • BreatheND.com ·Updated December 2016 / ( 



North Dakota's comprehensive tobacco prevention plan: 

Saving Lives, Saving Money 

Goal 1: Prevent the Initiation ofTobacco Use 
Among Youth and Young Adults 

Goal 2: Eliminate Exposure to Secondhand Smoke 

Goal 3: Promote Quitting Tobacco Use 

Goal 4: Build Capacity and Infrastructure to 
Implement a Comprehensive 
Evidence-Based Tobacco Prevention 
and Control Program 

The majority of ND adults (80%) support the 
2012 ND State Smoke-Free Law, which prohibits 

smoking, including the use of e-cigarettes, 
inside all public areas, workplaces, and bars. 

80% support 

20% oppose 

Source: Support for 2012 State Law, ND Public Opinion Survey, 2015 

Tobacco Use by North Dakota High School Students 

25% Cigarettes E-cigarettes 

22.1% 21 .1% 22.4% e 22.3% 
20% 19.4% 

Question not 
19.0% asked before 

2015 

15% Smokeless 
Tobacco 

13.6% 11.7% 
10% 11.2% 11.7% 10.6% 

5% 

0% 
2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 

Source: 2005 - 2015 Youth Risk Behavior Survey 

" ••• the tobacco industry aggressively markets and promotes 
lethal and addictive products, and continues to recruit youth 
and young adults as new consumers of these products:' 

A Report of the Surgeon General, 2014 

The majority of ND adults (90.2%) support the 
continued funding of North Dakota's 2008 state law 

establishing BreatheND's comprehensive 
tobacco prevention program. 

9.8% oppose 

Source: Support for Measure 3, ND Public Opinion Survey, 2015 

ND Adults' Support for 
Raising State Cigarette Tax 

2014 - 2015 

Time-limited Trust Fund Tobacco Industry Outspends 
Tobacco Prevention in ND by 

S3S_ 2300%---
1003 __________ _ 

80% - --- -------
69.2% 69.7% 

60% 

40% 

20% 

2014 201 5 

Source: ND Public Opinion Survey, 2014, 2015 

Payments from the tobacco settlement's 

Strategic Contribution Fund end in 2017. 

This final payment to the BreatheND trust fund 

will be made in 2017. A balance of about $54 

million will be used to fund comprehensive 

tobacco prevention at BreatheND for an 

estimated seven years beyond 2017. 

Tobacco Settlement Dollars 
for Tobacco Prevention 

$34.1 
S30 _ _ ___ _, 

~ $25 _ _ ___ _, 

~ 
~ $20 _____ -l 

"'- - --- ---< 
$ 10 _____ _, 

$5 _____ -l 

$1 .4 
$0 

Tobacco Tobacco 
Prevention Industry 
Education Marketing 
Expenses Expenses 

Source: Federal Trade Commission 
(FTC) Cigarette and Smokeless Tobacco 
Reports for 2013 published in 2016 

North Dakota uses tobacco settlement dollars for tobacco prevention: The state's comprehensive tobacco prevention plan, 
Saving Lives, Saving Money, is based on proven Best Practices established by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. The 
North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy (BreatheND), along with its local public health partners work hard to 
educate and pass effective policies and interventions within their communities to prevent tobacco use among our kids. 

* Policies passed/verified from FY2009 through FY2016 include the following: 154 Tobacco-free schools, protecting 67% of all students, 
126 Tobacco-free grounds, including parks, medical, dental, chiropractic, pharmacy, optometric, hospital, long-term care, ambulance 
services, Grand Forks Air Force Base treatment facility, physical therapy, etc., 18 Smoke-free cities, with 7 cities passing ordinances 
stronger than the state law, Smoke-free Multi-unit Housing buildings (6,883 units) agreed to make properties smoke free to further 
protect our kids and adults from secondhand smoke. 

Our efforts are paying off. Youth smoking rates dropped from 22.4% in 2009 to 11 .7% in 2015. Adult smoking rates dropped from 
21 .9% in 2011 to 18.7% in 2015. However, there is more work to be done: youth e-cigarette use rates are at 22.3% among our high 
school kids, and the tobacco industry continues to target our youth with new products to hook them to a lifetime addiction to nicotine. 

!:A 
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Saving lives, saving money. The voice of the'people 

An initiated measure approved by North Dakota 
voters provides funding to North Dakota health 
units to diminish the toll of tobacco in our state 
by addressing the number one preventable 
cause of death and disease: tobacco use. 

North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 



BENEFITS AND SAVINGS FROM SMOKING DECLINES IN NORTH DAKOTA 

From 2013 to 2015, the youth smoking rate in North Dakota declined significantly, sharply reducing 
the harms and costs caused by smoking in the State. 

2013 2015 
Fewer Current 

Smokers 

High School Youth Smoking 19.0% 11.7% 2,880 

Because of these declines: 

• 11,520 fewer kids alive today in North Dakota will grow up to be addicted adult smokers 

• 3,840 fewer of today's residents in North Dakota will ultimately die prematurely from smoking 

In addition, by prompting current adult and youth smokers to quit, the state has locked in enormous 
savings over the lifetimes of each person stopped from future smoking. Put simply, the lifetime 
health care costs of smokers total at least $21 ,000 more than nonsmokers, on average, despite the 
fact that smokers do not live as long, with a somewhat smaller difference between smokers and 
former smokers. 

The substantial ongoing improvements in public health from the smoking declines detailed above 
have secured the following reductions in health care costs: 

I Future Health Cost Savings from Youth Smoking Declines $241.9 million 

Tobacco use is the number one cause of preventable death in North Dakota, killing 1,000 people 
each year, while thousands of others suffer from smoking-caused disease and disability. It is also a 
substantial drain on the state's economy, costing the state $326 million in health care costs every 
year. Providing significant funding to statewide tobacco prevention and cessation programs would 
provide additional tobacco use declines and produce enormous public health and economic benefits. 

For more on state investments in tobacco prevention and related smoking-decline benefits and savings, see: 
http://www.tobaccofreekids.org/facts issues/fact sheets/policies/prevention us state/ 

Notes and Sources. Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System. Youth Tobacco Survey, Youth Risk Behavior 
Surveillance System or specific state youth smoking surveys. Youth prevented from becoming adult smokers is calculated 
by applying the percent change in the state's youth smoking rate to the estimate of youth projected to become adult 
smokers (which is based on adjusted CDC Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System (BRFSS) prevalence data for 18-25 
year olds and U.S. census data for the population under 18 years old). Estimates of lives saved is calculated using CDC 
methodology presented in CDC, "Projected Smoking-Related Deaths Among Youth-United States," MMWR 45(44):971-
97 4, November 11 , 1996. Future health care savings from smoking reductions accrue over the lifetimes of those persons 
who quit or do not start. The lifetime health care costs of smokers total at least $21,000 more than nonsmokers, on 
average, despite the fact that smokers do not live as long; but the average savings per each adult quitter are less than that 
because adult smokers have already been significantly harmed by their smoking and have already incurred or locked-in 
extra, smoking-caused health costs. See Hodgson, TA, "Cigarette Smoking and Lifetime Medical Expenditures," Milbank 
Quarterly 70(1 ), 1992. See also, Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids factsheet, Lifetime Healthcare Costs: Smokers v. Non­
smokers v. Former Smokers; Warner, KE, et al. , "Medical Costs of Smoking in the United States: Estimates, Their Validity, 
and Their Implications," Tobacco Control 8(3):290-300, Autumn 1999. On average, the federal government reimburses the 
states for roughly 57% of their Medicaid program costs. CDC, Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control 
Programs, 2014, http ://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/stateandcommunity/best practices/. 



Facts about North Dakota's "Tobacco Settlement" {MSA) 
• $496 million --- money North Dakota has received from the "tobacco settlement, since 1999. 

• Money comes from tobacco companies, and are not tax dollars, and payments do not end. 

• In 1998, North Dakota and 45 other states signed the "tobacco settlement" -- Master Settlement 
Agreement (MSA) to settle their lawsuits against major tobacco companies. 

• North Dakota's lawsuit cited how tobacco companies violated consumer protection and anti-trust 
laws, addicting more North Dakota youth and adults to tobacco (NDCC 51-15 and 51-08.1). 

• North Dakota's lawsuit was not based on recovery of Medicaid costs. 

• MSA's purpose is to reduce tobacco use, especially by youth. 

• MSA requires that major tobacco companies pay states billions of dollars each year, "in perpetuity" -
- without any end date. 

• From 1999 to 2008, North Dakota received more than $20 million/year, with only 10% of invested in 
tobacco use prevention and health. The other 90% was split evenly between a new Water 
Development Trust Fund, and the Common Schools Trust Fund. 

• From 2008 to 2017, ND gets 10 additional payments of about $12 million/year -- "Strategic 
Contribution Fund" (SCF) payments. 

• In 2008, ND voters passed Initiated Measure 3, requiring the remaining 9of10 Strategic 
Contribution Fund payments be placed in a Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund to be used 
for a comprehensive tobacco prevention program. 

• 9 SCF payments would fund a comprehensive program for an estimated 20 years, based on initial 
projections. 

• A Governor-appointed 9-member Advisory Committee of tobacco control and health experts were 
to develop a state plan for this comprehensive program. 

• The Advisory Committee would select three of its members as the Executive Committee, to 
administer and implement the plan. 

• The Executive Committee is a state agency known as "BreatheND." 

• The state plan must follow CDC Best Practices and be funded at the CDC Best Practices 
recommended level. 

• The Strategic Contribution Fund payments to ND end in 2017, providing a Tobacco Prevention and 
Control Trust Fund balance of about $54 million. This will fund youth tobacco prevention efforts for 
7 more years, without any need for any additional funding or tax dollars. 

• 7 more years can provide enough funding and time to further reduce high school smoking from 
10.7% to the low single digits. 

• Since 2008, North Dakota has directed about 20% to youth tobacco use prevention. The other $361 
million has been split evenly between the Water Development Trust Fund the Common Schools 
Trust Fund. 

• Other MSA payments to North Dakota, estimated at more than $26 million/year, do not end. This 
funding is split 45-45-10 between water, schools and health. 

/5 
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In 1998, North Dakota and 45 other states signed the Master Settlement Agreement (MSA) to settle 
their lawsuits against major tobacco companies . North Dakota's lawsuit cited how tobacco companies 
violated consumer protection and anti-trust laws, addicting more North Dakota youth and adults to 
tobacco (NDCC 51-15 and 51-08.1). North Dakota' s lawsuit was not based on recovery of Medicaid 
costs, which are paid with both federal and state funds. 

In signing the MSA, all states agreed that the central purpose of the MSA is to reduce smoking and 
tobacco use, especially by youth. 

The MSA requires that major tobacco companies pay states billions of dollars each year, according to a 
formula based on U.S. tobacco sales. Payments continue "in perpetuity" -- without any end date. From 
1999 to 2008, North Dakota received more than $20 million/year, with only 10% of invested in tobacco 
use prevention and health. The other 90% was split evenly between a new Water Development Trust 
Fund, and the Common Schools Trust Fund . 

From 2008 to 2017, North Dakota will receive 10 additional payments of about $12 million/year. Called 
"Strategic Contribution Fund" payments, these payments are based on each state's contribution to 
finalizing the MSA. North Dakota's Strategic Contribution Fund payments are significant, because North 
Dakota was the lead for small states in negotiating the MSA. North Dakota's work assured that 
payments to small states would provide enough funding for a comprehensive statewide tobacco 
prevention program. 

In 2008, North Dakota voters passed Initiated Measure 3. This law requires that 9 of 10 Strategic 
Contribution Fund payments be placed in a Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund to be used for a 
comprehensive tobacco prevention program. These 9 payments would fund a comprehensive program 
for an estimated 20 years, based on initial projections. A Governor-appointed nine-member Advisory 
Committee of tobacco control and health experts were to develop a state plan for this comprehensive 
program. The Advisory Committee would select three of its members as the Executive Committee, to 
administer and implement the plan. The plan must follow CDC Best Practices and be funded at the CDC 
Best Practices recommended level. 

Since 1998, North Dakota has received nearly $496 million. A small portion of that total, about 25%, has 
been directed to youth tobacco use prevention and health. The other $361 million has been split evenly 
between the Water Development Trust Fund the Common Schools Trust Fund. 

The Strategic Contribution Fund deposits into the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund end in 
2017, providing a balance of about $54 million, which will fund the comprehensive program for 7 more 
years, without any need for any additional funding. This can provide enough funding and time to further 
reduce high school smoking from 10.7% to the low single digits. 

The other MSA payments to North Dakota, estimated at more than $26 million/year, do not end. This 
funding is split 45-45-10 between water, schools and health . 
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BreatheND Major Accomplishments thus far in 2015-17 ::f:f J--
Goal 1 - Prevent initiation of tobacco use among youth and young adults 

1) Smoking by N.D. high school students decreased from 19% in 2013 to 11 .7% in 
2015 (2013 & 2015 N.D. Youth Risk Behavior Survey, N.D. Department of Public 
Instruction). 
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2) Smokeless tobacco use by N.D. high school students decreased from 13.8% in 
2013 to 10.6% in 2015 (2013 & 2015 N.D. Youth Risk Behavior Survey, N.D. 
Department of Public Instruction). 
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3) In response to the emerging epidemic of e-cigarette use by N.D. high school 
students, BreatheND conducted a statewide public information campaign on the 
new e-cigarette youth protection law when it took effect in FY2016. This included 
statewide paid media, news in N.D. retailers' newsletter, mailing with signs to all 
N.D. retailers, and detailed online information. 

4) Local public health units worked with 23 Local Education Agencies (LEAs) that 
adopted comprehensive tobacco-free school policies. Statewide, 70% of LEAs 
and 70% of the student population is covered by comprehensive policies. Four 
local public health units reported that 100% of LEAs in their areas were now 
covered by comprehensive policies, bringing the total to 13. 

Number of LEAs with 
comprehensive 
tobacco-free policies 
has increased by 
169% since 
BreatheND began. 

87 ,920 North Dakota 
students in pre-K 
through 12th grade are 
learning in tobacco­
free environments. 

Accomplished in: 

1985-2008 2009-current 

23 years 7 years with BreatheND 



Goal 2 - Eliminate exposure to secondhand smoke 

5) The agency worked with local public health units to enhance compliance with the 
N.D. State Smoke-free Law. Local public health units visited 1,684 businesses. 
The agency distributed 33,209 free signs (NDCC 23-12-09 through 23-12-11 and 
NDCC 23-42-04). 

6) Local public health units reported 127 privately owned multi-unit housing 
buildings with a total of 2,296 units had smoke-free policies in place. Fourteen 
public housing buildings with 336 units became smoke-free. 

7) Seventeen tobacco-free grounds policies were enacted . 

Goal 3 - Promote quitting tobacco use 

8) In response to the need to reach populations with high smoking rates, 
BreatheND provided a $500,000 grant to N.D. Department of Health to promote 
cessation among pregnant women and American Indians through NDQuits. 

9) BreatheND funded N.D. State University to conduct and study education of 
chiropractors to identify clients who use tobacco and refer to NDQuits. 

10) BreatheND grants to local public health units resulted in up to 9,410 persons 
referred to NDQuits (soft and hard referral). 

Goal 4 - Build capacity and infrastructure 

11 )BreatheND provided more than half of the agency budget, or a total of 
$8,025,491 to all 28 local public health units reaching every county. Local public 
health units were able to pay for up to 32 local FTEs to coordinate tobacco use 
prevention activities. 

12)Staff managed 3 grant programs and supported up to 63 annual grant awards 
(about 125 grants/biennium), granting 100% of the grant line ($9,866,665), to all 
local public health units and 4 statewide organizations (nearly 60 percent of the 
total agency budget). 

13)Staff managed 9 professional service contracts totaling $3,658,453 to provide the 
following statewide services: public education through statewide health 
communications; comprehensive evaluation and program impact studies to 
increase effectiveness; technical assistance and training to improve outcomes; and 
grant reporting systems to enhance accountability. 

14)1ncreased the tobacco state aid grants program in local public health units from 
$941 ,081 in FY2015 to $1 ,056,498 in FY2016 and $1,021,424 in FY2017, to be 
consistent with CDC Best Practices and streamline local grant reporting. 

_3 



15)A majority or near majority of residents seeing BreatheND's public education 
campaigns reported gaining new information from the ads, and those who saw ads 
had significantly more awareness of the harms caused by tobacco. Even 
BreatheND ads not about quitting were effective in motivating smokers to quit. 
(Professional Data Analysts, 2015) 

16)Nearly three-fourths (73%) of N.D. adults were concerned about tobacco use in the 
state, and 78% think that reducing the number of people who smoke should be a 
priority for North Dakota. (Professional Data Analysts, 2015) 
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DR. JOHN WARFORD-AND FORMER BISMARCK CITY MAYOR 

johnsr@warfordortho.com 

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee: 

You've heard the words "comprehensive statewide tobacco prevention program" a few times today. I'm 

here today to share my personal experiences that speak to what that means and why it's the best way 

to reduce the toll tobacco takes on North Dakota. 

I've held a variety of roles in the Bismarck-Mandan community over the years. 

o I served as the mayor of Bismarck from 2002-2014. 

o I've practiced orthodontics for 43 years and counting. 

o And I am currently the Dean of the Gary Tharaldson School of Business at the University 

of Mary. 

In each of those areas of the community, I've watched Breathe ND make a meaningful impact. Let's start 

with my orthodontics practice as I've been there the longest- since 1973. 

o Every day I average 75-100 patients. 

o Which means I have personally seen and treated a large portion of the oral health needs 

in the Bis-Man community. 

o Before BreatheND's efforts, a significant portion of my patients- men and women, 

teenagers and adults- suffered from serious health effects caused by tobacco products. 

• I saw many cases of leukoplakia, the thickened, white patches that form inside 

the mouth. 

• A handful of my patients were even diagnosed with oral cancer. 

• That was particularly prevalent for patients using smokeless tobacco. 

After BreatheND embarked on educational efforts, I saw a direct and dramatic decline in use and oral 
manifestations. 

Then, as Mayor, I watched the process at work. In 2010, BreatheND worked with us to develop a smoke­

free ordinance that included bars in the city. 

• In 2011, a special election was held and 60% of the voters opted to keep the 

smoke-free ordinance. 

• This was big step forward for city officials to protect all citizens from second­

hand smoke and encourage the cessation of tobacco users. 

• The public education efforts of BreatheND were instrumental in the creation 

and sustaining of the ordinance through the vote. 

o The ordinance worked to protect the citizens of Bismarck. 

o I attribute that to the success of Breathe ND and the courage of the Bismarck City 

Commission to stand up against Big Tobacco and the hospitality bar industry, and put 
health first. ) 



I'm now serving as Dean of University of Mary's school of business, where I've continued to watch 

Breathe ND positively impact the lives of young people. 

o The program worked closely with student government and the student population to 

achieve a tobacco-free status. 

o I enjoy working on a tobacco-free campus, which means a healthy workplace for myself 

and my colleagues, and a healthy environment for students to learn. 

o I also recognize the important example this sets for the 18-22-year-olds on our campus. 

• We are instilling healthy behaviors for these young people to have even brighter 

futures. 

My experience with Breathe ND tells the story of the many levels on which this program works. 

o Changing cultural norms about the use of tobacco is not a one-size-fits-all approach. We 

need education, policy work, and strong partnerships. 

o We need to respond to the changing cultures of one generation to the next. 

o That's why BreatheND is aggressive and creative about its educational efforts, from 

working with college students to building relationships with city officials. 

o And that's just here in Bismarck. 

o These comprehensive efforts are happening all over the state. 

I can actually see the results of all this work at my practice. I have fewer patients suffering serious oral 

health conditions caused by tobacco than ever before. 

I fully support full funding for BreatheND to continue this multi-layered approach. I' m encouraged by 

the program's successes thus far and excited for what the future will bring. 

It's important to remember that BreatheND is about prevention, and not treatment reach. No other 

agency can do this work. The difference is that treatment rea ch impacts those already suffering. 

Tobacco prevention means that North Dakota will save money and lives, by having to address fewer 

chronic diseases caused by tobacco - the leading cause of preventable death and disease. 
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MARVIN J. LEIN, CEO 

MID DAKOTA CLINIC, PC 

BISMARCK, ND 
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To Whom It May Concern: 

With budgetary constraints continuing to play a major role in establishing funding 
priorities for the next biennium, I wish to express strong support for programs 
specifically established for the prevention of smoking. Such as BreathND. 

BreathND's specific funding has had a measurably positive impact on preventing 
many, many North Dakota patients from facing the detrimental health effects, 
and negative economic impacts, of smoking related illness, disability and even 
death. 

The funding already established by a vote of the people should continue to be 
preserved exclusively for BreathND's effective tobacco-prevention work and its 
many, many community health benefits. 

Respectfully, 

Marvin J. Lein, CEO 
Mid Dakota Clinic, PC 

I 
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TOBACCO PREVENTION ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBER 

PHONE: 701-777-3811 di: 5 
Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee: 

I'm here today to roll up my sleeves and talk results with you. As a doctor and a person who is 

passionate and dedicated about improving the health of our communities, results matter to me. And 

they should matter to you, because these aren't just numbers. These are your family members, your 

neighbors, your friends, and this is your wallet. To have a serious discussion about reducing health care 

costs must include this. 

BreatheND is focused on results. From the beginning, this program has carried out smart and 

effective efforts to drive successful tobacco prevention and improve health. For example, North Dakota 

passed a Smoke-Free Law in 2012 . BreatheND laid the groundwork for this law by preparing and 

assisting local communities to put policies in place. And then they followed through after the vote by 

helping every community comply with the law, which passed in every legislative district. 

Prior to the state law, Grand Forks passed a smoke free city ordinance. 

Smoking and secondhand smoke affects the heart and blood vessels, increasing the risk of heart 

attacks in both smokers, and non-smokers. Just four months after the Smoke-Free ordinance was 

implemented, we found the rate of heart attacks a North Dakota hospital treated decreased by 

24.1%. That's a quarter fewer heart attacks compared to 4 months before the law was passed. And 

that's just one hospital. Not only were families spared the emotionally taxing experience of dealing with 

a loved one hospitalized for a heart attack, they were also spared the bill. That reduction amounts to a 

cost savings of more than $150,000 in that four month period. Those results matter and were published 

in a leading tobacco related disease research journal. 

This is what BreatheND is so good at: identifying the methods that will make the greatest impact 

and thoroughly executing them. This is known as best practices- those that have the science behind 

them . 

In my career, I have treated both young people and adults suffering from severe illnesses and 

health conditions caused by tobacco. The pain and suffering I've seen nicotine-addicted users put 

themselves and their families through is needless. One case at a time, I can and do work to get people 

healthier. 

But, I also see the big picture, and that's this: tobacco is still the leading cause of preventable 

death and disease in the state. "Preventable" is the key word. This public health crisis can be ended as 

long as we are vigilant about our prevention efforts. Attacking the program that turns out the most 

significant tobacco prevention results North Dakota has ever seen is not how we beat tobacco. 

Today, I'm urging support for BreatheND, an agency solely focused on tobacco prevention and 

cessation . We can rely on Breathe ND to prevent kids from using tobacco and urge users to quit. 

I 
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I worked as a pulmonary medicine physician at the Heart and Lung Clinic in Bismarck for over 33 years. 
I am deeply appreciative of the efforts of Breathe ND, recognizing that they are effective in reducing 
nicotine dependence and as a result are saving lives as they save health care dollars. I have always been 
a strong advocate for tobacco control, but recognize that it is not physician advice that will change the 
paradigm in the fight against nicotine addiction; it is a change in cultural norms and expectations. The 
dedicated and diligent team at BreatheND has built a program that is working. The best news is that 
youth tobacco use has been cut in half, and there has been dramatic progress in limiting second hand 
smoke exposure in public spaces. Lives and money are being saved, and young lives are not being lost to 
years of dependency and disease. I see the work being done at BreatheND as challenging and I know it 
demands self-sacrifice, particularly as their work is met with active resistance from some members of 
our community. The reward for doing this work is that it saves lives. Disease management, which was 
my life's work, is vastly more expensive than primary prevention. The process of building the BreatheND 
team to the point that it is recognized as one of the best in the country has taken valuable time and the 
deep commitment of very special professionals. I see their work as being done diligently, with deep 
respect for the gravity of this public health crisis. I feel they deserve our deepest appreciation, and we 
should be facilitating their good work, not obstructing it. 

We need a comprehensive campaign to establish what works, and to creatively address a public health 
disaster that persists 52 years after the first Surgeon General's Report documenting tobacco's role as a 
public health tragedy. Nicotine remains the number one cause of avoidable disease and death in the 
United States. How is it that our youth are still falling victim? Part of the problem in dealing with 
tobacco is that there are dollars-whether tax or retail-to be made today, while the true cost of nicotine 
to society and its users is deferred for many years. But is that a valid perspective? Is the cost deferred? 
Lost days from work due to asthma, heart attack, stroke, pneumonia, Sudden Infant Death Syndrome -
these conditions are part of the acute cost of tobacco. Then there is the time people are away from 
work and their families while they work to maintain their nicotine blood levels. Smokers begin to 
withdraw from nicotine after 30 minutes. A pack a day smoker will have to spend the equivalent of 13.5 
40- hour work weeks smoking to maintain their blood levels. Over 70,000 puffs. A recent study of 
nicotine and cocaine has established that nicotine promotes cocaine addiction, not the other way 
around. Nicotine induces gene expression in the brain that literally causes new growth of neurons that 
increase stimulation of the brain tissues responsible for the development and maintenance of addiction. 
Nicotine is not only the most difficult drug to quit; it also acts to potentiate the power of cocaine to 
produce addictive behavior. It changes the brain in ways that increase responsiveness of areas 
responsible for long term memory (addictive reinforcement), and increases the high induced by cocaine. 
This research was done in rats, with the advantage of being able to selectively study precise areas of the 
brain, and to monitor behavior in controlled environments. It was published in the NEJM in 2014. The 
implications of this study are profound. The effect of nicotine required only 7 days of use before the 
effect on cocaine use was seen. That was the time needed before genetic alteration developed. The 
findings probably apply to opioids since the same neural pathways are involved in narcotic addiction. 
Epidemiological studies have clarified the link between nicotine and substance abuse. The following are 
excerpts from literature published by the Center for Tobacco Free Kids: 

"Heavy smokers are much more likely to use marijuana or harder drugs. Youths who smoke more than 
15 cigarettes a day are more than twice as likely to use an illicit drug and 16 times more likely to use 
cocaine than those who smoke less frequently -- and are 10 times more likely to use an illicit drug and 
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more than 100 times more likely to use cocaine than those who never smoke. Children who smoke a 
pack a day are also 13 times more likely to use heroin than children who smoke less heavily. In addition, 
12- to 17-year-old smokers who smoke daily are approximately 14 times more likely to have binged on 
alcohol than those who do not smoke, more than 100 times more likely to have used marijuana at least 
ten times, and 32 times more likely to have used cocaine at least ten times." 

"Teen smoking is an early warning sign for additional substance abuse problems. Youths age 12-17 who 
smoke are more than 11 times as likely to use illicit drugs and 16 times as likely to drink heavily as 
youths who do not smoke. As the U.S. Supreme Court noted in 1962, "The first step toward addiction 
may be as innocent as a boy's puff on a cigarette in an alleyway." 

"The earlier a person uses tobacco, the more likely they are to experiment with cocaine, heroin or other 
illicit drugs. Those who start smoking as a child are three times more likely to use marijuana and four 
times more likely to use cocaine than those who do not smoke as children. In addition, more than half of 
all persons who start smoking before age 15 use an illicit drug in their lifetime, compared to only a 
quarter of those who do not start smoking until they are beyond age 17 -- with those who start smoking 
before age 15 are more than three times more likely to use cocaine. And those who start smoking 
before age 15 are seven times more likely to use cocaine than those who never smoke cigarettes at all. " 

It is sobering to think, especially in light of the tragic heroin epidemic we are now facing, that this was 
published in 2002 . What have we been doing? 

Well, BreatheND has been practicing primary prevention. We urgently need them to continue their 
work to reduce youth access to, and pursuit of nicotine. We need the skills they have developed over 
the last 7-8 years and leverage them to help us confront these challenges. Please let them continue 
their work, and keep the organization intact so that they can mentor additional efforts that need to be 
ramped up in the state to confront the heroin epidemic. A teenage smoker is sending a message with 
their nicotine addiction . Tell them you love them today because they may not be here tomorrow. Our 
conversation on the subject of nicotine use has changed. So has the management of addiction to 
narcotics around the world . Managing opioid addiction thru criminalizing the activity has not controlled 
the problem. In desperation, countries have attempted to curb the epidemic by such methods as, safe 
needle programs, decriminalizing narcotics (Portugal) and even using extrajudicial killing (The 
Philippines). 

Primary prevention and mitigation are the better course of action. I believe that nicotine can be viewed 
as not simply a gateway drug, but as a substance that sets the stage for addiction to opioids, 
amphetamines, alcohol, and marijuana . Figuratively, I think of nicotine as the architect and stage 
manager of addiction, inducing structural changes in the brain that set the stage for lifelong addiction. It 
is the marketing director, and public relations department for addiction since it is both legal (denigrating 
the negative connotation of addiction) and widely available. It is the chairman of the membership drive 
because it boosts the intensity of the illicit drug reward responses in the brain. It is the Producer since is 
spreads addiction to multiple agents thru society. And it persists even after the best attempts to quit 
narcotics-97.5% of addicts in methadone and buprenorphine substitution programs continue to use 
nicotine constantly. Ultimately it is the undertaker. For our youth, we have to stay very serious about 
primary prevention of drug addiction. Nicotine is at the tip to the spear. Keep BreatheND and help 
breathe life into their mission. 

Respectfully submitted, 
James A Hughes, MD 
Bismarck, ND 
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Chairman Holmberg and Members of the Senate Appropriations Committee. 

I am Pam Crawford. I am a newly appointed member of the Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Advisory Committee and I am here today advocating for this organization. 

I AM IN SUPPORT OF SB2024 - AND I am opposed to SB 2084. 

I have had the opportunity to attend one Advisory Committee meeting and was asked about my 
passion for the work of the organization. I was at a loss in response because I was not sure that 
I was "passionate" about tobacco prevention. I knew about the health consequences of smoking 
and second-hand smoking. I was aware that it is a difficult addiction to overcome. But "passion" 
was not one of the qualities I felt I brought to the table. However, after meeting the staff and 
Advisory Committee Members I was passionate by the end of that first meeting. Their passion is 
contagious. 

This group has one sole purpose and focus. They exemplify efficiency, fiscal responsibility and 
creativity in government. They have a proven track record of making a difference for the better 

~, for North Dakota citizens. 

The funding and mission of this organization was established by North Dakota voters in 2008 
with the passage of Initiated Measure No. 3 requiring the State to develop and implement a 
comprehensive statewide tobacco prevention and control plan consistent with CDC's best 
practices. Funding for this agency is provided through the Tobacco Settlement strategic 
payments. This agency has been fiscally responsible in its utilization of those funds. 

To terminate this agency at this time appears incongruent with the wishes of North Dakota 
voters who wanted this comprehensive program, wanted this agency to develop and administer 
the program and wanted the strategic payments to be utilized to fund this program. The initiated 
measure states "Moneys received into the fund are to be administered by the executive 
committee for the purpose of creating and implementing the comprehensive plan." It goes on to 
state "If in any biennium, the tobacco prevention and control trust fund does not have adequate 
dollars to fund a comprehensive plan, the treasurer shall transfer money from the water 
development trust fund to the tobacco prevention and control trust fund in an amount equal to 
the amount determined necessary by the executive committee to fund a comprehensive plan." 
(N.D.C.C. 54-27-25(2) as written in Measure 3 effective December 4, 2008)). This is not a time­
limited commitment. There is no requirement for the agency to spend all of the trust fund within 
a specified period of time. There is no sunset clause. 

It is proven that tobacco prevention and cessation programs save lives and reduce tobacco 
related health care costs. Investing in this program is fiscally sound not only because there is a 
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proven return on the investment1 but also because this agency has operated in a very fiscally 
responsible manner. 

SB 2084 allows the strategic payments to be used for the "purposes appropriated." It entirely 
eliminates the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee. 

I urge you all to support the continuation of the work of Breathe North Dakota AND SUPPORT 
SB2024. Please continue this excellent good work and honor the wishes of the state's citizens 
who voted in favor of Measure No. 3. 

1 Declining smoking rates have contributed to reduced tobacco-related health care costs. An economic 

evaluation in 2012 found that for every dollar invested in the state Tobacco Prevention and Control 

Program, the investment actually saved the state $5 in tobacco-related hospitalizations. Dilley, J.A., 

Harris, J.R., Boysun, M.J., Reid, T.R., 2012. Program, policy, and price interventions for tobacco control: 
quantifying the return on investment of a state tobacco control program. American Journal of Public 

Health 102, e22-28; quoted in TOBACCO FACTS Washington State 2015 Update; page 1, 
http://www.doh. wa .gov /Porta ls/ 1/Documents/Pu bs/340-149-Wash ingtonTobacco Facts. pdf (last visited 

January 9, 2017) 
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Theresa Will, RN/ Administrator 
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Good afternoon, Chairman Holmberg and Members of the Senate Appropriations Committee. 

My name is Theresa Will, I am the Director at City-County Health District, the Local Public Health Unit for 

Barnes County, located in Valley City. I am here to voice my support for SB2024. This bill supports the 

vote of the people and their decision to invest a small portion of tobacco settlement dol lars for tobacco 

prevention - not only f or 7 years, but through its entirety. With this program, we have made remarkable 

progress in decreasing the tobacco use rates. The partnership between public health and the Center for 

Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy is helping North Dakotans live healthier lives: 

o a local ordinance that protects our youth from the dangers of electronic cigarettes; 

o smoke free parks; 

o tobacco free County and City grounds and vehicles; 

o model school policies in all schools within our county; 

o and we assist apartment managers with the tools to help their buildings become smoke-free 

so all tenants can have healthier, smoke-free homes. 

This local policy work could not be achieved without the local policy grant, and technical assistance from 

the Center, which has supported approximately 1.3 FTE in Barnes County over the past many years. 

Before the vote of the people, before we had our comprehensive program, outcomes were limited. With 

the leadership of the Center we now see consistent results across the state. 

Each year, the tobacco industry spends $10.5 billion shrewdly marketing its products in the US, 

But, we can overcome that challenge IF we fully sustain this level of successful, statewide work. As 

Governor Burgum noted in his address last week, change is not linear, change is exponential. Without a 

strong tobacco prevention and control program, which is fully based in irrefutable science, the toll of 

tobacco use will increase exponentially. 
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Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, hello, my name is Heather Austin and I'm the 
Executive Director for Tobacco Free North Dakota. 

Today, I am here to offer our support for SB 2024. It is our view that continued funding of 
North Dakota's comprehensive tobacco prevention program delivered by BreatheND is vital to 
preventing North Dakota youth from developing a lifelong addition to tobacco and nicotine. 

TFND and many other organizations have all signed a formal Resolution to Support the 
Continuation of North Dakota's CDC-Based Comprehensive Tobacco Control Program Delivered 
by the North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy (BreatheND) Through 
the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund. 

This Resolution has been signed by: The North Dakota Society for Respiratory Care, Grand 
Forks Board of Health, Lake Region District Health, Upper Missouri District Health, Ransom 
County Board of Health, City-County Health District Board of Health, Nelson-Griggs District 
Health Unit, Towner County Safe Communities Coalition, SAFE Coalition of Fargo, Central Valley 
Health District, Foster County, and Tobacco Free North Dakota . 

The Resolution reads as follows: WHEREAS tobacco use remains North Dakota's leading 
preventable cause of death, with 1,000 North Dakotans dying each year from their own 
smoking, and 14,000 kids under the age of 18 who now live in North Dakota are projected to 
die prematurely due to smoking; 

WHEREAS tobacco use in North Dakota also imposes a staggering economic burden, with 
smoking-caused direct healthcare costs alone amounting to $326 million each year, and each 
North Dakota household paying $795 per year in "hidden" state and federal taxes for smoking­
caused government expenditures; 

WHEREAS the tobacco industry is continuously introducing new nicotine products and 
marketing them to youth through product innovations, technology, and flavorings, resulting in a 
high school e-cigarette use rate of 22.3%; 

WHEREAS new nicotine products often circumvent existing local, state and federal laws, such as 
legal age of sale restrictions, advertising restrictions, smoke-free laws, and tax laws; 

WHEREAS on November 4, 2008, 54% of North Dakota voters approved Initiated Measure #3 to 
allocate the state's Strategic Contribution Fund payment to a Best Practices tobacco prevention 
program fully-funded at the CDC recommended level, and public support for this program has 
grown significantly to 81.7% as of 2016; 
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WHEREAS the establishment and success of North Dakota's Center for Tobacco Prevention and 
Control Policy, the nation's only fully-funded comprehensive tobacco prevention program, has 
contributed to a reduction in adult tobacco use from 21.9% in 2011 to 18. 7% in 2015, and a 
reduction in youth tobacco initiation from 22.4% in 2009 to 11.7% in 2015; 

WHEREAS the North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy, in order to 
continue to succeed in effectively preventing youth initiation and in reducing tobacco-caused 
death and disease, and to respond effectively to new tobacco product introductions, operates 
with an independent Governor appointed committee of tobacco control policy and medical 
experts to insulate the program from political and tobacco-industry influence and to effectively 
use proven scientific approaches; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that, in keeping with North Dakota voters' establishment of 
and support for the North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy and its 
mission of Saving Livings-Saving Money: ND's Comprehensive State Plan to Prevent and Reduce 
Tobacco Use, TFND supports the continuation of North Dakota's Center for Tobacco Prevention 
and Control Policy funded by the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund. 

• Thank you. 

• 

Heather Austin 
Executive Director, Tobacco Free North Dakota 
Cell: 701-527-2811 
heather@tfnd.org 
www.tfnd.org 
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Chairman Holmberg, and members of the Senate Appropriation, Committee. 

My name is Sommer Wilmeth; I am a senior at Century High School. I am speaking on 
behalf of the Century High School Students Against Destructive Decisions (SADD) 
students. I am here to provide testimony in support for Senate Bill 2024. 

With the work of Breathe ND, local public health units, and community members of all 
ages since the program's implementation in 2008, the youth smoking rate has been cut 
in half. 

This is an incredible achievement for our state. However, the tobacco industry is clever 
and continues to find ways to addict kids to nicotine. Their latest attempt - electronic 
cigarettes. 

When walking from my car to school in the mornings before class, I can say on an 
average day I see 5 to 10 classmate's vaping in their cars. It appears the tobacco 
industry's slick advertising has created a persona that vaping is cool and harmless. 
Personally, I have seen my peers and a very close friend fall into big tobacco's trap. 
Since I have turned 18 I have been asked multiple times to buy nicotine products. 

Thank goodness I'm educated on the effects of these products and able to explain to 
my peers how they are being targeted by big tobacco. I learned these skills back in 
October when I attended the Bismarck Tobacco Prevention Youth Summit, funded by 
Breathe ND. At the summit there were about 60-70 youth from area schools each being 
trained to be a youth advocate in tobacco prevention, just like me. At the summit we 
learned how the tobacco industry uses slick advertising to get youth hooked. 

The tobacco industry will never stop, whether it's through traditional cigarettes, 
e-cigarettes, or smokeless tobacco. This means that North Dakota needs to continue to 
take a stand against big tobacco and fund the good work being done through 
BreatheND. 

Please support Senate Bill 2024 because by having a fully funded tobacco prevention 
and control program in North Dakota, based off of the Centers for Disease Control's 
Best Practices, together we can continue to decrease youth tobacco use rates and 
sustain a generation free from the addiction to nicotine . 
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Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee. Good afternoon, 

I'm Becky Anderson, a registered respiratory therapist with a 37-year career serving the people 

of ND. As a respiratory therapist, I have been on the front lines of the tobacco epidemic for my 

entire career. My early professional years were marked by caring for people with chronic 

disease, especially those with COPD and lung cancer. Those at the end of their lives spent a 

considerable amount oftime hospitalized. As an impressionable young therapist, I remember 

their names, I remember their faces, and I remember their stories. I remember the physical 

devastation and emotional burden which are the result of nicotine addiction. I have sat beside 

the bed of thousands of patients, trying to bring some small measure of comfort and light at a 

time many of them were at the end of their lives .. . dying way too young in their SO's and 60's, a 

few in their 70's. As they shared their stories with me, it always struck me as tragic that 

nicotine addiction is an epidemic which starts in childhood, some under ten years old, and 

90% of tobacco users start before the age of 18. This is disturbing on many levels and 

significant because children are becoming addicted to nicotine when their brains are still 

developing. The result is that they become addicted easier and have a more difficult time 

quitting. 

Healthcare professionals seek out evidence of "best practice" to build our care programs. We 

rely on evidence which shows the best improvement in patient outcomes at the best cost. The 

evidence is clear that a comprehensive State plan to reduce tobacco use is paramount in 

combating both the economic burden and the personal devastation caused by nicotine 

addiction. Tobacco is the leading cause of chronic disease and death ... and it's preventable. My 

generation has been decimated by the use of tobacco. ND's children deserve a better future ... 

and it's within our grasp. It's important to sustain the gains we have made through 

BreatheND's great work. We have impressive results. This was the legacy promised to the 

children of ND through the tobacco settlements and that promise should be delivered. 
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Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee. I'm Alison 

Harrington, a respiratory therapist. On average I counsel 5-15 tobacco users a day. I always ask 

them at what age did they start using tobacco, the most common answer is between 13-15 

years old. The youngest age I've heard is as young as 5 years old. The younger they are when 

they start using tobacco, the more addicted they are and the harder it is for them to quit. 

I counsel tobacco users of all ages who want to quit for many different reasons but most 

commonly it is for their health, their family, they've experienced a life threatening event, 

they've been diagnosed with a chronic disease or lung cancer, or they are pregnant. 

As a respiratory therapist I see what smoking does to the lungs at all age levels, from the young 

children who are exposed to 2nd and 3rd hand smoke that have asthma, to the adults who have 

been diagnosed with lung cancer or Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD). 

This addiction is like no other, it cannot be quit very easily despite what many think. As part of 

my profession, I help pregnant women through nicotine addiction counseling. In North Dakota 

nearly 14% of pregnant women are hooked on nicotine. This is a serious health situation and 

addiction is real and nearly impossible for some people to quit. This is why we need to fund 

prevention - we know that 90 percent of our youth start smoking by their 18th birthday. If we 

can prevent this, we are close to solving the problem of tobacco addiction. 

Tobacco kills 1,000 North Dakotans each year and costs us $326 million in health care each 

year. If we want to reduce health care costs, we must address the leading cause of preventable 

death and disease - tobacco use. If we can prevent children from ever starting we can cut down 

on the cost of healthcare treatment. This good work must be kept at BreatheND. They know 

how to get the job done. It's about prevention. We need to start our focus on the End Game 

and reduce tobacco use to the low single digits, and the way we do this is to prevent our 

children from ever starting. We need to make the world a better place for them. They are our 

future. I 
( 



• 

:I: AMERICAN LUNG ASSOCIATION \,, 
I IN NORTH DAKOTA 

5 A J/JJ l)b f',; 
/ - /!- 17 

Kristie Wolff - Program Manager, American Lung Association in North Dakota 

Support for SB 2024 

4-/3 

North Dakota Senate Appropriations Committee 

January 11, 2017 

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, my name is Kristie 

Wolff, I am the Manger of Tobacco Prevention and Advocacy for the American Lung Association 

in North Dakota . 

Today I am here to speak in support of SB 2024. 

Currently 80% of my work at The American Lung Association is funded by a grant from the 

Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy also known as BreatheND. 

Over the past year my work has included developing a partnership with Fire Depts. across the 

state and with the ND Fire Prevention Association. This partnership has focused on education 

related to smoking material fires. 

According to the National Fire Prevention Association, smoking material fires are the leading 

cause of fire deaths in the United States and 25% of people who die in a smoking-material fire 

are not the smoker. 

In the spring of 2016 cities across the state saw a significant spike in smoking material fires. To 

help bring awareness to the issue, several ND fire departments adopted Operation Butt Out, a 

locally developed education program that focuses on how to safely extinguish smoking 

materials "all the way, every time." 

The American Lung Association in ND became a resource for participants in this program by 

providing education on smoke free multi-unit housing policies and e-cigarette fires and 

explosions. BreatheND's numerous resources were a valuable tool used during this education 

process. 

This important work has only just begun. There is so much more to do. It is critical to continue 

to fund North Dakota's tobacco prevention program through BreatheND. This agency has a 

single focus and a proven track record of success. Today I am asking the members of this 

committee to please give a do pass recommendation on SB 2024. Thank you for your time and 

consideration, I would be happy to answer any questions. 
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Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations 
Committee, 

My name is Reba Mathern-Jacobson. I am the Director for Tobacco Programs 
with the American Lung Association in North Dakota. For the past two years, 
American Lung Association has worked in collaboration with the ND Center for 
Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy on a project to integrate tobacco 
treatment into behavioral health settings, addressing the disparity of this group 
that purchases approximately 40% of all tobacco in our country. 

People with mental illness and/or substance use disorders have traditionally 
been left out of tobacco treatment efforts, and have even been encouraged to 
smoke. While smoking rates in the general population have been on a steady 
downward trend, smoking rates in this population remain high, making them 
the largest disparity group. Three fourths of smokers have a past or present 
problem with mental illness or addiction. At least 65% of people in treatment 
for substance use disorders also smoke cigarettes. 

As a consequence, smoking is the number one cause of death in people with 
mental illness or addiction. People with a serious mental illness die 25 years 
younger than the rest of the population, due to their tobacco use. People with 
an alcohol addiction die more often of tobacco related illnesses than from 
alcohol. 

In general, tobacco addiction has been addressed in the primary care system. 
We now know that people with behavioral health disorders need, and in fact 
want, treatment opportunities and support within the context of their 
behavioral health care. 

Tobacco Use Disorder is a behavioral health condition in the DSM-5 (Diagnostic 
and Statistical Manual which provides the standard definition of mental 
illnesses and addictions). Behavioral health professionals have great training 
and experience in addictions; they are experts in psychosocial treatment; they 
see their patients more regularly and for longer sessions. Tobacco use is 
inextricably related to the problems presented due to mental illness and other 
addictions. Quitting smoking is associated with improved mental health 
outcomes and even a 25% increased likelihood of long-term abstinence from 
alcohol and drugs. 

Bismarck, ND 58501 

I 
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1-800-LUNGUSA LungND.org 



So what needs to happen to integrate tobacco treatment into behavioral health settings? As has • 
been happening across the nation, North Dakota's behavioral health professionals need 
professional education; their agencies and workplaces need technical support to implement best-
practice policy and procedures. 

Last year the American Lung Association collaborated with the Center to provide this professional 
education. We have offered webinars (Tobacco 101: A Webinar for Mental Health Professionals 
and Partners" and "Pharmacology Update: Nicotine Dependency Treatment for those with Mental 
Illness or Addiction") in a variety of sites. We provided a national speaker to the annual Addiction 
Counselors Association spring conference for plenary address and breakout session. We provided 
a two-day training "Treating Tobacco Dependence in Behavioral Health Settings" with Dr. Jill 
Williams and the team from Rutgers University last summer. This included free CEUs for doctors, 
nurses, psychologists, licensed addiction counselors and social workers. 

Everyone who has attended our trainings has been offered technical assistance to implement the 
learnings into their work environments. I work closely with a growing number of sites. This 
includes review of their policies and procedures, and recommendations for improvements. One 
beauty is that this includes private and public systems, so that improvements can be 
comprehensive, sustainable and statewide. 

Every time I address a group, they want more information and training. This coming spring and 
summer we will be providing Dr. Williams' one-day training to all Department of Human Services 
behavioral health professionals and their community-based counterparts. We are developing a 
webinar series specific to addiction professionals in North Dakota which will include technical 
assistance calls with a national expert. Providing CEU's for our state's professionals is a priority. 

Clients and their workers will have greater success with mental health and addictions treatment 
when tobacco treatment is integrated into behavioral health settings. There are good strides in 
North Dakota but much work is yet to be done. 

This good work could not continue without the support from the ND Center for Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Policy. The ND Center is instrumental in this developing project - to 
integrate tobacco treatment into behavioral health settings to address the leading disparity group 
that purchases 40% of all tobacco in our country. 

Thank you, 
Reba Mathern-Jacobson, MSW 
Director Tobacco Control 

1-800-LUNGUSA LungND.org 
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Chairman Holmberg, and members of the Senate Appropriation, Committee. My name is 

Mara Yborra; I am speaking on the behalf of the Healthy Community Coalition from the 

United Tribes Technical College. I am here to provide testimony and support for SB 

2024. 

The Healthy Community Coalition is a group comprised of representatives from campus 

departments who focus on health initiatives for the campus. We are fortunate enough 

to have received technical support and funding through Bismarck Burleigh Public 

Health, Tobacco Prevention and Control program to work on adopting a comprehensive 

tobacco free college policy to include the entire campus. 

A majority of the students at United Tribes Technical College are Native American 

and their family members live on campus with them. Native Americans are 

disparately affected by tobacco. There is a 42% smoking rate for Native Americans 

in North Dakota. The tobacco industry is counting on this disparity and the college 

age group becoming addicted to their products in order to secure sales for the 

future. United Tribes is committed to the health and well-being of the children, 

students, faculty and staff of our campus, and to visitors who come here. 

Bismarck Burleigh Public Health (BBPH) Tobacco Prevention Program provided technical 

support through education, resources and information about the importance of 

strengthening UTTC's smoke-free policy to a comprehensive tobacco free policy to 

include the entire campus. We were able to move forward on passing a tobacco free 

• policy at the United Tribe Technical College in 2013 with implementation in 2014. We 



have learned that a tobacco-free policy provides an environment that reinforces healthy 

behavior. As the policy removes the immediate threat of exposure to secondhand 

smoke, it also decreases the use of tobacco and the number of people who start 

smoking in college. It establishes a healthy learning environment while maintaining our 

respect for Native American traditions. 

This funding also gave us the available resources for an implementation plan that 

included: tobacco- free signs, interior sidewalk signs for the buildings because of the 

cold weather, bathroom posters, payroll stutters, window decals for campus building 

doors and residential homes, compliance cards and ND Quit Ads in their newsletter. 

The United Tribes Technical College has become the first tribal college in North 

Dakota to adopt a "Tobacco Free" campus policy and 3rd in the United States. At the 

time the policy passed, UTTC joined 811 other colleges to have a tobacco free policy 

for their campus. This policy trend has grown to 1,427 colleges and universities 

across the US. They recognized the value of tobacco-free policy will benefit their 

students in present and the future by providing a healthy and safe environment to 

live and learn. United Tribes Technical College now protects approximately 900 

students, faculty, staff and families from exposure to tobacco. 

Please support SB 2024 because it continues to provides a fully funded comprehensive 

tobacco prevention and control program for North Dakota. We would not have been 

able to accomplish the work we have done over the years at United Tribes Technical 

College without this program. 

• 

• 

• 



• TESTIMONY SUPPORT OF SB 2024 

Susan Kahler 
Bismarck Burleigh Public Health 
500 East Front Ave 
Bismarck, ND 58506 
(701) 355-1597 
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Chairman Holmberg, and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee. My name 

is Susan Kahler, Tobacco Prevention and Control Coordinator at Bismarck Burleigh 

Public Health Unit (BBPH). I am here to provide testimony and support for SB 2024. 

Bismarck Burleigh Public Health Tobacco Prevention and Control Program receives 

funding from BreatheND to implement the Saving Lives-Saving Money: ND's 

Comprehensive State Plan to prevent and Reduce Tobacco Use based on Center for 

Disease Control Best Practices. We have been able to accomplish many tobacco/smoke-

• free policies and ordinances. 

• 

BreatheND's coordinated efforts showed great leadership when the ND Smoke-free law 

passed in 2012. BreatheND supplied our office with resources for the smoke-free law 

and we were able to go out into the community to educate the public and business 

owners on the new law. We worked with our local law enforcement to developed a 

protocol to address complaints of violations. On a regular basis, our office receives calls 

from our community members about violations. Some are straight forward, smoking 

within 20 feet from the building or individual smoking e-cigarette inside a building. In 

other situations, we have requested assistance from BreatheND staff for guidance. 

One example is the ND Smoke-free law does not cover inside individual apartments or 

condo owners, it only covers the common areas. On a routine basis, we have received 

calls from tenants/owners asking for assistance with adopting a smoke-free policy for 

the entire building because of the health effects they are experiencing from secondhand 

smoke. BreatheND worked with the Public Health Law Center to develop model smoke-



free policies for apartment owners to adopt. To address this situation, came the 

development of "Smoke-Free Housing North Dakota". This program provides resqurces 

to tenants and landlords about smoke-free policy. Our Tobacco Prevention and Control 

program provides technical assistance. So far, 154 buildings and 1,498 units have 

smoke-free policy in the Bismarck/Burleigh County area. 

Please support SB 2024 because it continues to provides a fully funded comprehensive 

tobacco prevention and control program for North Dakota. We have made great strides 

in our community with reducing tobacco use rates and protecting individuals from 

secondhand smoke. 

• 

• 

• 



Senate Appropriations Committee 

January 11, 2017 

SB 2024 

_5,fj J,OJ,~S'"/ 
1~11~17 

J:f I 7 

Good afternoon, Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations 

Committee. My name is Deb Knuth, Government Relations Director of North 

Dakota American Cancer Society Cancer Action Network. 

North Dakota is ranked #1 in the nation when it comes to funding for statewide 

tobacco prevention and cessation programs. Tobacco use causes 341 smoking 

attributable cancer deaths each year in our state, meaning that more than 25% of 

all cancer deaths have tobacco directly to blame. But now these lifesaving 

programs are on the chopping block. 

It's critical to keep funding for tobacco prevention and cessation programs. If the 

Legislature cuts funding for tobacco control programs, we're at risk of losing a 

decade of progress significantly reducing tobacco use, especially among kids. 

These programs save lives! Keep North Dakota #1 by maintaining funding for 

tobacco prevention and cessation programs. 

Thank you so much for allowing me to testify in support of funding for North 

Dakota's tobacco prevention and cessation programs. 
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"Your Public Health Professionals" lf-t fl 
DIVIDE COUNTY 
Divide Co. Cou1thouse 
P.O. Box 69 
300 Main St. N 
Crosby, ND 58730 
Phone 701-965-68 13 
Fax 701-965-6814 

MCKENZIE COUNTY 
No1t hem Plains Building 
P.O. Box 1066 
109 W 5'" St. 
Watford City, ND 58854 
Phone 70 1-444-3449 
Fax 70 1-842-6985 

Senate Bill 2024 

MOUNTRAIL COUNTY 
Memo1ial Building 
P.O. Box 925 
18 2"'1 Ave SE 
Stanley, ND 58784 
Phone 701-628-295 1 
Fax 701-628-1 294 

ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy Budget 
1 :30 p.m., January 11, 2017, Senate Appropriations 

W ILLIAMS COUNTY 
110 W. Bdwy, Ste 101 
Williston, ND 58801-6056 
Phone 701-774-6400 
Fax 701-577- 8536 
Toll Free 1-877-572-3763 

Good Afternoon, Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee. I 
am Javayne Oyloe, Executive Officer of Upper Missouri District Health Unit, which provides 
services in Divide, McKenzie, Mountrail and Williams Counties. 

The track record of the Center is impressive. You have heard testimony in regard to the 
substantial decrease in tobacco use across our state due to the single-focused approach using 
voter approved tobacco settlement funds. These are not just numbers or percentages but our 
fellow community members, friends and family who were finally able quit using tobacco or they 
are the children who will never start. 

What you may not have heard or seen is the track record of those who work at the Center in 
partnership with local public health. For example, when Upper Missouri District Health Unit 
employees are asked to provide tobacco prevention education as part of an oilfield employee 
safety meeting at 6:30 in the morning or to provide public health expertise during an evening city 
commission meeting in regard to licensing e-cigarette businesses, the Center staff are there to 
help. The Center employees start early in the morning and often work late into the evening and 
weekends. The dedication from the Center and local public health creates the results we have 
seen and what makes North Dakota stand out as a model for the nation. 

Looking at the track record of documented results, leadership from the Center, the dedication of 
public health professionals and the decision of North Dakota voters to have a fully funded 
separate agency, the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy must remain fully 
funded. It is about the health of our neighbors, friends and families. These are the people who 
voted to create the Center. These are the people who ask us to protect them from tobacco harms. 
Please help us to continue making critical tobacco-prevention gains. Vote in support of SB 2024. 

Sincerely 

J avayne Oyloe 
Executive Officer 
Upper Missouri District Health Unit 
701-774-6400 
joyloe@umdhu.org 

"It takes safe, healthy cities with vibrant, walkable main streets in downtowns to attract and retain a skilled 
workforce". Governor Burgurn. We too want safe, healthy communities. 



Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund 
Status Statement 
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2013-15 2015-17 

Legislative 
Actual11 

Appropriation 

Beginning Balance $40,654,657 

Revenue: 
Fiscal Year 1 Payments $11 ,392,521 
Fiscal Year 2 Payments 11 ,402,609 
Investment Income 43,462 

Total Revenue $22,838,592 

Expenditures: 
Tobacco Center-Appropriated Expenditures ($13,744,928) 

Department of Health: 
Local Public Health Units 
Cancer Programs 
Stroke and Cardiac Care 
Physician Loan Repayment 
Behavioral Health Loan Repayment 
Tobacco Program Grant 

Department of Human Services: 
Medicaid Grants 
Opioid Treatment 

Total Expenditures ($13,744,928) 

Ending Balance $49,748,321 

11 Final revenue and expenditures per state accounting system reports dated June 30, 2015. 
12 Actual July 1, 2015 balance. 
\3 Actual revenue received during fiscal year 2016. 
\4 Estimated revenues based on fiscal year 2016 actual amount. 

$49,748,321 

$11 ,304,243 
11 ,304,243 

56,521 
$22,665,007 

($16,548,039) 

($16,548,039) 

$55,865,289 

Revised 
Estimate 

$49, 7 48,321 \2 

11,480,889 \3 

11 ,480,889 \4 

142,460 
$23, 104,238 

($16,548,039) 

($16,548,039) 

$56,304,520 

\5 Proposed that North Dakota Century Code 23-42 is repealed which dissolves the Tobacco Prevention and Control agency. 

Notes: 

2017-19 
Executive 

Budget 

$56,304,520 

0 
0 

142,460 
$142,460 

$0 \5 

(4,000,000) 
(744,804) 
(756,418) 
(480,000) 
(243,640) 
(500,000) 

(1 5,000,000) 
(1,799,076) 

($23,523,938) 

$32,923,042 

In November 2008, voters approved Measure No. 3, which created a tobacco prevention and control trust fund. All tobacco settlement strategic contribution fund 
payments received by the state will be deposited in the fund. After 2017, no additional strategic contribution fund payments are anticipated. 

House Bill 1015 (2009), based on the intent of Measure No. 3, created the Tobacco Prevention and Control Committee as a state agency. Section 35, 
appropriates funding for the 2009-11 biennium. Section 36, provides retroactive funding for expenditures that occurred during the period of January 1, 2009, 
through June 30, 2009. Section 39 changes language in the measure concerning the ability to spend funding from the water development trust fund. The 
legislature required that water development trust fund moneys may only be spent pursuant to legislative appropriation. 
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Tobacco 
Settlement 
Dollars for 
Tobacco 
Prevention 

North Dakota 
Department 

of Health 

. . 
Local Public 

Health Units in 
every county 

Brea{1 eND 
Saving lives, saving money. The voice of the people. 

Provides Services 
to Grantees 

8 positions 
Policy and Prevention 

Management of State Plan: Saving Lives Saving Money. 
Grantee Management 

Policy Management and Technical Assistance 
Ask Advise and Refer (AAR) Management 

Health Communications Management and Technical Assistance 
Program Evaluation Management 

Tobacco Prevention Training Coordination 

I 
·:y Partners . :' 

·. · Receiving Funding 
-,.<''. -" "' :~- / 

Goal 1: Prevent the Initiation of 
Tobacco Use Among Youth 
and Young Adults 

Goal 2: Eliminate Exposure to 
Secondhand Smoke 

Goal 3: Promote Quitting Tobacco Use 

Goal 4: Build Capacity and Infrastructure 
to Implement a Comprehensive 
Evidence-Based Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Program 

l:'Z . 
~~ . .c::~f\merican Tobacco Free 

North Dakota 
· Research 

liung Efforts 
"; Association 
'A~wc 1 ,.";,"'"': ,,.."• '• c..;-: k 

$500,000 Grant 
for Cessation Reach 

32 Tobacco Prevention Positions: 3.5 Positions 
Point of Sale Grant/ 

1 Position Current Research 
Tobacco Prevention 
Policy and Education Tobacco Marketing Surveillance 

Behavioral Health Grant: 
Integrating Tobacco Counseling 

into Treatment 

Tobacco Prevention Education 
and Advocacy: E-cigarettes, 

Multi-unit Housing/Fire Prevention, 
Youth Tobacco Prevention 

Tobacco Prevention Chiropractic Study for 
Education and Advocacy Ask Advise and Refer (AAR) - NDSU 

Previous Research 
E-cigarette - Nicotine Content 

and Packaging - NDSU 

Tobacco Smoke Pollution in 
Hospitality Venues Before and After 

Smoke Free Law- NDSU 

Impact of Partial Smoke Free Law 
on Incidence of Heart Attacks 

at a Rural Community Hospital - UND 

Tobacco Prevention 
Model Policies 

Policy Research 

- . --. 



SENA TE BILL NO. 2004 
LISTING OF PROPOSED CHANGES TO BASE LEVEL 

Department - State Department of Health 

Proposed funding changes: 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Description 
Adjusts funding for cessation services from the community health trust fund to 
the tobacco prevention and control trust fund. The Center may contract for 
cessation services with the State Department of Health. The funding authority for 
cessation is provided to the State Department of Health from the tobacco prevention 
and control trust fund in the event the Center contracts with the department for 
cessation services. 

Adjusts the funding source for the colorectal screening program to provide funding 
from the community health trust fund 

Adjusts the funding source for the suicide prevention program to provide funding from 
the community health trust fund 

Adjusts the funding source for the cardio vascular disease program to provide funding 
from the community health trust fund 

Adjusts the funding source for the stroke program to provide funding from the 
community health trust fund 

Total proposed funding changes 

Other proposed changes: 

FTE 
General 

Fund 

($669, 106) 

($1 , 189,364) 

($150,000) 

($698,984) 

($2, 707,454) 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff 
for Senator Mathern 

February 8 , 2017 

Special 
Funds 

($3,200,000) 
$3,200,000 

$669, 106 

$1 ,189,364 

$150,000 

$698,984 

$2,707,454 

Total 

$0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

$0 

Adds a section to the bill to amend Section 54-27-25 related to the tobacco settlement trust fund to remove the restriction requiring 80 percent of the transfers 
from the tobacco settlement trust fund to the community health trust fund must be used for tobacco prevention and control and to remove the transfer from 
the water development trust fund to the tobacco prevention and control trust fund if there is not adequate funding for the comprehensive plan. 

2 Adds a section to repeal Chapter 23-38 related to the community health grant program. 



SENA TE BILL NO. 2024 
LISTING OF PROPOSED CHANGES TO BASE LEVEL 

Department - Comprehensive Tobacco Control Advisory Committee 

Proposed funding changes: 

Description 
Adds funding for base payroll changes. 

2 Adds 1 FTE health communications coordinator. 

3 Increases funding for operating expenses, including rent, information technology, and 
operating fees and services. 

4 Increases funding for grants to meet CDC Best Practices. 

5 Adds funding for cessation services. The Center may provide funding from the 
tobacco prevention and control trust fund to the State Department of Health for these 
services. 

Total proposed funding changes 

Other proposed changes: 

1 None 

FTE 

1.00 

General 
Fund 

$0 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff 
for Senator Mathern 

February 8 , 2017 

Special 
Funds Total 

$42,512 $42,512 

0 

404, 199 404,199 

1,260,173 1,260, 173 

3,200,000 3,200,000 

$4,906,884 $4,906,884 

~ 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2024 

"Section 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 and 2 of section 54-27-25 of the North Dakota 
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-27-25. Tobacco settlement trust fund - Interest on fund - Uses 

1. There is created in the state treasury a tobacco settlement trust fund. The fund 
consists of the tobacco settlement dollars obtained by the state under subsection 
IX(c)(1) of the master settlement agreement and consent agreement adopted by 
the east central judicial district court in its judgment entered December 28, 1998 
[Civil No. 98-3778] in State of North Dakota, ex rel. Heidi Heitkamp v. Philip 
Morris, Inc. Except as provided in subsection 2, moneys received by the state 
under subsection IX(c)(1) must be deposited in the fund . Interest earned on the 
fund must be credited to the fund and deposited in the fund. The principal and 
interest of the fund may be appropriated to the attorney general for the purpose 
of enforcing the master settlement agreement and any disputes with the 
agreement. All remaining principal and interest of the fund must be allocated as 
follows: 

a. Transfers to a community health trust fund to be administered by the state 
department of health. The state department of health may use funds as 
appropriated for community-based public health programs and other public 
health programs, including pmgrams 'Nith emphasis on greventing or reducing 
tobacco usage in this state. Transfers under this subsection must equal ten 
percent of total annual transfers from the tobacco settlement trust fund of which a 
minimum of eighty percent must be used for tobacco prevention and control. 

b. Transfers to the common schools trust fund to become a part of the principal 
of that fund. Transfers under this subsection must equal forty-five percent of total 
annual transfers from the tobacco settlement trust fund. 

c. Transfers to the water development trust fund to be used to address the long­
term water development and management needs of the state. Transfers under 
this subsection must equal forty-five percent of the total annual transfers from the 
tobacco settlement trust fund . 

2. There is created in the state treasury a tobacco prevention and control trust fund. 
The fund consists of the tobacco settlement dollars obtained by the state under 
section IX(c)(2) of the agreement adopted by the east central judicial district court 
in its judgment entered December 28, 1998 [Civil No. 98-3778] in State of North 
Dakota, ex rel. Heidi Heitkamp v. Philip Morris, Inc. Interest earned on the fund 
must be credited to the fund and deposited in the fund . Moneys received into the 
fund are to be administered by the executive committee for the purpose of 
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. d . . h h . I ·1,. ~th {J!J creating an implementing t e compre ens1ve pan.~ m any utenmum,He 
tobacco prevention and control trust fund does not l=tave adequate dollars to fund 
a comprel=tensive plan, tl=te treasurer sl=tall transfer money from tl=te 'Nater 
development trust fund to tl=te tobacco pre\<ention and control trust fund in an 
amount equal to tl=te amount determined necessary by tl=te executive committee 
to fund a comprel=tensi•.<e ~ 

3. Transfers to the funds under this section must be made within thirty days of 
receipt by the state. 

"Section 5. REPEAL. Sections 23-38-01 , 23-38-02 , and 23-38-03 of the North Dakota 
Century Code are repealed. 



CHAPTER 23-38 
COMMUNITY HEALTH GRANT PROGRAM 
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23-38-01. Community health grant program. ~6 fJOl-ij 
1. The state department of health shall establish a community health grant program. The 

primary purpose of the program is to prevent or reduce tobacco usage in the state by 
strengthening community-based public health programs and by providing assistance to 
public health units and communities throughout the state. The program must build on 
and may not duplicate existing programs. Grants awarded under the program must be 
awarded on a noncompetitive basis using the per capita formula provided for in this 
subsection. The program must, to the extent funding is available, follow guidelines 
concerning tobacco prevention programs recommended by the centers for disease 
control and prevention. Entities awarded grants under the program may contract with 
or award grants to private providers that conduct tobacco cessation programs. Not 
more than five percent of the community health grant program funds may be expended 
for surveillance and evaluation activities. Funds appropriated for the program must be 
allocated as follows: 
a. Forty percent of all funds appropriated for the program must be granted to a 

public health unit or to cooperating public health units that have an agreement 
with school boards concerning preventive health programs to be funded. The 
program must be developed with student participation and must include a plan to 
reduce student tobacco use. 

b. Forty percent of all funds appropriated for the program must be granted to a 
public health unit or to cooperating public health units that have established a 
unitwide plan, developed in cooperation with local elected officials in the unit's 
jurisdiction, concerning the preventive health programs to be funded. The plan 
must address programs to reduce tobacco use by the residents living in the 
counties serviced by the units; however, the plan may include other chronic 
disease programs. In addition to any grants received under this subdivision, each 
county with a population of less than ten thousand must receive five thousand 
dollars per biennium to be used to implement the county's programs. 

c. Twenty percent of all funds appropriated for the program must be granted to 
public health units to supplement existing state aid from other sources. Each unit 
must receive one percent of the amount allocated under this subdivision for each 
county within the unit and the remaining amount must be distributed to each unit 
on a per capita basis. 

2. The state department of health, in establishing the community health grant program, 
shall build upon the state's existing tobacco control grant program activities and shall 
follow the centers for disease control and prevention's best practices for 
comprehensive tobacco control programs. The department shall encourage applicants 
to monitor program accountability with respect to tobacco-related behaviors, attitudes, 
and health outcomes and to include in their plans: 
a. Community programs that: 

(1) Engage youth in the development and implementation of interventions; 
(2) Develop partnerships with local organizations; 
(3) Conduct educational programs at local levels; 
(4) Promote government and voluntary health policies, such as clean indoor air, 

youth access, and treatment coverage; 
(5) Restrict minors' access to tobacco; and 
(6) Deter smoking in public places. 

b. Promotion of school programs by partnering with public health organizations, 
school boards, education associations, and other organizations in each county to 
provide school programs that promote: 
(1) Tobacco-free policies; 
(2) Evidence-based curricula; 
(3) Teacher training; 
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(4) Parental involvement; and 
(5) Cessation services for students and staff. Fl 

23-38-02. Community health grant program advisory committee - Duties of state 
health officer. 

1. The state health officer shall establish a community health grant program advisory 
committee and shall appoint, after consulting with the governor, appropriate members 
to advise the state department of health in the development of a community health 
grant program. The state health officer, who is the chairman of the committee, shall 
appoint to the committee the state tobacco control administrator; one high school 
student; one student of a postsecondary institution in the state; one representative of a 
nongovernmental tobacco control organization; and one law enforcement officer. In 
addition to the members appointed by the state health officer, the committee must 
include: 
a. One individual appointed by the North Dakota Indian affairs commission; 
b. One individual appointed by the North Dakota public health association; 
c. The superintendent of public instruction or the superintendent's designee; 
d. An academic researcher with expertise in tobacco control and health promotion 

intervention, appointed by the dean of the university of North Dakota school of 
medicine and health sciences; and 

e. One physician appointed by the North Dakota medical association. 
2. Members of the committee who are not state employees or officers are entitled to be 

compensated at a rate of sixty-two dollars and fifty cents per day and are entitled to 
mileage and expenses as provided by law for state officers and employees. A state 
employee who is a member of the committee must receive that employee's regular 
salary and is entitled to mileage and expenses, to be paid by the employing agency. 

3. The state department of health, with the committee's involvement, shall provide 
assistance to: 
a. Evaluate programs; 
b. Promote media advocacy by working with statewide media associations; 
c. Implement smoke-free policies by involving antitobacco groups in promoting the 

need for smoke-free public buildings; 
d. Work to reduce minors' access to tobacco in all communities; 
e. Facilitate the coordination of program components with the local level; 
f. Involve state agencies, law enforcement, and local government in the 

administration and management of the program; and 
g. Assist the state in screening and implementing the grants. 

4. The state health officer shall monitor the implementation of the community health grant 
program. The state health officer shall provide a report to the legislative council 
regarding the implementation of the program not later than September 30, 2004. Upon 
request, the state health officer shall provide assistance to any interim legislative 
committee that may study the implementation of the community health grant program 
and shall recommend any legislation that the community health grant program 
advisory committee considers appropriate to improve the community health grant 
program. 

23-38-03. Gifts, grants, and donations - Continuing appropriation. 
The state department of health and public health units may accept any gifts, grants, or 

donations, whether conditional or unconditional. The state department of health or public health 
units may contract public or private entities and may expend any available moneys to obtain 
matching funds for the purposes of this chapter. All moneys received by the state department of 
health as gifts, grants, or donations under this section are appropriated on a continuing basis to 
the state department of health. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2024 

Page 1, replace lines 11 through 13 with: 

"Comprehensive tobacco control 
Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Renumber accordingly 

$16,548,039 
$16,548,039 

8.00 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

$4.906.884 
$4,906,884 

1.00 

Senate Bill No. 2024 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Senate Action 

Base 
Budget 

Comprehensive tobacco control $16,548,039 

Total all funds $16,548,039 
Less estimated income 16,548,039 

General fund $0 

FTE 8.00 

Senate 
Changes 

$4906884 

$4,906,884 
4906 884 

$0 

1.00 

Senate 
Version 
$21,454,923 

$21,454,923 
. 21.454,923 

$0 

9.00 

$21.454.923 
$21,454,923 

9.00" 

Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of Senate Changes 

Adds1 FTE Increases 
Adds Funding Health Funding for Increases Adds Funding 

for Base Payroll Communications Operating Funding for for a Cessation 
Changes1 Coordinator' Expenses3 Grants' Program5 

Total Senate 
Changes 

Comprehensive tobacco control $42,512 ~04,199 $1,260,173 $3,200,000 $4 906884 

Total all funds $42,512 $0 $404.~99 $1,260,173 $3,200,000 $4,906,884 
Less estimated income 42,512 0 404,199 1,260,173 3,200,000 4906 884 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 

1 Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2015-17 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other 
base payroll changes. 

2 One health communications coordinator FTE position is added, but related funding is not included. 

3 Funding is increased for various operating expenses, including rent, information technology, and 
operating fees and services. 

4 Funding for grants is increased to meet Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's Best Practices for 
Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs recommendations. 

5 Funding is added for a cessation program. The Comprehensive Tobacco Control Advisory Committee 
may assume the duties of administering the cessation program or provide funding to the State 
Department of Health to continue the program. 
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SB 2024--5 strongest reasons to continue funding BreatheND(CTCAC) 

1. GREATER health outcomes than ever before --
• This agency has cut youth smoking rates in half in its 8 years. This is double the rate of decline in 

youth smoking North Dakota experienced in the 8 years before BreatheND. 
• With continued funding, this agency can reduce youth smoking to the low single digits - below 

national averages. 
• Youth smokeless tobacco use increased significantly before BreatheND and now smokeless use has 

decreased by 30.7 percent. 

• Adult smoking rates have steadily declined from 2011 to 2015, with continued funding, BreatheND 
can reduce adult smoking to below national averages 

2. GREATER health care cost savings than ever before -
• The significant drop in youth smoking from 2013 to 2015, (19% to 11.7%), resulting in 2,880 fewer 

current smokers and future health care cost savings of $241.9 million. 
• Incredible savings, considering that smoking costs North Dakota residents $326 million annually in 

health care. 

3. ACCELERATED RATE OF DECLINE in tobacco use- BETTER RETURN ON INVESTMENT. -greater 
efficiency 

• Reductions in smoking were stalling in North Dakota before BreatheND. 
• Now, rates are dropping more than ever before. 

4. WE'RE ATTHE CROSSROADS--CONTINUED GREATER PROGRESS WITH BREATHEND OR 
PROGRESS WILL BE LIMITED OR ERODE WITHOUT BREATHEND. 

• Smoking rates in North Dakota used to be far above national averages. Continued efforts by 
BreatheND are on target to bring rates below national averages over the next years. 

• If BreatheND is not allowed to continue, we will experience what every other state who has cut 
their tobacco program has experienced - backsliding. Our smoking rates will likely go up. 

• Our strong smoke-free law will be challenged and maybe overturned. 

5. If it isn't broke, don't BREAK it. 

• 

• There is enough money in the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund to fully fund BreatheND, 
therefore no general fund dollars are needed. 

• BreatheND governance model has proven to be the most cost effective and quickest way to cut 
smoking and save lives and health care costs. 

• The model of a separate, single-focused agency guided by science and a professional advisory 
committee of tobacco control policy and medical experts is proven to work. 

• A large bureaucracy model has proven much less effective and is not a good return on investment 
of funding. 

• 

• 

The tobacco settlement was about reducing tobacco use. BreatheND is drastically cutting youth 
smoking and smokeless tobacco use in a way the N.D. Department of Health was not able to do. 
The people voted for this. This would be the first time the N.D. Legislature has completely 
overturned a measure that has been proven successful. 

Prepared from committee testimony and materials. Senator Tim Mathern 2-15-2017 • 



Forum editorial: BreatheND ~ I 
obvious success P 3 
Posted on Feb 11, 2017 at 4:05 p.m. 

A scheme in the North Dakota Legislature to usurp funding and dilute 
functions of BreatheND is wrong-headed on several counts. 

First, the agency, also known as the N.D. Center for Tobacco Prevention 
and Control Policy, is funded by money from the national tobacco 
settlement of 1998. North Dakota was a major player in that successful 
lawsuit against Big Tobacco. The upshot: BreatheND's budget contains 
not a dime of appropriated taxpayer money. Legislative leaders want to 
get their paws on the tobacco money and do who-knows-

Second, 90 percent of tobacco settlement money already is diverted to 
water and education funding, which lawmakers control. That 
compromise formula left 10 percent of the annual settlement payments 
for the money's original purpose. The settlement also grants North 
Dakota additional payments from a "strategic contribution fund" that 
enhance and extend anti-tobacco efforts by the agency. Voters 
overwhelmingly approved a 2008 measure that requires the final nine of 
the payments be used only for comprehensive tobacco programs. 
Legislators can raid that money because enough years have passed since 
the measure passed. Should that happen, the will of the voters would be 
upended. 

Third, if efficiency, fiscal responsibility and program efficacy are the 
mantras of this legislative session (and Gov. Doug Burgum's revisioning 
of state government), then lawmakers can hold up BreatheND as the 
poster child for those virtues. The agency is small, well-managed, 



focused from the beginning on its mission and can show measurable 
results. The impressive staff is fiercely dedicated to tobacco prevention 
and education, and have used their relatively small portion of tobacco 
settlement monies to achieve promised results. For example, the 
smoking rate among North Dakota youth was over 22 percent when 
BreathND went to work; today, it's down to about 11 percent. In 2012, 
voters passed a statewide smoke-free law, largely bec~use of the 
agency's advocacy. Three years later, the Legislature approved e­
cigarette youth protection, also listening to BreatheND's warnings about 
the nicotine-delivery devices' danger to kids. 

Therefore, it is absurd that lawmakers who are deeply concerned about 
expenditures, budget cuts, government efficiency and revenue shortfalls 
should lust after unappropriated dollars that have been used with 
uncommon stewardship, precisely for the purpose for which they were 
intended. 

The legislation to kill BreatheND has one purpose: to close a small shop 
that does big work. The bill ignores success and threatens the health of 
North Dakotans. In effect, lawmakers are doing the bidding of Big 
Tobacco. That's a very bad way to go. 

Editorials represent the opinion of Forum management and the 
newspaper's Editorial Board. 

• 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for ~fl t 
Senate Appropriations Committee 

17.0532.01003 
Title. 
Fiscal No. 3 February 13, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2024 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsection 2 of section 23-12-10.4, subsection 2 of section 54-27-25, and 
subsection 1 of section 54-59-22.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
smoking prohibited signage, the tobacco settlement trust fund, and required use of 
centralized desktop support services; to repeal chapter 23-42 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to the tobacco prevention and control program; to provide an 
effective date; and to declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 23-12-10.4 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. The owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of a public place 
or place of employment where smoking is prohibited by this chapter may 
request from the executive committee of the tobacco prevention and 
control advisory committeestate department of health the signs necessary 
to comply with the signage requirements of subsection 1. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 54-27-25 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. There is created in the state treasury a tobacco prevention and control 
trust fund. The fund consists of the tobacco settlement dollars obtained by 
the state under section IX(c)(2) of the agreement adopted by the east 
central judicial district court in its judgment entered December 28, 1998 
[Civil No. 98-3778] in State of North Dakota, ex rel. Heidi Heitkamp v. Philip 
Morris, Inc. Interest earned on the fund must be credited to the fund and 
deposited in the fund. Moneys received into the fund are to be 
administered by the executive committee for the purpose of creating and 
implementing the comprehensive plan. If in any biennium, the tobacco 
prevention and control trust fund does not have adequate dollars to fund a 
comprehensive plan, the treasurer shall transfer money from the water 
development trust fund to the tobacco prevention and control trust fund in 
an amount equal to the amount determined necessary by the executive 
committee to fund a comprehensive planused as appropriated by the 
legislative assembly. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 54-59-22.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. The following state agencies shall obtain centralized desktop support 
services from the information technology department: 

a. Office of administrative hearings . 

b. Office of the governor. 

Page No. 1 17.0532.01003 
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c. Commission on legal counsel for indigents. 

d. Public employees retirement system. 

e. North Dakota university system office. 

f. Department of career and technical education. 

g. Department of financial institutions. 

h. Department of veterans' affairs. 

i. Aeronautics commission. 

f:- Tobacco prevention and control executive committee. 

k:-L. Council on the arts. 

h& Agriculture commissioner. 

m:-L. Department of labor and human rights. 

fr.m. Indian affairs commission. 

e:-n.,_ Protection and advocacy project. 

fr.Q. Secretary of state. 

er.IL State treasurer. 

r.g. State auditor. 

s-:-r.,_ Securities department. 

SECTION 4. REPEAL. Chapter 23-42 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
repealed. 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on July 1, 2017. 

SECTION 6. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2024 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Senate Action 

Base 
Budget 

Comprehensive tobacco control $16,548,039 

Total all funds $16,548,039 
Less estimated income 16,548,039 

General fund $0 

FTE 8.00 

Senate 
Changes 

1$16,548 039) 

($16,548,039) 
116,548,039) 

$0 

0.00 

Senate 
Version 

Page No. 2 

$0 
0 

$0 

8.00 
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Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of Senate Changes 

Removes 
Funding for 

Comprehensive 
Tobacco 
Control' 

Total Senate 
Changes 

Comprehensive tobacco control ($16,548,039) ($16,548 039) 

Total all funds ($16,548,039) 
(16,548,039) 

($16,548,039) 
Less estimated income (16 548 039) 

General fund $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding for comprehensive tobacco control, including 8 FTE positions and related salaries and wages, 
is removed . 

This amendment also: 
Removes the appropriation section of the bill. 
Adds a section to amend North Dakota Century Code Section 23-12-10.4(2) relating to the 
signage responsibility of proprietors to transfer the responsibility to provide compliant signage 
from the Executive Committee of the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee to the 
State Department of Health. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-27-25(2) relating to the tobacco settlement trust fund to 
remove the transfer from the water development trust fund to the tobacco prevention and control 
trust fund if there is not adequate funding for the comprehensive plan and to provide the money 
deposited in tobacco prevention and control trust fund are to be used for purposes appropriated . 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-59-22.1 (1) of the North Dakota Century Code related to 
required use of centralized desktop support services to remove the reference to the Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Executive Committee . 
Adds a section to repeal Chapter 23-42 relating to the tobacco prevention and control program. 
Adds a section to provide for an effective date. 
Declares the bill to be an emergency measure . 

Page No. 3 17.0532.01003 
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Title. 
Fiscal No. 3 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for JI~ J 
Senate Appropriations Committee ?\ 

February 13, 2017 p / 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2024 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsection 2 of section 23-12-10.4, subsection 2 of section 54-27-25, and 
subsection 1 of section 54-59-22.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
smoking prohibited signage, the tobacco settlement trust fund, and required use of 
centralized desktop support services; to repeal chapter 23-42 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to the tobacco prevention and control program; to provide an 
effective date; and to declare an emergency. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 23-12-10.4 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. The owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of a public place 
or place of employment where smoking is prohibited by this chapter may 
request from the executive committee of the tobacco prevention and 
control advisory committeestate department of health the signs necessary 
to comply with the signage requirements of subsection 1. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 54-27-25 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. There is created in the state treasury a tobacco prevention and control 
trust fund. The fund consists of the tobacco settlement dollars obtained by 
the state under section IX(c)(2) of the agreement adopted by the east 
central judicial district court in its judgment entered December 28, 1998 
[Civil No. 98-3778] in State of North Dakota, ex rel. Heidi Heitkamp v. Philip 
Morris, Inc. Interest earned on the fund must be credited to the fund and 
deposited in the fund. Moneys received into the fund are to be 
administered by the executive committee for the purpose of creating and 
implementing the comprehensive plan. If in any biennium, the tobacco 
prevention and control trust fund does not have adequate dollars to fund a 
comprehensive plan, the treasurer shall transfer money from the water 
development trust fund to the tobacco prevention and control trust fund in 
an amount equal to the amount determined necessary by the executive 
committee to fund a comprehensive planused as appropriated by the 
legislative assembly. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 54-59-22.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. The following state agencies shall obtain centralized desktop support 
services from the information technology department: 

a. Office of administrative hearings. 

b. Office of the governor. 
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c. Commission on legal counsel for indigents. 

d. Public employees retirement system. 

e. North Dakota university system office. 

f. Department of career and technical education. 

g. Department of financial institutions. 

h. Department of veterans' affairs. 

i. Aeronautics commission. 

b Tobacco prevention and control executive committee. 

*'-l. Council on the arts. 

h.!s:. Agriculture commissioner. 

RT.-L. Department of labor and human rights. 

A-:-m . Indian affairs commission. 

e-:-n,. Protection and advocacy project. 

fr.Q . Secretary of state. 

Er,Q.,. State treasurer. 

f;g. State auditor. 

&.-L. Securities department. 

SECTION 4. REPEAL. Chapter 23-42 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
repealed . 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on July 1, 2017. 

SECTION 6. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2024 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Senate Action 

Base Senate Senate 
Budget Changes Version 

Comprehensive tobacco control $16,548,039 $16 548 039 

Total all funds $16,548,039 ($16,548,039) $0 
Less estimated income 16,548,039 16 548 039 0 

General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 8.00 8.00 0.00 

Page No. 2 17.0532.01003 
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Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of Senate Changes 

Removes 
Funding for 

Comprehensive 
Tobacco Total Senate 
Control' Changes 

Comprehensive tobacco control {$16,548,039) $16 548 039 

Total all funds ($16,548,039) ($16,548,039) 
Less estimated income {16,548,039) 16 548 039 

General fund $0 

FTE (8.00) 8.00 

1 Funding for comprehensive tobacco control, including 8 FTE positions and related salaries and wages, 
is removed. 

This amendment also: 
Removes the appropriation section of the bill . 
Adds a section to amend North Dakota Century Code Section 23-1 2-10.4(2) relating to the 
signage responsibility of proprietors to transfer the responsibility to provide compliant signage 
from the Executive Committee of the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee to the 
State Department of Health. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-27-25(2) relating to the tobacco settlement trust fund to 
remove the transfer from the water development trust fund to the tobacco prevention and control 
trust fund if there is not adequate funding for the comprehensive plan and to provide the money 
deposited in tobacco prevention and control trust fund are to be used for purposes appropriated. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-59-22.1 (1) of the North Dakota Century Code related to 
required use of centralized desktop support services to remove the reference to the Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Executive Committee. 
Adds a section to repeal Chapter 23-42 relating to the tobacco prevention and control program. 
Adds a section to provide for an effective date. 
Declares the bill to be an emergency measure. 

Page No. 3 17.0532.01003 
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Title. 

J-.- 17 ~If 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for Sf; cJOJ1 
Senator Mathern ,}_, 

Fiscal No. 2 February 13, 2017 1f :Jv 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2024 

Page 1, replace lines 11 through 13 with: 

"Comprehensive tobacco control 
Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Renumber accordingly 

$16.548.039 
$16,548,039 

8.00 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

$4.906.884 
$4,906,884 

1.00 

Senate Bill No. 2024 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Senate Action 

Base 
Budget 

Comprehensive tobacco control $16,548,039 

Total all funds $16,548,039 
Less estimated income 16,548,039 

General fund $0 

FTE 8.00 

Senate 
Changes 

$4906884 

$4,906,884 
4906 884 

$0 

1.00 

Senate 
Version 
$21 ,454,923 

$21 ,454,923 
21,454,923 

$0 

9.00 

$21.454.923 
$21,454,923 

9.00" 

Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of Senate Changes 

Adds 1 FTE Increases 
Adds Funding Health Funding for Increases Adds Funding 

for Base Payroll Communications Operating Funding for for a Cessation 
Changes' Coordinator' Expenses3 Grants' Program5 

Total Senate 
Changes 

Comprehensive tobacco control ~2,512 ~04,199 $1,260,173 $3,200,000 $4906884 

Total all funds $42,512 $0 $404,199 $1,260,173 $3,200,000 $4,906,884 
Less estimated income 42,512 0 404,199 1,260,173 3,200,000 4906884 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 

1 Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2015-17 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other 
base payroll changes. 

2 One health communications coordinator FTE position is added, but related funding is not included. 

3 Funding is increased for various operating expenses, including rent, information technology, and 
operating fees and services. 

4 Funding for grants is increased to meet Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's Best Practices for 
Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs recommendations. 

5 Funding is added for a cessation program. The Comprehensive Tobacco Control Advisory Committee 
may assume the duties of administering the cessation program or provide funding to the State 
Department of Health to continue the program. 

Page No. 1 17.0532.01002 
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SB 2024--5 strongest reasons to continue funding BreatheND(CTCAC) FTJ 2.-
1. GREATER health outcomes than ever before --

• This agency has cut youth smoking rates in half in its 8 years. This is double the rate of decline in 
youth smoking North Dakota experienced in the 8 years before BreatheND. 

• With continued funding, this agency can reduce youth smoking to the low single digits - below 
national averages. 

• Youth smokeless tobacco use increased significantly before BreatheND and now smokeless use has 
decreased by 30.7 percent. 

• Adult smoking rates have steadily declined from 2011 to 2015, with continued funding, BreatheND 
can reduce adult smoking to below national averages 

2. GREATER health care cost savings than ever before -

• The significant drop in youth smoking from 2013 to 2015, (19% to 11. 7%), resulting in 2,880 fewer 
current smokers and future health care cost savings of $241.9 million. 

• Incredible savings, considering that smoking costs North Dakota residents $326 million annually in 
health care. 

3. ACCELERATED RATE OF DECLINE in tobacco use- BETTER RETURN ON INVESTMENT. - greater 
efficiency 

• Reductions in smoking were stalling in North Dakota before BreatheND. 
• Now, rates are dropping more than ever before. 

4. WE'RE ATTHE CROSSROADS-- CONTINUED GREATER PROGRESS WITH BREATHEND OR 
PROGRESS WILL BE LIMITED OR ERODE WITHOUT BREATHEND. 

• Smoking rates in North Dakota used to be far above national averages. Continued efforts by 
BreatheND are on target to bring rates below national averages over the next years. 

• If BreatheND is not allowed to continue, we will experience what every other state who has cut 
their tobacco program has experienced - backsliding. Our smoking rates will likely go up. 

• Our strong smoke-free law will be challenged and maybe overturned. 

5. If it isn't broke, don't BREAK it. 

• There is enough money in the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund to fully fund BreatheND, 
therefore no general fund dollars are needed. 

• BreatheND governance model has proven to be the most cost effective and quickest way to cut 
smoking and save lives and health care costs. 

• The model of a separate, single-focused agency guided by science and a professional advisory 
committee of tobacco control policy and medical experts is proven to work. 

• A large bureaucracy model has proven much less effective and is not a good return on investment 
of funding. 

• The tobacco settlement was about reducing tobacco use. BreatheND is drastically cutting youth 
smoking and smokeless tobacco use in a way the N.D. Department of Health was not able to do. 

• The people voted for this. This would be the first time the N.D. Legislature has completely 
overturned a measure that has been proven successful. 

Prepared from committee testimony and materials. Senator Tim Mathern 2-15-2017 
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Prepared for the House Appropriations Committee 

Department 305 -Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee 
Senate Bill No. 2024 

2017-19 Dalrymple Executive Budget 
2015-17 Adjusted Legislative Appropriations 

Increase Decrease 

Agency Funding 

$18.00 
$15.82 $16.55 

$16.00 -
$14.00 12.92 .....-

Ill $12.00 -c: 

~ $10.00 -
:i $8.00 -

$6.00 -
$4.00 -
$2.00 -

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

FTE Positions 
0.00 
8.00 

8.00 

General Fund 

FTE Positions 

9.00 

8.00 

7.00 

6.00 

5.00 

4.00 

3.00 

2.00 

1.00 
$0.00 $0.00 0.00 

$0 
0 

$0 

Other Funds 
$0 

16,548,039 

$16,548,039 

8.00 8.00 

Total 
$0 

16,548,039 

$16,548,039 

0.00 

$0.00 
2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 2017-19 2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 2017-19 

Adjusted Executive 
Budget 

•General Fund oOther Funds 

Dal 

2017-19 Dalrymple Executive Budget 
2017-19 Base Level 

Increase Decrease 

General Fund 
$0 
0 

$0 

First House Action 

Other Funds 
$0 

16,548,039 

$16,548,039 

Executive 
Budget 

Total 
$0 

16,548,039 

$16,548,039 

Attached is a comparison worksheet detailing first house changes to base level funding and the executive budget. 

Dalrymple and Burgum Executive Budget Highlights 
(With First House Changes in Bold) 

General Fund 
1. Removes funding for 8 FTE positions and dissolves the agency $0 

Sections in Senate Bill No. 2024 

Other Funds 
($16,548,039) 

Total 
($16,548,039) 

Signage responsibility of proprietors - Section 1 amends North Dakota Century Code Section 23-12-10.4(2) to provide the 
owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of a public place or place of employment where smoking is prohibited by 
Chapter 23-12 may request signage that meets the requirements of the section from the State Department of Health rather than 
the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee. 

Tobacco prevention and control trust fund - Section 2 amends Section 54-27-25(2) to remove restrictions relating to the 
administration of the tobacco prevention and control trust fund and provide money received into the fund is to be used as 
appropriated by the Legislative Assembly. 

Centralized desktop support services - Section 3 amends Section 54-59-22.1 (1) to remove the Tobacco Prevention and 
Control Executive Committee from the list of agencies required to obtain centralized desktop support services from the 
Information Technology Department. 

Tobacco prevention and control program - Section 4 repeals Chapter 23-42 relating to the tobacco prevention and control 
program to eliminate the Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee . 

Effective date - Section 5 provides the Act becomes effective July 1, 2017. 

Emergency - Section 6 declares the Act is an emergency measure. 

March 6, 2017 



Continuing Appropriations 
There are no continuing appropriations for this agency. 

Significant Audit Findings 
There are no significant audit findings for this agency. 

Major Related Legislation 
At this time, no major legislation is under consideration affecting this agency 
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Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee - Budget No. 305 
Senate Bill No. 2024 
Base Level Funding Changes 

2017-19 Biennium Base Level 

2017-19 Ongoing Funding Changes 
Base payroll changes 
Salary increase - Performance 
Health insurance increase 
Removes 8 FTE positions and dissolves the 
agency 
Total ongoing funding changes 

One-time funding items 
No one-time funding items 
Total one-time funding changes 

Total Changes to Base Level Funding 

2017-19 Total Funding 

Burgum Executive Budget Recommendation 
(Changes to Dalrymple Budget in Bold) 

FTE 
Position General Fund Other Funds Total 

8.00 $0 $16,548,039 $16,548,039 

$0 
0 
0 

(8.00) (16,548,039) (16,548,039) 

(8.00) $0 ($16,548,039) ($16,548,039) 

$0 
0.00 $0 $0 $0 

(8.00) $0 ($16,548,039) ($16,548,039) 

0.00 $0 $0 $0 

Other Sections in Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee - Budget No. 305 

Burgum Executive Budget Recommendation 
(Changes to Dalrymple Budget in Bold) 

Signage responsibility of proprietors Section 2 amends Section 23-12-10.4(2) to provide the owner, 
operator, manager, or other person in control of a public place or 
place of employment where smoking is prohibited by 
Chapter 23-12 may request signage that meets the requirements 
of the section from the State Department of Health rather than the 
Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee. 

Tobacco prevention and control trust fund Section 3 amends Section 54-27-25(2) to remove restrictions 
relating to the administration of the tobacco prevention and control 
trust fund and provide money received into the fund is to be used 
for the purposes appropriated. 

• 
Senate Version 

FTE General 
Position Fund Other Funds Total 

8.00 $0 $16,548,039 $16,548,039 

$0 
0 
0 

(8.00) (16,548,039) (16,548,039) 

(8.00) $0 ($16,548,039) ($16,548,039) 

$0 
0.00 $0 $0 $0 

(8.00) $0 ($16,548,039) ($16,548,039) 

0.00 $0 $0 $0 

Senate Version 

Section 1 amends Section 23-12-10.4(2) to provide the 
owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of a 
public place or place of employment where smoking is 
prohibited by Chapter 23-12 may request signage that meets 
the requirements of the section from the State Department of 
Health rather than the Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Advisory Committee. 

Section 2 amends Section 54-27-25(2) to remove restrictions 
relating to the administration of the tobacco prevention and 
control trust fund and provide money received into the fund is 
to be used as appropriated by the Legislative Assembly. 



Other Sections in Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee - Budget No. 305 

Burgum Executive Budget Recommendation 
(Changes to Dalrymple Budget in Bold) 

Centralized desktop support services 

Tobacco prevention and control program 

Effective date 

Emergency 

• 

Section 4 amends Section 54-59-22.1(1) to remove the Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Executive Committee from the list of 
agencies required to obtain centralized desktop support services 
from the Information Technology Department. 

Section 5 repeals Chapter 23-42 relating to the tobacco prevention 
and control program to eliminate the Tobacco Prevention and 
Control Executive Committee. 

• 

Senate Version 
Section 3 amends Section 54-59-22.1 (1) to remove the 
Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee from 
the list of agencies required to obtain centralized desktop 
support services from the Information Technology 
Department. 

Section 4 repeals Chapter 23-42 relating to the tobacco 
prevention and control program to eliminate the Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Executive Committee. 

Section 5 provides the Act becomes effective July 1, 2017. 

Section 6 declares the Act is an emergency measure . 

• 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff 

Department 305 -Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee 

Historical Appropriations Information 

Total Other Funds Appropriations Since 2009-11 
Agency Funding (in Millions) FTE Positions 
$18.00 ~----------~~---­ 9.00 ~------~~--------~ 
$16.00 +---- ----­
$14.00 +--"'-'=~-~=-­

$12.00 
$10.00 

$8.00 
$6.00 
$4.00 
$2.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 

8.00 +-----------:;--------------l 
7.00 +--------7"~---------; 

6.00 -f---- ---J<- - - ---------1 
5.00 +----"""'-----::...1--------~-------l 

4.00 +---ml'"""'-----------4-------1 
3.00 +-----------------~ 
2.00 +--------------_.,,r--~ 

1.00 -+------------ --- .0-<0 
0.00 -+---~--~--~--~-----< 

2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 2017-19 
Adjusted Executive 

Budget 

2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 2015-17 2017-19 
Executive 

Budget 

Total Other Funds Appropriations 

2015-17 
2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 Adjusted 

Total other funds appropriations $12,882,000 $12,922,614 $15,815,828 $16,548,039 
Increase (decrease) from previous biennium N/A $40,614 $2,893,214 $732,211 

Percentage increase (decrease) from N/A 0.3% 22.4% 4.6% 
previous biennium 

Cumulative percentage increase (decrease) N/A 0.3% 22.8% 28.5% 
from 2009-11 biennium 

Major Increases (Decreases) in Total Other Funds Appropriations 
2011-13 Biennium 

1. Reclassified 1 temporary position, to be determined by the Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Executive Committee, to an FTE position. 

2013-15 Biennium 

1. Increased funding for comprehensive tobacco control for signage costs related to House Bill 
No. 1253 ($250,000) and grants ($2,750,000). 

2. Transitioned 3 temporary positions to FTE positions, including 1 FTE field coordinator position, 
1 FTE statewide programs manager position, and 1 FTE evaluation program manager position. 

3. Reduced temporary salaries. 

2015-17 Biennium 

1. Added funding to provide a grant to the State Department of Health to be used for the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention's Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs. 

2017-19 Biennium (Dalrymple and Burgum Executive Budget Recommendations) 

1. Removes funding for 8 FTE positions and dissolves the agency. 

2017-19 
Dalrymple 
Executive 

BudQet 
$0 

($16,548,039) 

(100.0%) 

(100.0%) 

$0 

$3,000,000 

$0 

($190,876) 

$500,000 

($16,548,039) 

March 6, 2017 



North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee 
Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 

1680 E Capitol Avenue, Suite A• Bismarck, ND 58503-0638 
Phone 701.328.5130 • Fax 701.328.5135 •Toll Free 1.877.277.5090 

Testimony 
Engrossed Senate Bill 2024 

8:30 a.m., March 8, 2017 
House Appropriations Human Resources Division 

Representative Chet Pollert, Chair 

Good morning, Chairman Pollert and members of the House Appropriations 
Human Resources Division. I am Jeanne Prom, executive director of the North 
Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy. The Center, also 
known as "BreatheND," is the state agency office operated by the N.D. Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Executive Committee. (The agency is referred to as the 
Executive Committee, the Center, and its brand, BreatheND.) I am testifying on 
Engrossed Senate Bill 2024, which, in its original version, provided the 
appropriation for the N.D. Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee. 

This testimony is in support of the Executive Committee administering a fully funded 
comprehensive statewide tobacco prevention and control program at the level, and with 
the policy and other approaches, described in Best Practices for Comprehensive 
Tobacco Control Programs, 2014, published by the U.S. Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention (CDC Best Practices). Alignment with CDC Best Practices was best 
reflected in the agency's requested budget. The next best reflection of a CDC Best 
Practice approach was in the original SB 2024 before it was amended and passed by 
the Senate. 

The Executive Committee requests that the House further amend Engrossed SB 
2024 to restore NDCC 23-42, placed into law by the passage of an initiated 
measure in 2008. The measure created the Executive Committee and the CDC 
Best Practice comprehensive tobacco prevention program, which has cut high 
school smoking rates nearly in half in its first 7 years. 

As amended and passed by the Senate, Engrossed SB 2024: 
• No section -- Removes any appropriation for the Executive Committee and its 

Center. Requested House action: Restore the appropriation section at the 
CDC Best Practice level. 

• Section 1 -- Amends the current smoke-free state law by taking responsibility for 
providing smoke-free law signs from the Center and instead, giving this duty to 
the department of health. Requested House action: Remove this 
amendment. 

• Section 2 - Amends current law on use of tobacco settlement dollars that North 
Dakota receives from its lawsuit against major tobacco companies (NDCC 54-27-
25). Maintains the tobacco control trust fund , but no longer requires the 

BreatheND 
Saving lives, saving money. The voice of the peop le. 

www.breatheND.com 
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legislature to appropriate it to the Executive Committee for comprehensive 
tobacco prevention . 
o Also removes the provision whereby tobacco settlement funds deposited into • 

the water development trust fund could be used if the tobacco prevention and 
control trust fund did not have adequate dollars to fund a comprehensive 
tobacco prevention program. 

Requested House action: Restore language requiring the Legislature to 
appropriate funds to the Executive Committee. 

• Section 3 - Amends current law on centralized desktop support services from 
ITD by removing the Executive Committee from the list of agencies. Requested 
House action: Remove this amendment. 

• Section 4 - Repeals the current law, NDCC 23-42, passed by an initiated 
measure in 2008, which created the Executive Committee and the 
comprehensive tobacco prevention program. Requested House action: 
Remove this amendment. 

• Section 5 - Specifies July 1, 2017 as the effective date. Requested House 
action: not necessary if other requested amendments are made 

• Section 6 - Specifies that this is an emergency measure. Requested House 
action: not necessary if other requested amendments are made 

Why should the N.D. Legislative Assembly keep the comprehensive CDC Best 
Practices tobacco prevention program as it is in NDCC 23-42? 

1) Greater health outcomes, AND outcomes realized in much less time. 
o Tobacco use will continue to decline faster, and health care cost savings will 

produce even larger savings in subsequent years with a fully funded 
comprehensive CDC Best Practice tobacco prevention program than with a 
program at half strength. See attachment. 

2) Accountability and cost effectiveness 
o We are beginning to be able to document heath care cost savings as the 

result of this comprehensive program. 
o In a very short time, this agency has proven to be effective in providing 

leadership in tobacco prevention and in working closely with state and local 
grantees to meet and exceed objectives in its shared State Plan. 

3) We are at a critical crossroads. 
o We have the tobacco settlement payments resources and the experienced 

Center staff, statewide grantees, and county-level workforce now in place in 
every local public health unit to take us to the "end game" - nearly ending 
tobacco use by youth. If you limit the program now, progress already made 
will be at risk of eroding. The experienced state and local staff don't just say 
we can do this work, we have done this work and achieved greater outcomes 
in less time than before. 

o Let's not go back to a less than comprehensive program: Before the 
comprehensive program, youth tobacco use rate declines had leveled off and 
were inching upward. 

Background 
The Executive Committee is responsible for the comprehensive tobacco control 
program in North Dakota (North Dakota Century Code §23.42.01 through 
§23.42 .08, and §54.27.25). This law requires that a small portion of the money 
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North Dakota receives from the Master Settlement Agreement with tobacco 
companies ("tobacco settlement"), be: 

• placed in the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund , to be 
• used for a comprehensive tobacco prevention program that is 
• funded at the state level recommended by the U.S. Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention (CDC) in Best Practices for Comprehensive 
Tobacco Control Programs. See attachment. 

The law also: 
• Requires that the agency's comprehensive work must be described in a 

State Plan that outlines how the agency will significantly reduce tobacco 
use at an accelerated rate using CDC Best Practices. 

• Created the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee, a nine­
member board appointed by the Governor. The board elects three of its 
members to the N.D. Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive 
Committee. The Advisory Committee is responsible for developing the 
comprehensive statewide plan to prevent and reduce tobacco use. The 
Executive Committee is charged with implementing , administering and 
evaluating the plan , which includes establishing and staffing the agency 
and expending funds appropriated by the Legislative Assembly. 

About 75 percent of the comprehensive program is administered and funded by 
the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee has resources to administer 
and fund all of the program if necessary. However, because the N.D. 
Department of Health receives a federal grant and some tobacco settlement 
dollars for tobacco control , the health department is able to fund and administer 
about one-fourth of the program. 

Key points 
• The Executive Committee is funded entirely by a legislative appropriation 

from special funds in the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund . 
• All trust funds are from a small portion of the tobacco settlement. 
• The agency receives no state general funds, federal funds , or other tax 

dollars. 
• The agency's sole source of funding is the Tobacco Prevention and 

Control Trust Fund. The fund will begin deficit spending in May 2017, 
after receiving its last deposit in April 2017. 

• Based on legislative appropriations and expenditures from FY2010 
through FY2017, the trust fund balance that is "in the bank" this year 
(about $56 million) will be enough to sustain the Center for 7 more years, 
without any need for any state general funds. 

• 2017 legislative actions redirect nearly half of the approximately $56 
million in the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund to the 
departments of human services and health to fund ongoing programs next 
biennium. 

• The agency is small - 8.0 FTE, with a fulltime temporary position 
requested to be permanent. 

• The agency has a single focus - reducing tobacco use, especially through 
prevention, at an accelerated rate. 

See attachments - tobacco settlement trust funds 
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Requested information 
2013-15 audit findings 

• The N.D. Office of the State Aud itor conducted its biennial audit of the • 
agency for the 2013-1 5 biennium and had no formal recommendations. 
The agency updated its policy to further clarify the duties and quantify the 
number of hours the committee members must work to be reimbursed for 
a full day, in response to one informal recommendation. 

2013-15 and 2015-17 
Major ongoing funding increases or decreases approved by Legislative 
Assemblies 

• 2013-15 - Increases: an additional $2,249,832 for grants to local public 
health units; $250,000 for smoke-free signage required by 2013 HB 1253; 
and $299,799 in salaries and benefits; and an additional 3.0 FTE. 

• 2015-17 - Increases: $500,000 grant to N.D. Department of Health for 
promoting cessation. 

2015-17 - original budget and budget after the August 2016 special session 
- page 5, column 1 

NOTE: SB 2379 passed by the Legislative Assembly in Special Session on 
August 4, 2016, did not include any reductions in funding for this agency, as 
this agency does not receive any state general funds. 
NOTE: The agency budget contains no one-time funding or federal funding. 

2017-19 
• 90% of August 2016 budget-page 51 column 7 

NOTE: The guidelines from the Office of Management and Budget issued 
to our agency on June 8, 2016 stated: "Your agency's special fund 
request amount is not limited with the exception of dollars related to new 
FTE. However, we hope you will take this opportunity to examine your 
level of spending in all areas to ensure the most efficient operation and 
most effective use of resources from all funding sources." The agency 
submitted a budget which was estimated at about 90% of the CDC Best 
Practices recommended budget, based on estimates in 2015 - pa a 5" 
olumn 6. The agency also provided the Senate with a budget based on 

90% of the agency's current budget-- page 5, column 7. 
• Both governors' recommended budget changes, and Senate changes to 

budget - page 6, column 4 
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SALARIES AND WAGES 

SALARIES - PERMANENT (8 FTE) (9 FTE Optional) 

TEMPORARY SALARIES 

FRINGE BENEFITS 

TOTAL SALARIES AND WAGES 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 

TRAVEL 

SUPPLIES - IT SOFTWARE 

SUPPLY/MATERIAL -PROFESSIONAL 

BUILDINGNEHICLE MAINTENANCE 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

POSTAGE 

PRINTING 

IT EQUIPMENT UNDER $5,000 

OFFICE EQUIP AND FURNITURE SUPPLIES 

INSURANCE 

RENTALS/EQUIPMENT 

RENTALS/LEASES-BLDG/LAND 

REPAIRS 

IT-DATA PROCESSING 

IT-COMMUNICATIONS 

IT-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES AND REPAIR 

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

OPERATING FEES 

PROFESSIONAL FEES AND SERVICES 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

GRANTS 

TOTAL GRANTS 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

[1] 

2015-17 

Budget & 
5.B. 2024 

Original 

[2] 

2017-2019 

Budget 

Request 

Totals 

1,329,524.00 1,367,836.00 

199,971.00 205,424.00 

S32,119.00 535,652.00 

[3] 

2017-2019 

Budget Request 

Increase 

(Decrease) 

38,312.00 

5,453.00 

3,533.00 

$ 2,061,614.00 $ 2,108,912.00 $ 47,298.00 

83,180.00 83,180.00 
4,500.00 4,500.00 
9,179.00 5,354.00 (3,825.00) 

200.00 200.00 
19,000.00 14,214.00 (4,786.00) 
10,736.00 11,810.00 1,074.00 
27,500.00 28,000.00 500.00 

126.00 (126.00) 
5,000.00 5,000.00 

6,315.00 6,000.00 (315.00) 

1,000.00 1,000.00 

108,000.00 119,400.00 11,400.00 

8,500.00 5,000.00 (3,500.00) 

99,051.00 120,051.00 21,000.00 
25,000.00 25,000.00 

272,500.00 200,000.00 (72,500.00) 
43,332.00 43,301.00 (31.00) 

114,336.00 68,670.00 (45,666.00) 
3,782,305.00 4,278,493.00 496,188.00 

$ 4,619, 760.00 $ 5,019,173.00 $ 399,413.00 

$ 9,866,665.00 $ 11,126,838.00 $ 1,260,173.00 

$ 16,548,039.00 $ 18,254,923.00 $ 1,706,884.00 

$3,200,000 from Tobacco Prevention & Contro l Trust Fund vs. Community Hearth Trust Fund allocated in these areas 

Column #7 (90% of current Budget) the following categories were adjusted: 

Salaries & Benefits (82,740.00) 

Professional Services (761,210.00) 

Grants (810,854.00) 

(1,654,804.00) 

s 
.. L 

[4] 

2017-2019 

Percent 

Increase 

(Decrease) 

2.9% 

2.7% 

0.7% 

2.3% 

0.0% 
0.0% 

-41.7% 
0.0% 

-25.2% 
10.0% 

1.8% 
-100.0% 

0.0% 

-5.0% 

0.0% 

10.6% 

-41.2% 

21.2% 
0.0% 

-26.6% 
-0.1% 

-39.9% 
13.1% 
8.6% 

12.8% 

10.3% 

[5] 

2017-2019 

Percent of 

Total 

Budget 

7.5% 

1.1% 

2.9% 

11.55% 

0.5% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.1% 
0.1% 
0.2% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

0.0% 
0.0% 

0.7% 

0.0% 
0.7% 

0.1% 
1.1% 

0.2% 
0.4% 

23.4% 
27.5% 

[6] 

2017-2019 

90%of 

Budget 

Request 

1,231,052.40 

184,881.60 

482,086.80 

1,898,020.80 

74,862.00 
4,050.00 
4,818.60 

180.00 
12,792.60 
10,629.00 
25,200.00 

4,500.00 

5,400.00 

900.00 

107,460.00 

4,500.00 

108,045.90 
22,500.00 

180,000.00 
38,970.90 
61,803.00 

3,850,643.70 
4,517,255.70 

61.0% $ 10,014,154.20 

100.00% 16,429,430.70 

.i 

[7] [8] 

2015-2017 

90%of 

Current 

Budget 

2017-2019 

Proposed Senate 

Amendment 

Did not Pass 

1,276,570.00 $ 1,367,836.00 

191,697.00 $ 205,424.00 

510,607.00 $ 535,652.00 

1,978,874.00 $ 2,108,912.00 

83,180.00 $ 83,180.00 
4,500.00 $ 4,500.00 
9,179.00 $ 5,354.00 

200.00 $ 200.00 
19,000.00 $ 14,214.00 
10,736.00 $ 11,810.00 
27,500.00 $ 28,000.00 

126.00 $ 
5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 

6,315.00 $ 6,000.00 
1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 

108,000.00 $ 119,400.00 

8,500.00 $ 5,000.00 
99,051.00 $ 120,051.00 

25,000.00 $ 25,000.00 
272,500.00 $ 200,000.00 

43,332.00 $ 43,301.00 
114,336.00 $ 68,670.00 

3,021,095.00 s 6,678,493.00 

3,858,550.00 $ 7,419,173.00 

9,055,811.00 $ 11,926,838.00 

14,893,235.00 $ 21,454,923.00 



H:17 Budgets 2017-2019 Budget Projected Spending 

(1] (2] (2a] (2b] (3] (4J 
Spending to Date Projected Spending (Over Budget) S.B. 2024 S.B. 2024 

8 FTE (9 FTE Optional) Total Budget 1/31 /2017 15/17 Under Budget Original Engrossed 

I! 
Expenditures 

510000 Salartes and Benefits 
. 

511000 Salartes - Permanent 1,329,524.00 1,037,953.81 1,311 ,099.55 18,424.45 1,329,524.00 0.00 
51 3000 Temporary Salartes 192,771.00 147,325.99 186,095.99 6,675.01 192,771.00 0.00 
514005 Overtime 7,200.00 6,717.89 8,485.76 (1 ,285.76) 7,200.00 0.00 
516000 Fringe Benefits 532,119.00 415,734.21 525,137.95 6,981 .05 532,1 19.00 0.00 
510000 Salaries and Benefits 2,061 ,614.00 1,607,731.90 2,030,819.24 30,794.76 2,061 ,614.00 0.00 

4 

-520000 Operating Expenses 

521000 Travel 83,180.00 53,124.81 70,833.08 12,346.92 83.180.00 0.00 
531000 Supplies - IT Software 4,500.00 1,685.94 2,247.92 2,252.08 4,500.00 0.00 
532000 Supply/Material - Professional 9,179.00 4,922.48 6,563.31 2,615.69 9,179.00 0.00 
533030 Grocertes - 0.00 
534000 Bid gs., Grounds, Vehicle Supply 200.00 201 .22 268.29 (68.29) 200.00 0.00 
535000 Miscellaneous Supplies - 0.00 
536000 Office Supplies 19,000.00 6,355.65 8,474.20 10,525.80 19,000.00 0.00 
541000 Postage 10,736.00 8,551 .05 11,401.40 (665.40) 10,736.00 0.00 
542000 Prtnting 27,500.00 16,708.55 22,278.07 5,221 .93 27,500.00 0.00 
551000 IT Equipment under $5,000 0.00 - - 0.00 0.00 
552000 Other Equip under $5,000 127.00 - 127.00 127.00 0.00 
553000 Office Equip & Furniture-Under 5,000.00 - 5.000.00 5,000.00 0.00 
571000 Insurance 6,315.00 4,072.01 5,429.35 885.65 6,315.00 0.00 
581000 Rentals/Leases-Equipment&Other 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 
582000 Rentals/Leases - Bldg/Land 108,000.00 91 ,024.35 121 ,365.80 (13,365.80) 108,000.00 0.00 
591000 Repairs 8,500.00 1.636.46 2,181 .95 6,318.05 8,500.00 0.00 
601000 IT - Data Processing 99,051.00 58,694.37 78,259.16 20,791.84 99,051 .00 0.00 
602000 IT - Communications 25,000.00 14,995.72 19,994.29 5,005.71 25,000.00 0.00 
603000 IT Contractual Services and Re 272,500.00 257,278.11 343,037.48 (70,537.48) 272,500.00 0.00 
611000 Professional Development 43,331.00 36,910.31 49,213.75 (5,882.75) 43,331 .00 0.00 
621000 Operating Fees and Services 114,336.00 61 ,629.13 82,172.17 32,163.83 114,336.00 0.00 
623000 Professional Fees and Services 3,782,305.00 2,060,542.53 2,747,390.04 1,034,914.96 3,782,305.00 0.00 
520000 Operating Expenses 4,619,760.00 2,678,332.69 3,571,110.25 1,048,649.75 4,619,760.00 0.00 

I 
693000 IT Equip I Software Over $5000 0.00 0.00 

681000 Capital Assets 

:i 
712000 Grants, Benefits & Claims 9,866,665.00 7,477,007.33 9,866,665.00 - 9,866,665.00 0.00 

f 
Total Expenditures 16,548,039.00 11,763,071.92 15,468,594.50 1,079,444.50 16,548,039.00 0.00 

:;, 
Expenditures by Source 

Total General Fund Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Total Federal Fund Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Total Special Fund Expenditures 16,548,039.00 11 ,763,071 .92 15,468,594.50 1,079,444.50 16,548,039.00 0.00 

Total Expenditures by Source 16,548,039.00 11 ,763,071.92 15,468,594.50 1,079,444.50 16,548,039.00 0.00 



Beginning Balance 

Revenue: 

Tobacco Preventi- nd Control Trust Fund 
Status Statement 

2013-15 2015-17 

Actual11 
Legislative 

Appropriation 
Revised 
Estimate 

$40,654,657 $49,748,321 $49,748,321 12 

Fiscal Year 1 Payments $11 ,392,521 $11 ,304,243 11,480,889 \3 

Fiscal Year 2 Payments 11,402,609 
Investment Income 43,462 

Total Revenue $22,838,592 

Expenditures: 
Tobacco Center -Appropriated Expenditures ($13,744,928) 

Department of Health: 

Local Public Health Units 
Cancer Programs 
Stroke and Cardiac Care 
Physician Loan Repayment 
Behavioral Health Loan Repayment 
Tobacco Program Grant 

Department of Human Services: 

Medicaid Grants 
Opioid Treatment 

Total Expenditures ($13 ,744,928) 

Ending Balance $49 ,748,321 

11 Final revenue and expenditures per state accounting system reports dated June 30, 2015. 
12 Actual July 1, 2015 balance. 
\3 Actual revenue received during fiscal year 2016. 
14 Estimated revenues based on fiscal year 2016 actual amount. 

11 ,304,243 11,480,889 14 

56,521 142,460 
$22,665 ,007 $23, 104,238 

($16,548,039) ($16,548,039) 

($16,548,039) ($16,548,039) 

$55,865,289 $56,304,520 

15 Proposed that North Dakota Century Code 23-42 is repealed which dissolves the Tobacco Prevention and Control agency. 

Notes: 

2017-19 
Executive 

Budget 

$56,304,520 

0 
0 

142,460 
$142,460 

$0 \5 

(4,000,000) 
(744,804) 
(756,418) 
(480,000) 
(243,640) 
(500,000) 

(15,000,000) 
(1,799,076) 

($23,523,938) 

$32,923,042 

In November 2008 , voters approved Measure No. 3, which created a tobacco prevention and control trust fund. All tobacco settlement strategic contribution fund 
payments received by the state will be deposited in the fund . After 2017, no additional strategic contribution fund payments are anticipated. 

House Bill 1015 (2009), based on the intent of Measure No. 3, created the Tobacco Prevention and Control Committee as a state agency. Section 35, 
appropriates funding for the 2009-11 biennium. Section 36, provides retroactive funding for expenditures that occurred during the period of January 1, 2009, 
through June 30, 2009. Section 39 changes language in the measure concerning the ability to spend funding from the water development trust fund . The 
legislature required that water development trust fund moneys may only be spent pursuant to legislative appropriation. 
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TOBACCO PREVENTION and CONTROL TRUST FUND - 2017-2019 
As of February 17, 2017 

Beginning Balance 
Investment Income 

Expenditures 
Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control 

DOH: 

Tobacco Control ($5,500,000 LPHUs, $500,000 DOH,1.0 FTE, Other) 

Local Public Health Unit State Aid 

DHS: 

Ending Balance 

Cancer Programs 

Stroke & Cardiac Care 

Physician Loan Repayment 

Behavior Health Loan Repayment 

Medicaid Grants 

Opioid Treatment 

Total Expenditures 

Differences from Burgum Budget 
* Senate Amendments to SB 2004 - DOH Budget 

* * House Amendments to HB 1012 - DHS Budget 

• 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

56,304,520 

142,460 

$0.00 

6,953,333 * 

2,000,000 * 

644,804 

756,418 

480,000 
243,640 

11,078,195 

15,000,000 

1,000,000 ** 
16,000,000 

27,078,195 

29,368,785 



BreatheND 
Saving lives, saving money. The voice of the people. 

BreatheND Major Accomplishments thus far in 2015-17 

Goal 1 - Prevent initiation of tobacco use among youth and young adults 

1) Smoking by N. D. high school students decreased from 19% in 2013 to 11. 7% in 
2015 (2013 & 2015 N.D. Youth Risk Behavior Survey, N.D. Department of Public 
Instruction). 
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High School Cigarette Smoking 
North Dakota and United States 
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20% 

15.1% 

15% 

10% 
United States 

----~--
5% 

7.8% 8.2% 

0% 

1999 2001 

High School Smokeless Tobacco Use 
North Dakota and United States 

1999-2015* 

15.9% Overall Increase 30.7% Overall Decrease 

13.6% 13.8% 

11.2% 
10.3% 

r 8.8% 
8.0% 7.9% 7.7% 

6.7% 

DoH - CHTF Breathe ND 

2003 2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 

- ND - us *Youth Risk Behavior Survey 

7.3% 

2015 

2) Smokeless tobacco use by N.D. high school students decreased from 13.8% in 
2013 to 10.6% in 2015 (2013 & 2015 N.D. Youth Risk Behavior Survey, N.D. 
Department of Public Instruction). 

25% 

23% 

21% 

19% 

17% 

15% 

21.9% 

95% CI 
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Adult Smoking in North Dakota 

2011- 2015* 
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95%CI 
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3) In response to the emerging epidemic of e-cigarette use by N.D. high school 
students, BreatheND conducted a statewide public information campaign on the 
new e-cigarette youth protection law when it took effect in FY2016. This included 
statewide paid media, news in N.D. retailers' newsletter, mailing with signs to all 
N.D. retailers, and detailed online information. 

4) Local public health units worked with 23 Local Education Agencies (LEAs) that 
adopted comprehensive tobacco-free school policies. Statewide, 70% of LEAs 
and 70% of the student population is covered by comprehensive policies. Four 
local public health units reported that 100% of LEAs in their areas were now 
covered by comprehensive policies, bringing the total to 13. 

Number of LEAs with 
comprehensive 
tobacco-free policies 
has increased by 
169% since 
BreatheND began. 

87 ,920 North Dakota 
students in pre-K 
through 12th grade are 
learning in tobacco­
free environments. Accomplished in: 

1985-2008 

23 years 

Goal 2 - Eliminate exposure to secondhand smoke 

2009-current 

7 years with BreatheND 

5) The agency worked with local public health units to enhance compliance with the 
N.D. State Smoke-free Law. Local public health units visited 1,684 businesses. 
The agency distributed 33,229 free signs (NDCC 23-12-09 through 23-12-11 and 
NDCC 23-42-04). 

6) Local public health units reported 127 privately owned multi-unit housing 
buildings with a total of 2,296 units had smoke-free policies in place. Fourteen 
public housing buildings with 336 units became smoke-free. 

7) Seventeen tobacco-free grounds policies were enacted. 

Goal 3 - Promote quitting tobacco use 

8) In response to the need to reach populations with high smoking rates, 
BreatheND provided a $500,000 grant to N.D. Department of Health to promote 
cessation among pregnant women and American Indians through NDQuits. 

9) BreatheND funded N.D. State University to conduct and study education of 
chiropractors to identify clients who use tobacco and refer to NDQuits. 

10) BreatheND grants to local public health units resulted in up to 9,410 persons 
referred to NDQuits (soft and hard referral). 
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Goal 4 - Build capacity and infrastructure 

11) Breathe ND provided more than half of the agency budget, or a total of 
$8,025,491 to all 28 local public health units reaching every county. Local public 
health units were able to pay for up to 32 local FTEs to coordinate tobacco use 
prevention activities. 

12)Staff managed 3 grant programs and supported up to 63 annual grant awards 
(about 125 grants/biennium), granting 100% of the grant line ($9,866,665), to all 
local public health units and 4 statewide organizations (nearly 60 percent of the 
total agency budget). 

13)Staff managed 9 professional service contracts totaling $3,658,453 to provide the 
following statewide services: public education through statewide health 
communications; comprehensive evaluation and program impact studies to 
increase effectiveness; technical assistance and training to improve outcomes; and 
grant reporting systems to enhance accountability. 

14)1ncreased the tobacco state aid grants program in local public health units from 
$941,081 in FY2015 to $1 ,056,498 in FY2016 and $1 ,021,424 in FY2017, to be 
consistent with CDC Best Practices and streamline local grant reporting . 

15)A majority or near majority of residents seeing BreatheND's public education 
campaigns reported gaining new information from the ads, and those who saw ads 
had significantly more awareness of the harms caused by tobacco. Even 
BreatheND ads not about quitting were effective in motivating smokers to quit. 
(Professional Data Analysts , 2015) 

16)Nearly three-fourths (73%) of N.D. adults were concerned about tobacco use in the 
state, and 78% think that reducing the number of people who smoke should be a 
priority for North Dakota. (Professional Data Analysts , 2015) 
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E-Cigarette Use Among Youth and Young Adults 

North Dakota's Statewide Clean Indoor Air Law Prohibits Conventional 
Tobacco Products and E-Cigarettes 

In November 2012, North Dakota achieved a remarkable victory for statewide clean indoor air (BreatheND 
n.d.a.) despite major obstacles, including a harsh winter climate, an adult smoking rate of 21.9% (CDC 2013), and 
several prior failed legislative attempts to close exemptions in the state's 2005 clean indoor air law (CDC 2014). 
Despite these impediments, two-thirds of the state voted to prohibit both the smoking of conventional tobacco prod­
ucts and use of e-cigarettes in all non-hospitality workplaces; restaurants; bars; hotel guest rooms and communal 
areas; health care facilities; assisted living facilities; all licensed child and adult day care facilities; gaming facili­
ties; indoor areas of sports arenas; and within 20 feet of entrances, exits, operable windows, air intakes, and venti­
lation systems of enclosed areas where smoking is not allowed (BreatheND n.d.b.). Additionally, the law provided 
no exemptions for tobacco-only retail or "vape shops" (Americans for Nonsmokers' Rights Foundation 2015, n.d.). 

The 2012 ballot initiative on statewide clean indoor air resulted from the lack of progress in working with the 
legislature to try to close smoking exemptions in the state law. The initiative's sponsors, Tobacco Free North Dakota 
and the American Lung Association in North Dakota, worked closely with the Tobacco Control Legal Consortium 
to draft policy language, which included prohibiting the use of e-cigarettes anywhere smoking was prohibited. The 
sponsors approached stakeholders and assessed public support. Little opposition was encountered to prohibiting the 
use of e-cigarettes indoors. In addition to the sponsors' efforts, the North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and 
Control Policy conducted a media campaign and worked with local partners to educate their communities, resulting 
in 11 smokefree ordinances prior to the issuing of the statewide ballot initiative. The landslide victory (66% vs. 33%) 
in favor of clean indoor air, with the initiative successfully carried in every one of North Dakota's 53 counties, dem­
onstrated widespread public support for clean indoor air (Ballotpedia 2012). 

Only a few years later, the law continues to enjoy strong public support from nonsmokers (84.4%) and smokers 
(58%) alike. Compliance with the law is comparable to cigarette smoking; just 16.8% of North Dakotans reported 
having observed smoking indoors in areas where it was prohibited, and 23.2% reported having seen e-cigarettes 
used indoors in such places. Local enforcement personnel confirm a high level of compliance, reporting violations 
primarily related to smoking within 20 feet of entrances. To date, the only prosecuted violation of the law involved 
the sampling of an e-cigarette product inside a "vape shop" (BreatheND 2014). In hindsight, the decision to include 
e-cigarettes in North Dakota's smokefree law was helpful, given increasing concerns about involuntary exposure to 
nicotine and other aerosolized e-cigarette emissions. 

E-Cigarette Use Among Youth and 
Young Adults 

A Report of chc Surgeon General 

U.S lkpamnc:nrofHc.tltti 3nJ Hum:in \oen•icc.'!< 

2016 E-Cigarette Use Among Youth and Young Adults: A Report of the Surgeon General 
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Keep 
lobacco Settlement 

DOll~RSror 
lobacco Prevention 

1n 2oos, North Dakotans voted 
to use Tobacco Settlement dollars 
for tobacco prevention to significa 
reduce tobacco use. 

Annual( 

$326 million re costs 

Only a small part - just over 20% -

of North Dakota's tobacco 

settlement is invested in tobacco 

prevention. But what a payoff. 

High school smoking has been 
directly caused by smoking 

$56.9 million annual ND Medicaid costs 
caused by smoking 

cut almost in half! Still, new 

products like e-cigarettes, and 

millions spent to promote tobacco 

products, threaten our kids. The 

N.D. Center for Tobacco Prevention 

and Control Policy (BreatheND) 

can use the balance of its trust 

fund for another 7 years to further 

cut youth smoking, e-cigarette, 

and other tobacco use to the 

1,000 adult lives ND adults who die 
each year from their 
own smoking 

300 kids (under 18) who become 
new daily smokers 
each year 

www.tobaccofreekids.org/facts_issues/ 
toll_us/north_dakota 

of high school students 
use e-cigarettes 
2005-2015 Youth Risk 
Behavior Survey 

Annual marketing expense 

$ 34.1 million 

$ 1.4million 

90°/o 

Independent Evaluation: 
Professional Data Analysts 
(PDAJ 2076 Survey 

low single digits! BreatheND 

and its trust fund 

put this goal within 

our reach. 

Tobacco Industry 
Marketing 

North Dakota 
Tobacco 
Prevention 
Education 

$1.4 

ND Tobacco 
Prevention 
Education 
Expenses 

Tobacco 
Industry 

Marketing 
Expenses 

Federal Trade Commission (FTC) 
Cigarette and Smokeless 
Tobacco Reports for 2013 
published in 2016 

BreatheND 
Public Health 
l' fl' ~ l' lll 1'1 Uftll~U' ftt Dir-•· I 

Saving lives, saving money. The voice of the people. 

An initiated measure approved by North Da 
voters provides funding to North Dakota hea 
units to diminish the toll of tobacco in our state 
by addressing the number one preventable 
cause of death and disease: tobacco use. 

North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 



BreatheND 
Saving lives, saving money. The voice of the people. 

ND's Comprehensive Tobacco Prevention Plan: 
Saving Lives, Saving Money 
uses tobacco settlement dollars for tobacco prevention. 

Local Policy 
Grants awarded 

to all Local 
Public Health Units 

(LPHUs) 

LPHUs begin 
educating 

tenants/landlords 
110 tobacco-free grounds 

on smoke-free multi-17 smoke-free cities 
1,589 smoke-free MUH units unit housing (MUH) 

2014 

LPHUs begin working FDA proposes 
deeming rules to 

regulate e-cigarettes and 
other tobacco products 

on restricting 
e-cigarette 

youth access 

Implemented 
CDC Best Practices 

into State/Local 
Tobacco Programs 

2013 

Smoking Rates: 
Adults 21.2% 

Youth 19% 

2014 

Smoking Rates: 
Adults 21 .9% 
Youth 19.4% 

2012 

LPHUs helped pass 
9 city ordinances 

to prevent smoking in 
workplaces, protecting 
35% of ND's population 

SmokeFree! 

LPHUs provide assistance 
to local law enforcement 

on Smoke-Free Law 
education/compliance 

2015 

LPHUs helped pass 
24 city ordinances 

to restrict youth access 
to e-cigarettes 

Advisory Committee 
writes Letter of 

Support for 
e-cigarette 

deeming rules 
fr'S THE LAW. 

• 
2018 

2016 2016 

Surgeon General report LPHUs pass 
publishes North Dakota's local policies* 

Smoke-Free law as a 154 tobacco-free schools 
. . 126 tobacco-free grounds 

model e-c1garette policy 18 smoke-free cities 

6,883 smoke-free MUH units 

2019 2020 

2016 

Final FDA 
Deeming Rules 

classify e-cigarettes 
as tobacco product. 

2021 

North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 

2015 

Smoking rates: 
Adults 18.7% 
Youth 11.7% 

E-cigarette use rate: 
Youth 22.3% 

2022 

701.328.5130 • 1680 East Capitol Avenue, Suite A· Bismarck, ND 58501-5603 • BreatheND.com ·Updated December 2016 
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North Dakota's comprehensive tobacco prevention plan: Tobacco Use by North Dakota High School Students 

Saving Lives, Saving Money 25% _ Cigar~ttes 

22.1% 21.1% 
22.4% 

E-ciga~~ttes 

e 22.3% 

Goal 1: Prevent the Initiation of Tobacco Use 
Among Youth and Young Adults 

Question not 
20% ---~ -----------"'"'"-.,.:1:::;9.A'Yc:;:;0~o-=-~1-9.0%--asked-aefore 

2015 

15% Smokeless 
Tobacco 

13.6% 
11.7% 

Goal 2: Eliminate Exposure to Secondhand Smoke 

Goal 3: Promote Quitting Tobacco Use 5% 

2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 

Source: 2005 - 2015 Youth Risk Behavior Survey 

Goal 4: Build Capacity and Infrastructure to 
Implement a Comprehensive 
Evidence-Based Tobacco Prevention 
and Control Program 

" •.• the tobacco industry aggressively markets and promotes 
lethal and addictive products, and continues to recruit youth 
and young adults as new consumers of these products:' 

A Report of the Surgeon Genera/, 2014 

The majority of ND adults (80%) support the 
2012 ND State Smoke-Free Law, which prohibits 

smoking, including the use of e-cigarettes, 
inside all public areas, workplaces, and bars. 

80% support 

20% oppose 

Source: Support for 2012 State Law, ND Public Opinion Survey, 2015 

The majority of ND adults (90.2%) support the 
continued funding of North Dakota's 2008 state law 

establishing BreatheND's comprehensive 
tobacco prevention program. 

9.8% oppose 

Source: Support for Measure 3, ND Public Opinion Survey, 2015 

ND Adults' Support for 
Raising State Cigarette Tax 

2014- 2015 

Time-limited Trust Fund 

Payments from the tobacco settlement's 
Strategic Contribution Fund end in 2017. 

Tobacco Industry Outspends 
Tobacco Prevention in ND by 

$35 - 2300%--­
$34.1 100% _________ _ 

80% _________ _ 

69.2% 69.7% 

60% 

40% 

20% 

0% 

This final payment to the BreatheND trust fund 

will be made in 2017. A balance of about $54 

million will be used to fund comprehensive 

tobacco prevention at BreatheND for an 

estimated seven years beyond 2017. 

Tobacco Settlement Dollars 

$30 _____ _. 

~ $25 _____ _. 

~ 
~ $20 _____ _, 

$15 _____ _, 

$10 _____ -l 

$5 _____ -l 

$1.4 
$0 _..J..."---.;..:Jl_ _ __L _ __J__ 

Tobacco 
Industry 

Education Marketing 
Expenses Expenses 

2014 2015 

Source: ND Public Opinion Survey, 2014, 2015 
for Tobacco Prevention Source: Federal Trade Commission 

(FTC) Cigarette and Smokeless Tobacco 
Reports for 2013 published in 2016 

North Dakota uses tobacco settlement dollars for tobacco prevention: The state's comprehensive tobacco prevention plan, 
Saving Lives, Saving Money, is based on proven Best Practices established by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. The 
North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy (BreatheND), along with its local public health partners work hard to 
educate and pass effective policies and interventions within their communities to prevent tobacco use among our kids. 

* Policies passed/verified from FY2009 through FY2016 include the following: 154 Tobacco-free schools, protecting 67% of all students, 
126 Tobacco-free grounds, including parks, medical, dental, chiropractic, pharmacy, optometric, hospital, long-term care, ambulance 
services, Grand Forks Air Force Base treatment facility, physical therapy, etc., 18 Smoke-free cities, with 7 cities passing ordinances 
stronger than the state law, Smoke-free Multi-unit Housing buildings (6,883 units) agreed to make properties smoke free to further 
protect our kids and adults from secondhand smoke. • Our efforts are paying off. Youth smoking rates dropped from 22.4% in 2009 to 11.7% in 2015. Adult smoking rates dropped from 
21.9% in 2011 to 18.7% in 2015. However, there is more work to be done: youth e-cigarette use rates are at 22.3% among our high 
school kids, and the tobacco industry continues to target our youth with new products to hook them to a lifetime addiction to nicotine. 
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How North Dakota Distributes 
heir Tobacco Settlement Dollars 

for water, schools, health, and tobacco prevention 
Tobacco Settlement (Master Settlement Agreement - MSA) payments to ND (actual/estimated) 

100% of the 
Annual Tobacco 

Settlement 
Payments PLUS 

the Strategic 

Annual Tobacco Settlement Payments Strategic 
Contribution 

Fund 
Tobacco 

Prevention & 
Control 

Trust Fund 
ND State Contribution 
Biennium Fund 

1999-2001 $ 52.9 

2001-2003 53.5 

2003-2005 46.2 

2005-2007 43.7 

2007-2009 75.6 

009-2011 64.0 

63.0 

2013-2015 64.6 

2015-2017 63.0 

Subtotal $526.5 

2017-2019 52.5 

2019-2021 52.5 

2021 -2023 52.5 

2023-2025 52.5 

2025-perpetuity 
(no end date) 

52.5/ 
per year 

Subtotal $789.0 
Annual Tobacco 
Settlement payments 
continue for perpetuity 

45% 
Water 

Development 
Trust Fund 

$ 23.8 

24.1 

20.8 

19.7 

27.7 1 

18.2 

18.1 

19.0 

18.1 

$189.5 

23.6 

23.6 

23.6 

23.6 

23.6fr perye r 

$307.S 

45% 
Common 

Schools 
Trust Fund 

$ 23.8 

24.1 

20.8 

19.7 

27.71 

18.2 

18.1 

19.0 

18.1 

$189.5 

23.6 

23.6 

23.6 

23.6 

23.6/ 
per year 

$307.5 

1 First often payments from the Strategic Contribution Fund was disbursed 
45-45-10 to water, schools and health trust funds. 
From 2008 forward, 80% of the Community Health Trust Fund must be 
used for tobacco prevention and control. 

3 Nine often Strategic Contribution Fund payments will be deposited in the 
Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund for a comprehensive tobacco 
prevention program administered by BreatheND. 

10% 
Community 

Health 
Trust Fund 

(ND Health Department) 

$ 5.3 

5.3 

4.6 

4.3 

6.1 1, 2 

4.1 

4.0 

4.2 

4.0 

$41.9 

5.3 

5.3 

5.3 

5.3 

5.3/ 
per year 

$68.4 

(BreatheND) 

$1 4. P 

23.53 

22.83 

22.43 

22.83 

Total $105.6 

BreatheND 
Saving lives, saving money. The voice of the people. 

North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 
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What you need to know about the 
Tobacco Settlement in North Dakota 
In November 1998, North Dakota and 45 
other states signed the Master Settlement 
Agreement (MSA). The MSA is called the 
"tobacco settlement" because it settled state 
lawsuits against major tobacco companies. 
North Dakota's lawsuit cited how tobacco 
companies violated N.D. consumer protection 
and anti-trust laws (N.D. Century Code 51-15 
and 51-08.1 ), resulting in more N.D. youth and 
adults becoming addicted to tobacco. 

States agreed that the central purpose of the 
tobacco settlement is to reduce smoking and 
tobacco use, especially by youth. 

The tobacco settlement requires that major 
tobacco companies pay states billions each year, 
based on U.S. tobacco sales. These "annual 
payments" continue "in perpetuity" - without 
any end date. From the first payment in 1999 
through 2008, North Dakota received an average 
of more than $25 million/year. The 1999 Legisla­
ture invested only 10% in a new Community 
Health Trust Fund, funding some tobacco control 
efforts through the N.D. Department of Health. 
The other 90% was split evenly, with 45% 
deposited into a new Water Development Trust 
Fund, and 45% into the Common Schools Trust 
Fund. (The 45-45-1 O distribution is in NDCC 
54-27-25.) 

From 2008 to 2017, North Dakota will receive 
1 O additional "Strategic Contribution Fund" 
payments, averaging about $12 million/year, 
over and above the annual payments. Strategic 
Contribution Fund payments are based on each 
state's contribution to finalizing the tobacco 
settlement, and North Dakota's contribution was 
significant. North Dakota's negotiation assured 
that payments to small states would be large 
enough to fund a comprehensive statewide 
tobacco prevention program. The state's first 
Strategic Contribution Fund payment, received 
in April 2008, was disbursed according to the 
45-45-10 formula to water, schools and health. 

In November 2008, N.D. voters passed Initiated 
Measure 3. This law (NDCC 23-42, 54-27-25) 
requires that the remaining 9of1 O Strategic 
Contribution Fund payments be placed in a 
Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund for 
a comprehensive tobacco prevention program. 
The law also requires 80% of the community 
health trust fund be used for tobacco control at 
the state health department. The law continues 
to direct the annual payments to trust funds for 
water (45%), schools (45%), and community 
health (10%). 

The Governor-appointed nine-member Advisory 
Committee of tobacco control experts developed 
a state plan for the new comprehensive program. 
Three Advisory Committee members, an 
Executive Committee, implement the state plan 
through the N.D. Center for Tobacco Prevention 
and Control Policy, also known as "BreatheND:' 
The state plan must follow the U.S. Centers for 
Disease Control's (CDC) Best Practices funding 
and program recommendations. 

Strategic Contribution Fund payments to 
North Dakota end in 2017. The Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Trust Fund's balance of 
about $54 million provides funding and time to 
further reduce high school smoking from 11.7% 
to the low single digits. Nearly eliminating N.D. 
youth tobacco use is within reach! 

The other tobacco settlement annual payments 
to North Dakota do not end. North Dakota will 
continue to receive an estimated $26 million/year, 
split 45-45-10 between water, schools and the 
N.D. Department of Health's Community Health 
Trust Fund. 

BreatheND 
Saving lives, saving money. The voice of the people. 

North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 
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Best 
Practices 
11rComprehenll.ft Toi.coo Control Programs _______ Sectifm C- Recommended Funding Levels, by State 

North Dakota 

Recommended Annual Investment 

Deaths In State Caused by Smoking 

Annual average smoking-attributable deaths 

Youth aged 0-17 projected to die from smoking 

Annual Costs Incurred In State from Smoking 

Total medical 

State Revenue from Tobacco Sales and Settlement 

FY 201 2 tobacco tax revenue 

FY 2012 tobacco settlement payment 

Total state revenue from tobacco sales and settlement 

Percent Tobacco Revenue to Fund at Recommended Level 

Annual Total (Millions) 

$9.8 million 

1,000 

13,900 

$326 million 

$28.2 million 

$31.5 million 

$59.7 million 

16% 

Annual Per Capita 
Minimum Recommended Minimum i Recommended 

I. State and Community Interventions 
Multiple social resources working together will 
have the greatest long-term population impact. 

II. Mass-Reach Health Communication Interventions 
Media interventions work to prevent smoking initiation, 
promote cessa tion, and shape social norms. 

Ill. Cessation Interventions 
Tobacco use treatment is effective and highly cost-effective. 

IV. Surveillance and Evaluation 
Publicly funded programs s hou ld ~ accountable and 
demonstrate effectiveness. 

V. Infrastructure, Administration, and Management 
Complex, integrated programs require experienced 
staff to provide fiscal management, accountability, 
and coordination. 

TOTAL 

$2.9 

$0.9 

$2.3 

$0.6 

$03 

$70 

$3.7 $4.15 $5.29 

$1.3 $1.29 $1.86 

$35 $3.29 $5.00 

$09 $087 $1.22 

$04 $0.44 $0.61 

$9.8 $10.04 $13.98 

Note: A just ification for each program element and the rationale for the budget estimates are provided in Section A The funding estimates pre­
sented are based on adjustments for changes in population and cost-of-living increases since Best Praaices-2007 was published. The actual 
funding required for implementing programs wil l vary depending on state characteristics, such as preva lence of tobacco use, sociodemographic 
factors, and other factors. See Appendix E for data sources on deaths, costs, revenue, and state-specific factors. 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevent ion • Office on Smoking and Health 
www.cdc.gov/tobacco • tobaccoinfo@cdc.gov • 1 (800) COC- INFO or 1 (800) 232-4636 

Funding Recommendation Formulas: The recomnended levels of investment (per capita and total) are presented in 2013 dollars using 2012 population estimates. 
To account for inflation and changes in the U.S. population over time, these estinates can be updated using data from the U.S. Department of Labor Consumer 
Price Index and U.S. Census Bureau. 
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BENEFITS AND SAVINGS FROM SMOKING DECLINES IN NORTH DAKOTA 

From 2013 to 2015, the youth smoking rate in North Dakota declined significantly, sharply reducing 
the harms and costs caused by smoking in the State. 

2013 2015 Fewer Current 
Smokers 

High School Youth Smoking 19.0% 11 .7% 2,880 

Because of these declines: 

• 11,520 fewer kids alive today in North Dakota will grow up to be addicted adult smokers 

• 3,840 fewer of today's residents in North Dakota will ultimately die prematurely from smoking 

In addition , by prompting current adult and youth smokers to quit, the state has locked in enormous 
savings over the lifetimes of each person stopped from future smoking. Put simply, the lifetime 
health care costs of smokers total at least $21,000 more than nonsmokers, on average, despite the 
fact that smokers do not live as long, with a somewhat smaller difference between smokers and 
former smokers. 

The substantial ongoing improvements in public health from the smoking declines detailed above 
have secured the following reductions in health care costs: 

I Future Health Cost Savings from Youth Smoking Declines $241.9 million 

Tobacco use is the number one cause of preventable death in North Dakota, killing 1,000 people 
each year, while thousands of others suffer from smoking-caused disease and disability. It is also a 
substantial drain on the state's economy, costing the state $326 million in health care costs every 
year. Providing significant funding to statewide tobacco prevention and cessation programs would 
provide additional tobacco use declines and produce enormous public health and economic benefits. 

For more on state investments in tobacco prevention and related smoking-decline benefits and savings, see: 
http://www.tobaccofreekids.org/facts issues/fact sheets/policies/prevention us state/ 

Notes and Sources. Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System. Youth Tobacco Survey, Youth Risk Behavior 
Surveillance System or specific state youth smoking surveys. Youth prevented from becoming adult smokers is calculated 
by applying the percent change in the state's youth smoking rate to the estimate of youth projected to become adult 
smokers (which is based on adjusted CDC Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System (BRFSS) prevalence data for 18-25 
year olds and U.S. census data for the population under 18 years old) . Estimates of lives saved is calculated using CDC 
methodology presented in CDC, "Projected Smoking-Related Deaths Among Youth-United States," MMWR 45(44) :971-
974, November 11 , 1996. Future health care savings from smoking reductions accrue over the lifetimes of those persons 
who quit or do not start. The lifetime health care costs of smokers total at least $21,000 more than nonsmokers, on 
average, despite the fact that smokers do not live as long; but the average savings per each adult quitter are less than that 
because adult smokers have already been significantly harmed by their smoking and have already incurred or locked-in 
extra, smoking-caused health costs. See Hodgson, TA, "Cigarette Smoking and Lifetime Medical Expenditures," Milbank 
Quarterly 70(1) , 1992. See also, Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids factsheet, Lifetime Healthcare Costs: Smokers v. Non­
smokers v. Former Smokers; Warner, KE, et al. , "Medical Costs of Smoking in the United States: Estimates, Their Validity, 
and Their Implications," Tobacco Contro/ 8(3) :290-300, Autumn 1999. On average, the federal government reimburses the 
states for roughly 57% of their Medicaid program costs. CDC, Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control 
Programs, 2014, http://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/stateandcommunity/best practices/. 
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ANALYSIS OF THE TOBACCO PREVEN AND CONTROL TRUST FUND 
FOR THE 2015-17 AND 2017-19 BIENNIUMS 

(REFLECTING LEGISLATIVE ACTION AS OF CROSSOVER) 

Beginning balance 

Add estimated revenues 
Tobacco settlement revenues collected to date 
Projected tobacco settlement revenues 
Investment and miscellaneous revenue 

Total estimated revenues 

Total available 
Less estimated expenditures and transfers 

Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee: 
Expenditures pursuant to 2015 HB 1024 

State Department of Health (2017 SB 2004): 
Local public health unit grants 
Cancer programs 
Stroke and cardiac care programs 
Physician loan repayment program 
Behavioral health loan repayment program 
Tobacco program grant 
Tobacco prevention and control program 

Department of Human Services (2017 HB 1012): 
Medicaid grants 
Opioid treatment 

Total estimated expenditures and transfers 

Estimated ending balance 

2015-17 Biennium 

$11 ,480,8891 
11,480,8892 

142,4603 

$16,548,0395 

$49,341,421 

23, 104,2384 

$72,445,659 

16,548,039 

$55,897,620 

2017-19 Biennium 

$02 
142,4603 

$05 

$2,000,000 
644,804 
756,418 
480,000 
243,640 
500,000 

6,453,333 

15,000,000 
1,000,000 

$55,897,620 

142,4604 

$56,040,080 

27,078,195 

$28,961 ,885 

1As of January 2017 the state has received tobacco settlement payments totaling $31,947,333 for the 2015-17 biennium, of which $20,466,444 was deposited in 
the tobacco settlement trust fund and $11,480,889 was deposited in the tobacco prevention and control trust fund. To date, the state has received total tobacco 
settlement collections of $495,923,569, including $387,862,947 under subsection IX(c)(1) of the Master Settlement Agreement and $108,060,622 under 
subsection IX(c)(2) of the Master Settlement Agreement. Of the $495,923,569, $401,660,676 has been deposited into the tobacco settlement trust fund and 
$94,262,893 has been deposited into the tobacco prevention and control trust fund. 

2Tobacco prevention and control trust fund revenues have been estimated based on actual revenues received through January 2017 and executive budget 
estimated revenues for the 2017-19 biennium. The 2017-19 revenues do not include a deposit in the tobacco prevention and control trust fund because the final 
payment under subsection IX(c)(2) of the Master Settlement Agreement is anticipated in April 2017. 

31n August 2015 the Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee entered into an agreement with the State Investment Board to provide investment 
management services for the tobacco prevention and control trust fund. On September 30, 2015, the Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee 
transferred $47.3 million to the State Investment Board for management. The investment policy statement adopted by the executive committee includes an asset 
mix of 75 percent global fixed income, 10 percent global equity, and 15 percent cash. Estimated investment income reflects earnings and realized gains, but does 
not include changes in the market value of the investments. 

North Dakota Legislative Council February 2017 
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Senate Bill 2024 in support of continued funding for a comprehensive tobacco 
prevention program 

March 8, 2017 
House Appropriations Human Resources Division Committee 

Representative Chet Pollert, Chair 

Good morning Mr. Chair and members of the Committee. My name is Larry Shireley 

and I am the Evaluation Programs Manager for BreatheND. I was the State 

Epidemiologist for 16 years and Director of the Division of Disease Control for the North 

Dakota Department of Health. I also served 26 years in the Air Force and ND Air 

National Guard as a public health officer with my last 7 years fulltime as the first 

commander of the 81 51 Civil Support Team. Before joining BreatheND I was the Director 

of Policy for the Community Healthcare Association of the Dakotas. I am here to 

provide information about some of the significant impacts of the comprehensive tobacco 

prevention program coordinated by BreatheND and of the potential impacts of 

decreasing funding for the program. 

In public health, primary prevention is the guiding principal to controlling disease, 

healthcare costs and ultimately premature death. We know that tobacco use, primarily 

cigarette smoking, is the number one cause of preventable disease and premature 

death in North Dakota. We also know that nicotine is highly addicting and that quitting 

smoking is extremely difficult. So what has been the impact of BreatheND in preventing 

cigarette smoking? It has already been noted that since the inception of BreatheND 

BreatheND 
Saving lives, saving money. The voice of t he people. 

www.breatheND.com 



and the comprehensive tobacco prevention program, the high school smoking rate 

decreased nearly 50% from 22.4% in 2009 to 11 .7% in 2015. To provide further 

information of the effectiveness of the comprehensive tobacco prevention program, 

BreatheND requested additional analyses of the impact of decreased smoking rates by 

expert tobacco prevention specialists, Ors. John Tauras and Frank Chaloupka of the 

University of Illinois in Chicago (UIC). 

The researchers estimated that due to the decreased high school smoking rate, there 

were 673 fewer high school students who smoked between 2010 and 2015 resulting in 

a projected total lifetime healthcare cost savings of $17.8 million dollars. Not only has 

the high school smoking rate declined, the percentage of North Dakota middle school 

students who smoked decreased over 50% during this same time period from 7.3% to 

3.6%, resulting in nearly 1,300 fewer middle school students who smoked. This 

decrease is projected to result in a total lifetime healthcare cost savings of over $34 

million dollars. It is important to note that the decline in smoking rates of both North 

Dakota high school and middle school students was greater than the national rate from 

2010 to 2015. Combined , the lifetime health care cost savings resulting from funding a 

comprehensive tobacco prevention program during this period due to student smoking 

decreases is projected to be more than $52 million dollars. 

In addition to the impact of decreased youth smoking rates, the prevalence of smoking 

by pregnant women fell from 17% to 14% from 2009 to 2014; an 18% decrease 

compared to the national decline of 10%. As a result, the researchers indicated that 

between 2010 and 2015, 50 fewer low birth weight babies were born, resulting in first 
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year hospital cost savings of $1.8 million dollars. However, the impact and costs 

savings are likely much greater since these analyses do not include numerous other 

costs associated with low weight babies. 

What it is the potential impact of reducing the amount spent to fund a comprehensive 

tobacco prevention program? Ors. Tauras and Chaloupka estimated that reducing the 

funding for the program to the current planned funding level would result in an increase 

of the prevalence of adult smoking from 18.7% to 19.1 % and 1,780 more adult smokers 

in FY18 than in FY17. This increase in adult smokers is estimated to result in an 

increase of smoking-related health care costs between $1 .8 and $5.5 million dollars in 

FY18. Extrapolating to the expected increase in North Dakota's population, this 

increased adult smoking rate is estimated to result in between $12.6 to $38.6 million in 

additional healthcare costs during the next seven years. Additionally, productivity 

losses due to smoking are expected to be between $1 .5 and $4.6 million dollars in FY18 

and a total of between $10.5 and $32.1 million dollars during the next seven years. 

The potential impact of decreased funding on youth smoking is also expected to be 

significant. It is estimated that the high school smoking rate would increase from 11 .7% 

to 12.55% yielding an increase of 283 students who smoke in FY18 and a total increase 

of 697 who will smoke during the next 7 years. They also projected an expected 

increase in the prevalence of smoking among middle school students from 3.6% to 

4.14%. This increased smoking prevalence rate is estimated to result in an additional 

188 middle school students who will become smokers in FY18, and a total of 435 

additional smokers in the next seven years. They estimated that the increase in youth 
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smoking rates will result in an increase of almost $30 million dollars in lifetime increased 

healthcare costs from FY18 TO FY24. 

Study after study indicate comprehensive tobacco prevention programs are cost 

effective, decrease cigarette sales, and decrease youth, college student and adult 

smoking prevalence. As it has been illustrated, decreasing funding for the 

comprehensive program has the potential impact of not only reversing the successes 

we have achieved in reducing youth smoking, but will also likely increase smoking­

related disease, mortality and their associated healthcare costs. The UIC researchers 

summed up their report by stating, "The spending on tobacco control in North Dakota is 

almost certainly generating a significant return on investment." 

The successes of North Dakota's comprehensive tobacco control program coordinated 

by BreatheND are evident and it is clear that the program has, and is, meeting the goals 

of North Dakotans who voted for implementing Measure 3 in 2008 to establish an 

effective, comprehensive tobacco prevention program. From experience, I know how 

important and difficult it can be to document program success, but there is little doubt 

about the effectiveness of North Dakota's comprehensive tobacco program. Therefore, 

it seems incomprehensible why a program with such proven successes would be 

disbanded. Therefore, I urge your continued support and funding for North Dakota's 

comprehensive tobacco prevention program under the coordination of BreatheND. 

Thank you and I will be pleased to answer any questions. 
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North Dakota "Center" for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy (BreatheND) 
Chairman Pollert and members of the House Appropriations Human Resources Division: 

I am Donna Thronson - Health Communications Manager for the ND Center for Tobacco 
Prevention and Control Policy (aka the Center, or BreatheND). I am here to share with you how 
health communications work at a Centers for Disease Control Best Practice level. 

Mass-Reach Health Communications Interventions is one of the five CDC Best Practice 
critical components to reduce and prevent tobacco use. CDC identifies that the "most effective 
population-based approaches" for mass reach include: television, radio, billboards, print and 
digital advertising at both the state and local levels. 

So, why is a mass reach approach needed? 

Mass reach health communications at a comprehensive level - advertising and public relations 
outreach at a ST ATE AND LOCAL LEVEL - is designed to EDUCATE the public on tobacco's 
harms, so that our citizens support healthier choices, and choose to remain tobacco free and 
support efforts that encourage a tobacco free community. When you increase awareness, you 
impact behavior and attitudes. 

Behavior and attitude changes result in support for public policy. And policy is what we - the 
Center/BreatheND - do best. And strong, effective policy is how we reduce tobacco use rates 
among our kids and help tobacco users quit. Because of strong, comprehensive policies, we 
begin to see a shift in what is considered "normal," which then results in fewer kids ever starting, 
and encourages existing tobacco users to quit. Remember - it used to be acceptable to smoke 
in schools, in airplanes, and even hospitals. The change part of these hard-fought battles is 
soon taken for granted as policies are normalized. 

There are three categories to health communications, and each category has a recommended 
gross rating point level that best practices must meet to be effective on a mass-reach level. The 
three categories are: 1) Educating on the harms of secondhand smoke 2) Tobacco Industry De­
normalizing (exposing the tobacco industry's marketing tactics), and 3) Cessation. 

CDC Best Practices and research tells us that campaigns must be hard-hitting to be effective. 
The Center's messages are hard hitting. We know this because we pre-test all messages, 
then pre-test the commercials before we run them statewide. And finally, we contract 
with a third-party evaluator to make sure our ads and messages are on track to meet our 
tobacco prevention goals. 

BreatheND 
Saving lives, saving money. The vo ice of the people. 
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The Center's messages provide education, so that we see a shift in attitudes and opinions, and 
also help tobacco users quit: 

(reference attachment A) 

Attachment A shows results of a third party evaluation (Professional Data Analysts , Inc.) of 
BreatheND's ads, and one ad from the ND Department of Health (Chains). 
Note that all three categories are covered in this report: secondhand smoke, tobacco industry 
de-normalizing, and cessation: 

BreatheND ads performed very well in terms of memorability, diffusion, and imparting a new 
perspective. And I'd like to draw your attention to the intentions to quit using tobacco (far 
right column). All categories and ads outperformed the "Chains", ad for having a cessation 
impact. And the ads with the greatest impact for cessation are in the tobacco industry de­
normalizing category. These are the ads that focus on kids being targeted by the tobacco 
industry - this category produces even greater demand for quitting than the CDC 
National Tips from Former Smoker's campaign: 43% vs. 34%. These are incredible 
results. 

Attachment A also shows the support for policy. For example, if you look at support for 
smoke free apartments, prior to any secondhand smoke campaign to keep apartments 
smoke free, support was at 59% (2014), with two years of education through mass media 
and local educational efforts, support increased to 86%. As a result, we now have 6,883 
smoke free apartment units where people can live smoke-free and healthier lives. We know 
these ads work. When the ads are run , calls for help into the Center and to local public health 
increase. 

The bottom line is that these ads work and are cost effective. 

LOCAL SUPPORT: 
In addition , HEAL TH COMMUNICATIONS INTERVENTIONS also include local community 
outreach efforts, such as preparing news releases, brochures, print ads, and adjusting model 
policies to fit each local community for their specific needs: this work gets done by us -
CENTER STAFF- working with local public health on a one-to-one basis to assure their 
local public health public relations and policy efforts align with the overall strategy. This 
is important so that each community can concentrate on policy for their specific 
community. This task is a daily process to assure the progress continues and state plan 
goals are being met. 

The Center is about policy. And when policies are challenged by opposing forces, mostly under 
the influence of the tobacco industry, the Center and its partners are there to support strong 
policy, which result in better health outcomes. 

I urge you to support the continuation of the work of the Center and keep SB2024 funded . 

BreatheND 
Saving lives, sav ing money. The vo ice of the people. 

www.breatheND.com 
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The CDC Tips ads were the highest performing; the ad Chains was the lowest performing Attachment A 

Overal l, all three campaigns 
rformed well. Visual aided 

reness was highest for the CDC 
ips ads. The range of aided 

awareness in FY16 is higher than 
FY15; however, the same disparity in 
awareness levels of the CDC Tips 
campaign (86%) and the SHS (49%) 

and TID Youth (41%) campaigns 
exist. 

BreatheND ads are performing well 
in terms of memorability, diffusion, 

and imparting new perspective. The 
individual CDC Tips ads and the ad 
Vulnerable had slightly stronger 
memorability than the other ads, 
otherwise impact levels were similar 
across ads and campaigns. Ad 
effectiveness increased from FY15. 

The ads are reaching important 
groups of North Dakotans equally, 

including tobacco and non-tobacco 
users, men and women, and all ages. 

Despite higher aided awareness, the 
ad Chains had the lowest impact and 
effectiveness levels of all t he ads 
evaluated. 

Compared to other ads, I have talked with friends This ad gave me a 
For tobacco users only ... 
This ad made me 

Visual aided awareness I remember this ad about this ad new perspective ... want to quittobacco .. . 
Where You Live 

Vulnerable 

SHSCampaign -
Toe Tag 

1of3 

TIO Youth Campaign Mf M 
Epidemic 

Buerger's Disease -

Shawn ­

CDC Tips Campaign 86% 

Chains .. 
Yes 

.. 

.. -m 
No More/ Equally well 

,bacco-related policy support remains high 

Less Yes 

The highest levels of tobacco-related policy support are 
for keeping all tobacco products behind the counter and 
purchased with clerk assistance (89%) and smoke-free 
apartment buildings (86%). Support for policies like an 
increased cigarette tax and restrictions on fruit and 
candy flavored cigarettes, is moderate but gaining 
support from 2014 to 2016. 

All tobacco products kept 
behind the counter & 

purchased with assistance(2016 only) 

Smoke-free apartment 
buildings 

Smoke-free casinos 

$2 tax on cigarettes 

Restricting flavored 
tobacco 

• 2014 

A w 
0 84o/. 

• • 74% 

65% •• 
•2015 • 2016 

25% 50% 75% 100% 
Percent of participants who agree or strongly agree 

enerally females and non-tobacco users show the 
hest levels of support. Young adults and those in the 

ii corridor are less likely to support smoke-free casinos 
and restricting flavored tobacco products. 

, . -Ell 
No Yes 

Recommendations 

No A loVSomewhat Not at all 

llJli> The Center met the 2014 CDC guidelines and shou ld 
continue to develop ads and purchase GRPs in line with 
CDC recommendations. 

llJli> Aided awareness of the SHS and TIO campaigns was 
lower than the hard-hitting, graphic CDC Tips campaign. 
The Center may want to continue monitoring ad 
awareness and consider re-evaluating these ads in the 
future. 

llJli> It may be helpful for The Center in collaboration with 
the ND DOH to consider which qualities of the ad Chains 
or its media buys contribute to its weaker impact. 

llJli> Attitudes towards secondhand smoke, the tobacco 
industry, the health-related effects of tobacco, and 
cessation were very high regardless of ad awareness. In 
future evaluations, The Center should keep th is in mind 
as it will be difficult to show continued improvement. 

llJli> Even though overall tobacco-related policy support is 
strong, there is room for improved support, especial ly 
among males. The Center may wish to continue working 
towards increased policy support. 

Prepared by Professional Data Analysts, Inc. - August 2016 
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House Appropriations Human Resources Committee 
Senate Bill 2024 
March 8, 2017 

Chairman Pollert and Human Resources Committee members. I am Susan Simonson, 
Health Communications Coordinator at the Center (BreatheND). 

I am here to provide testimony to keep the Center funded . 

With 30 years of communications experience, I provide support to the Local Public Health 
Units on a daily basis by assisting with individualized signage, print ads, newsletters, 
brochures, presentations, and general IT. These tools assist the Local Public Health Units 
as they educate at the local level. 

Not only do I provide this localized assistance but I also maintain our BreatheND website 
that delivers tobacco prevention education 24/7. 

By using Google Analytics, I am able to calculate the site's impact. One notable calculation 
involves tracking the sessions, multiplying by the average-time-on-site and then dividing to 
determine the number of hours of interaction. With this calculation , I am able to determine 
that in 

January, 2017 the site provided 190 hours of tobacco prevention education 
(16,323 sessions x 42 seconds= 685,566 seconds= 190 hours) 

and in February, 2017 the site provided 218 hours of tobacco prevention education 
(15, 113 sessions x 52 seconds= 785,876 seconds= 218 hours). 

These website stats equate to more than an additional full-time position, without the 
added cost of health insurance, sick-leave, and retirement benefits. 

The website is one example of how we, as Center staff, are encouraged to be lean and 
effective in our work. This is the kind of efficiency we need in state government and 
we provide it. 

Because of the lives impacted through this tobacco prevention education, I ask that you 
amend SB 2024 to fund the Center and keep this tobacco prevention education alive. 

Thank you . 

BreatheND 
Saving lives, saving money. The voice of the people. 

www.breatheND.com 
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Chairman Pollert and Human Resources Committee members. I am Barbara Andrist, Statewide 
Programs Manager at the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy. 

I am a registered nurse having worked in public health for the past 40 years, 21 years at Upper 
Missouri District Health Unit. I bring up being a public health nurse because my present position 
has a medical analogy. The Center or BreatheND is the central nervous system for tobacco 
prevention and control in North Dakota. We work with local public health units, statewide and 
national organizations, state agencies, state licensing boards, and you as legislators to organize 
tobacco prevention and control efforts into an integrated and effective structure to maximize 
proven tobacco CDC Best Practice interventions to accomplish our goals. 

How does the Center do this? A comprehensive state tobacco prevention and control plan 
based on CDC Best Practices which you have a copy of. This plan is a team effort led by me. 
The team consists of local public health, statewide organizations like American Lung of ND, the 
ND Department of Health Tobacco Control program and Center staff. The content has rationale 
which describes why we do this, a baseline tells us where we are at and an evaluation tells us if 
we met our projected objective outcome. Health data from surveillance and evaluation work are 
fundamental in our measured outcomes. 

The state plan is required in NDCC 23-42 to be annually evaluated for effectiveness as well as 
having a biennial independent evaluation. If the strategies in each objective are not getting us to 
the objective's evaluation outcome measure, we revise the strategies to meet the object and 
start the process over. The revisions suggested by the biennial independent evaluation are 
incorporated into the state plan as well. The advisory committee directs the plan and 
evaluation. 

The state plan once approved becomes the work plan for local public health units, statewide 
special initiative grants; the basis for our health communications which educates and provides 
information to our citizens; guides the development of our model policies; facilitates research in 
our state; provides statewide reporting framework for all grantees, provides the basis for 
knowledge and skill building in our quarterly training for grantees and advocates working for 
system policy changes. Our funding level at the recommended CDC level is crucial to 
accomplishment of our state plan. 

AAR - Ask, Advise and Refer is an annual chart audit for tobacco state aid for local public 
health; Ask about tobacco use, Advise the client to quit and Refer the client to the Quitline or 
provider. This is an example of a system change that also serves as a quality improvement 
measurement for client health. I work with local public health on the chart audits, receive the 
completed audits and with our independent evaluator to give constructive feedback to improve 
the public health system of AAR. 

BreatheND 
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Being the central nervous system, we monitor the environment. SB 2088 is an example of an 
environmental awareness - licensed addiction counselor's scope of practice currently does not 
allow them to do tobacco or nicotine counseling. This obstacle was identified when surveillance 
data showed the smoking rate for someone with a behavioral health issue is almost double the 
rate compared to the general population tobacco use rate. Why not improve the efficiency of 
successful treatment of all substance use during the counseling session with a trusted 
counselor? Working with the Behavioral Health Division at ND Department of Human Services 
and the ND Board of Addiction Counseling Examiners we have Senate Bill 2088 to expand the 
scope of practice not only for tobacco and nicotine but gambling and other harmful substances. 

In 1982, RJ Reynolds tobacco company documents stated: "If a man has never smoked by age 
18, the odds are three to one he never will. By age 21, the odds are twenty to one." Prevention 
is the key to our state plan and my work at the Center. We are on the road to single digit 
tobacco use but only having a fully funded central nervous system based on CDC Best 
Practices for Tobacco Prevention and Control. 

BreatheND 
Saving lives, saving money. The voice of the people. 
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SAVING LIVES - SAVING MONEY 
NORTH DAKOTA'S COMPREHENSIVE STATE PLAN 

TO PREVENT AND REDUCE TOBACCO USE 
2016-2018 YEAR 8 FY2017 

Goal 1: Prevent the Initiation of Tobacco Use Among Youth and Young Adults 

Objective 1: By June 30, 2017, increase the price of cigarettes by a minimum of $2.00 per pack 
and a corresponding price increase for all other tobacco products excluding FDA approved 
Nicotine Replacement Therapy products. 

Rationale: Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids, from projections of research, findings are that each 10% 
cigarette price increase reduces youth smoking by 6.5%, adult smoking rates by 2% and total 
consumption by about 4% (adjust down to account for tax evasion effects). The Guide to Community 
Preventive Services, November, 2012, pg. 1-2 confirms public health effects are proportional to the 
size of price increase and scale of intervention." CDC Best Practice for Comprehensive Tobacco 
Control Programs January 2014 recommends increase the unit price of tobacco products for preventing 
tobacco use among youth. 

Baseline: Current cigarette excise tax is $0.44. The North Dakota cigarette tax was last increased in 
1993 and current tax ranking is 48t11 in the United States. Excise tax on other tobacco products (pipe 
tobacco and cigars) is 28% on wholesale purchase price. Chewing tobacco and snuff are taxed on 
weight. Electronic smoking devices are not defined nor taxed as a tobacco product in ND Century 
Code. Youth smoking prevalence rate is 11. 7% (YRBS 2015) and youth smokeless tobacco rate is 
10.6% (YRBS 2015). Adult smoking prevalence rate is 19.9% and adult male smokeless tobacco rate 
is 11.8% (BRFSS 2014). ND American Indian adult smoking rate is 45.7% (BRFSS 2014). 

Evaluation: Youth smoking prevalence rate drops to single digits. 
Youth smokeless tobacco rate drops to HP2020 goal 6.9% from ND 10.6%. (YRBS 2015) 
ND American Indian rate drops from 49% to 47%. (Source: 2013 CDC's State Tobacco 

Activities Tracking and Evaluation (ST ATE) system, Data Highlight Report. Estimates are a 
combination of two years of data.) 

Minimum price per pack of cigarettes is increased by $2.00 per pack along with a 
corresponding price increase for other tobacco products. 

Adult smoking prevalence rate drops to HP2020 goal of 12% from ND 17.5%. (2015 
Adult Tobacco Survey) 

Lead: ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 

Strategies: 



1. Conduct surveys of public, legislators, and candidates to determine level of support. 
2. Develop a policy plan with state and local support (legislative strategy, educational materials 

including information on all tobacco products, develop and activate coalitions among 
populations affected by tobacco-related disparities and youth). 

3. Introduction of legislative bill to increase all tobacco prices. 
4. Introduction of legislative bill to define electronic smoking devices as a tobacco product. 
5. Monitor legislative activity and implement policy plan. 
6. Evaluation of policy plan after session. 
7. Advocate for federal excise tax increase. 
8. Continued dialogue with tribal leaders and ND state officials (Governor, Tax Commissioner, 

Attorney General and Indian Affairs Commissioner Executive Director) for consideration of 
tribal and state tobacco compacts matching or exceeding the state price of cigarettes by a 
minimum of $2.00 per pack and a corresponding price increase for all other tobacco products 
excluding FDA approved Nicotine Replacement Therapy. 

Objective 2: By June 30, 2018, the ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 
comprehensive model tobacco-free school policy will cover 90% of the total student enrollment 
and be adopted by 90% of the defined Local Education Agencies in each public health unit. 

Rationale: "Community programs and school and college policies and interventions should be part of a 
comprehensive effort, coordinated and implemented in conjunction with efforts to create tobacco-free 
social norms, including increasing the unit price of tobacco products, sustaining anti-tobacco media 
campaigns and making environments smoke-free." (Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco 
Control Programs, January 2014, p. 19). Tobacco-free school policy promotes a tobacco-free lifestyle 
and environment for all students, staff and visitors and establishes a tobacco-free social norm. 

Baseline: ND has 227 Local Education Agencies in FY 2016. As of December 31 , 2015, 149 (66%) of 
the LEAs have adopted comprehensive tobacco-free school policies and 66.7% of LEA student 
enrollment are protected by comprehensive tobacco-free school policies. 

Evaluation: 90% of total student enrollment will be covered by a comprehensive tobacco-free policy. 
90% of the LEAs in each public health unit will adopt or maintain a comprehensive tobacco-free 
policy. 

Lead: ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 

Strategies: 

I. Communicate with School Health Interagency/Community Work Group (SHIW) about the ND 
Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy (ND Center) comprehensive model tobacco­
free school policy (August 2013). 

2. ND Center staff/grantees secure endorsement from other potential partners, (i.e. ND United, 
ND Council of Educational Leaders) in addition to continuing dialogue with the North Dakota 
School Boards Association (NDSBA) for the August 2013 ND Center for Tobacco Prevention 
and Control Policy comprehensive model tobacco-free policy. 

3. Local public health grantees conduct and coordinate work to facilitate LEA adoption of ND 
Center comprehensive model tobacco-free school policy. 

4. ND Center facilitates efforts in passage of ND Center's comprehensive model tobacco-free • 



school policy and providing statewide LEA policy status. 

Objective 3: By June 30, 2017, ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy will 
develop with North Dakota University System (NDUS) a comprehensive post-secondary tobacco­
free campus policy. 

Rationale: "With 99% of all first use of tobacco occurring by age 26, if youth and young adults remain 
tobacco-free, very few people will begin to smoke or use smokeless products." (2012 Surgeon 
General's Report, "Preventing Tobacco Use Among Youth and Young Adults Executive Summary"). 
"Community programs and school and college policies and interventions should be part of a 
comprehensive effort, coordinated and implemented in conjunction with efforts to create tobacco-free 
social norms, including increasing the unit price of tobacco products, sustaining anti-tobacco media 
campaigns, making environments smoke-free." (Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control 
Programs, January, 2014, p.19). Background information: Many of the policies currently on the 
tobacco-free campus policy listing were passed prior to ND Center model policy language and have 
missing criteria as a result. 

Baseline: An endorsed tobacco free policy between the Center and NDUS has yet to be established. 
Currently, United Tribes Technical College is the only post-secondary institution which meets the 
Center's comprehensive post-secondary tobacco-free campus policy. 

Evaluation: Comprehensive post-secondary tobacco-free campus policy developed and endorsed by 
both the Center and NDUS. 

Lead: ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 

Strategies: 

1. Collaborate with NDUS to take policy implementation action. 
2. Grantees complete annual assessment. 
3. Center maintains /updates campus tobacco policy database. 
4. Grantees complete annual assessment. 
5. Highlight comprehensive tobacco-free campus success. 
6. Acknowledge traditional tobacco as deemed appropriate by institutions. 

Objective 4: By June 30, 2018, each local public health unit will adopt at least one ordinance 
restricting youth access to tobacco products at point-of-sale. 

Rationale: In the 2012 Surgeon General's Report on Preventing Tobacco Use Among Youth and 
Young Adults, "Prevention efforts must focus on both adolescents and young adults because among 
adults who become daily smokers, nearly all first use of cigarettes occurs by 18 years of age (88%) 
with 99% of first use by 26 years of age. Advertising and promotional activities by tobacco companies 
have been shown to cause the onset and continuation of smoking and other tobacco products use 
among adolescents and young adults" (p.8). The tobacco industry's own internal correspondence and 
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testimony in court, as well as widely accepted principles of advertising and marketing, support the 

conclusion that tobacco advertising recruits new users as youth and reinforces continued use among 

young adults. (p.522). Emerging and traditional tobacco products are the instruments for recruitment. 

Baseline: Twelve* of 24 public health units have adopted at least one ordinance restricting youth 

access to tobacco products at point of sale. *Collaborative units in FY2016 include Trail/Steele, 
Ransom/Sargent, and Central Valley/Lamoure. 

Evaluation: Adoption of ordinances restricting youth access to tobacco products at point of sale for 

remaining 12 public health units . 

Lead: ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 

Strategies: 

1. Provide education for grantees, coalitions, local and state policy makers, local communities, 

youth, and leaders on tobacco industry strategies that recruit new users and increase use. 

a. Tobacco advertising and marketing tactics: price discounts, in-store branded displays, 
payment for prime shelf space, packaging design. 

b. Oppose a tobacco tax increase. 
c. Location of tobacco retailers. 

2. Conduct statewide and local retail environment study of tobacco marketing. 

3. Grantees mobilize grassroots to gamer support for stronger local policies. 

4. Educate local coalitions and communities about local/state ordinance options to prevent youth 

tobacco use initiation incorporating Counter Tools local assessment data. 

5. Conduct level of public support surveys as well as local and state policy and decision 
makers/ candidates. 

6. Monitor policy attempts in local communities and state policy activity. 
7. Identify, monitor, and combat tobacco industry influence. 

8. Provide technical assistance on FDA 2009 Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control 
Act. 

9. Promote adoption of Board of Health resolutions. 

Secondhand Smol{e 

Objective 1: By June 30, 2017, uphold the North Dakota Smoke-Free Law as passed in 
November 2012. 



Rationale: North Dakota, in November 2012, passed one of the strongest laws in the United States to 
protect all citizens from secondhand smoke and prevent youth initiation use of tobacco products. 
Secondhand smoke is a mixture of over 7,000 chemicals which contaminates both indoor and outdoor 
air. Exposure to secondhand smoke may lead to adverse health effects to all exposed, especially 
children. Some adverse health effects experienced by children are middle ear disease, respiratory 
symptoms, impaired lung function, asthma, pneumonia, and sudden infant death syndrome. These 
symptoms and diseases have been casually linked to secondhand smoke. Adults exposed to secondhand 
smoke, also have casually linked evidence from nasal irritation to lung cancer, coronary heart disease 
and reproductive effects in women, i.e. low birth weight of infants. Chronic diseases caused by 
smoking are clearly articulated in the US Surgeon General's Report in How Tobacco Smoke Causes 
Disease, (2010, page iii), There is no safe level of exposure to cigarette smoke. 

Baseline: During the 2013 North Dakota legislative session, two modifications were made to North 
Dakota Century Code, 23- 12--09 - 23- 12-11: 1) A definition of entrance was added and 2) signage 
necessary for compliance is available from the executive committee. 

Evaluation: Any change in state smoke-free law. 

Lead: ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 

Strategies: 

1. Educate the public, partners, and policy makers on smoke-free environment issues, including 
compliance and implementation of smoke-free law. 

2. Educate on the benefits of and encourage cities to adopt state law or comprehensive smoke-
free model law into city code. 

3. Monitor legislative activity and intervene as necessary to deflect efforts to weaken current law. 
4. Identify, monitor, and combat tobacco industry influence. 
5. Conduct public poll, communicate and distribute results of ongoing support for smoke-free 

law. 
6. Conduct valid and reliable survey of legislators and candidates on smoke-free issues. 
7. Review and update annually evidence-based, fact sheets, and policy documents. 
8. Engage tribal leaders in discussion about adoption of comprehensive smoke-free law. 
9. Provide technical assistance for compliance and implementation of law. 
10. Enlist environmental health staff at state and local levels to enhance and maintain compliance 

of law. 

Objective 2: By June 30, 2017, prevent preemption in all North Dakota state tobacco prevention 
and control laws. 

Rationale: "Preemption can eliminate the benefits of state and local policy initiatives. Preemption can 
also have a negative impact on enforcement, civic engagement, and grassroots movement building" 
(Pertschuk, Pomeranz, Aoki, Larkin, Paloma, 201 2) "Assessing the Impact of Federal and State 
Preemption in Public Health: A Framework for Decision Makers" Journal of Public Health 
Management Practice, June 15, 2012). Preemption is typically negotiated most times behind the scenes 
in Congress or state capitols between legislative sponsors or impacted industries and sometimes with 



representative of public health. Expect preemption to become part of any proposed public health 
legislation. 

Baseline: As of 2013, no North Dakota state tobacco prevention and control laws have preemption 
measures included. 

Evaluation: Absence of North Dakota state preemption and support of tobacco prevention and control 
laws. 

Lead: ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 

Strategies: 

1. Educate the public, grantees, partners and policy makers. 
2. Monitor legislative bills. 
3. Maintain and expand data base of anti-preemption Board of Health Resolutions. 
4. Encourage local communities to pass more stringent tobacco prevention ordinances. 

Objective 3: By June 30, 2018, advocate for policies/ordinances/laws that restrict exposure to 
secondhand smoke and tobacco use in indoor areas not covered by ND Smoke-Free Law, e.g. 
multi-unit housing, casinos. 

Rationale: Secondhand smoke is a well-established risk factor for morbidity and mortality due to the 
hundreds of toxic carcinogens found in secondhand smoke. Twenty three percent of North Dakota' s 
population or approximately 152,000 people reside in multi-unit housing. ND Smoke-free air law 
protects persons at work and in other public places. However, multi-unit housing still represents a 
major source of secondhand smoke exposure due to transfer of secondhand smoke through shared 
walls, hallways, ventilation systems, electrical lines, and plumbing systems. Exposure in multi-unit 
housing can be as high as 65% when air comes from other units via ventilation and smoke drift. 
Drifting smoke is a commonly reported complaint in multi-unit housing. Smoke-free and tobacco-free 
multi-unit housing benefits are decreased apartment cleaning costs, fire risks and liability, and 
increased marketability. 

Baseline: As of quarter 2 fiscal year 2016, Public Housing Authorities in North Dakota have 491 units 
and 2 buildings (no units listed for these buildings) which are reported to be smoke-free. Zero (0) 
casinos on reservations are smoke-free. 

Evaluation: Number of units where smoke-free policies have been adopted. 

Lead: ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 

Strategies: 

1. Develop a multiunit housing (MUH) database. 



2. Educate coalitions, policy makers, communities, state agencies, advocacy organizations and 
leaders on harms caused by secondhand smoke and the importance of continuing to develop 
policies to protect the public from secondhand smoke and tobacco use. 

3. Engage public, private, and tribal housing authorities and public/private licensing authorizes s 
in policy education efforts. 

4. Provide education and training on proven strategies for compliance and implementation. 
5. Provide technical assistance. 

Objective 4: By June 30, 2018, advocate for policies/ordinances/laws that restrict exposure to 
secondhand smoke and tobacco use at outdoor public venues not covered by ND Smoke-free air 
law. Strategic venue priorities are what communities use the most i.e., city or county parks, 
recreational areas, health care facilities, child care facilities and outdoor worksites. 

Rationale: North Dakota' s smoke-free air law covers indoor spaces; consequently many citizens may 
be exposed to secondhand smoke and the resultapt toxins at outdoor venues. Outdoor venues that are 
smoke-free and tobacco-free promote healthy, active living and a tobacco-free lifestyle, favorably role 
modeling for children and youth. Tobacco-free outdoor areas reduce environmental clean-up cost, 
potential fire concern, and toxic waste exposure for children and animals. Local control for smoke-free 
and tobacco-free outdoor venues give communities the solutions that address specific local concerns. 

Baseline: All public health units have at least one strategic venue with a tobacco-free grounds policy. 

Evaluation: Number of outdoor strategic venues that adopted a policy/ordinance/law. 

Lead: ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 

Strategies: 

1. Educate coalitions, policy makers, local communities, advocacy groups/ organizations and 
leaders on harms caused by secondhand smoke and the importance of continuing to develop 
policies to protect the public from secondhand smoke and all types of tobacco use. 

2. Engage public, private, and tribal authorities in policy education efforts. 
3. Provide education and training on proven strategies for implementation. 
4. Develop databases for city/county parks and health care facility grounds. 

Objective 1: By June 30, 2018, increase annual treatment reach of NDQuits to 2.5% of all 
smokers and smokeless tobacco users. 

Rationale: The Community Guide from Community Preventive Services Task Force(August, 201 2) 
recommends "three interventions effective at increasing use of quitlines; mass-reach health 
communications interventions that combine cessation messages with a quitline number; provision of 
free evidence-based tobacco cessation medications for quitline clients interested in quitting and quitline 
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referral interventions for health care systems and providers. Evidence also indicates quitlines can help 
to expand the use of evidence-based services by tobacco users in populations that historically have had 
the most limited access to and use of evidence-based tobacco cessation treatments" (p.1 ). CDC 
baseline target rate is 6%, which no state has yet achieved. 

Baseline: Annual treatment reach in FY 2015 was 1.62% 

Evaluation: Increase annual treatment reach from 1.62% to 2.5%. 

Lead: ND Department of Health 

Strategies: 

1. Target regions and priority populations where evaluation has indicated need for paid and 
earned media campaigns. 

2. Promote cessation services with the Campus Tobacco Prevention Project. 
3. Expand NDQuits services to include emerging technologies. 
4. Provide education about NDQuits to providers in healthcare settings, health insurance 

providers, priority populations, worksites, and community services and resources as well as 
supporting community tobacco prevention control efforts by using motivational interviewing, 
problem solving, and marketing of services. 

5. Provide NRT for eligible, enrolled uninsured and underinsured tobacco users for up to 8 weeks 
through NDQuits and some local public health units. 

6. Distribute quarterly NDQuits reports to partners. 
7. Complete and distribute annual evaluation to partners. 
8. Assure for Medicaid coverage of over-the-counter and prescription pharmacotherapy for 

tobacco use cessation. 

Objective 2: By June 30, 2018, increase the number of health care settings and enhance public 
health agencies that use the systems approach for tobacco dependence treatment as 
recommended in the US Public Health Service Treating Tobacco Use and Dependence, Clinical 
Practice Guideline-2008 Update. 

Rationale: The Community Preventive Services Task Force in The Community Guide (August, 2012) 
recommends "quitline interventions, particularly proactive quitlines (i.e. those that offer follow-up 
counseling calls), based on strong evidence of effectiveness in increasing tobacco cessation among 
clients interested in quitting: and policies and programs changes be communicated to health care 
providers and tobacco users to increase awareness, interest in quitting and use of evidence-based 
treatments." 

Baseline: A. Statewide local public health units meeting the established 90% standard in FY2015 (2014 
calendar year chart audits) for Ask (Measure}) was 94%; Advise (Measure 2) was 85%; Refer 
(Measure 3) was 89% and Exposure to Secondhand Smoke (Measure 4) was 93%. B. 2012 ND Adult 
Tobacco Survey of ND smokers reporting health care providers Asking them about cigarette smoking 
was 72.2%, Advising them to quit was 48% and Referring them to cessation resources was 24.1 %. 
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Evaluation measure: A. Statewide local public health units will meet the established 90% standard in 
Advise (Measure 2) and Refer (Measure 3). 
B. Increased ND smokers reporting health care providers' intervention of Ask to 80%, Advise to 60%, 
and Refer to 35% based on the ND Adult Tobacco Survey. 

Lead: ND Department of Health and the ND Center Statewide Programs Manager 

Strategies: 

1. Provide education and technical assistance to health care providers on implementation to 
deliver 5 A' s of the Public Health Service Guidelines for Treating Tobacco Use and 
Dependence i.e. clarify and strengthen skills to motivate clients, describe medication options, 
offer immediate on site counseling and offer/direct medication options and document exposure 
to secondhand smoke, i.e. Ask about tobacco use, Advise to quit, Assess willingness to make a 
quit attempt, Assist in aiding the patient in quitting by providing counseling (refer to cessation 
services for additional support) and medications and Arrange-ensure follow-up contact. 

2. Implement and expand participation in the Million Heart S grant for eligible health care 
systems. 

3. Advocate for health care providers to implement provider reminder systems; especially 
focusing on populations affected by tobacco-related disparities. 

4. Conduct annual program or population based audit of AAR/SHS exposure in local public 
health units . 

5. Advocate for annual reports/audits of 5 A's in health care systems that have implemented 
Public Health Service Guidelines for Treating Tobacco Use and Dependence for internal 
quality improvement. 

6. Partner with the ND Department of Human Services and 8 regional human services centers as 
priority organizations. 

7. Advocate that all healthcare systems and local public health units have a systematic orientation 
process for implementation of Public Health Service Guidelines for Treating Tobacco Use and 
Dependence for all employees with direct client care responsibilities. 

Objective 3: By June 30, 2017, ensure that providers in behavioral treatment programs provide 
clients with evidence-based nicotine dependence interventions. 

Rationale: "The National Survey on Drug Use and Health reports during 2009-2011, an annual average 
of 19 .9% of adults aged 18 and older had mental illness defined as having a mental, behavioral or 
emotional disorder, excluding developmental and substance use disorders. One in 3 adults (36%) with 
a mental illness smoke cigarettes which is significantly higher than the national of 1 in 5 adults (21 %) 
with no mental illness. Smoking prevalence among US adults with mental illness or serious 
psychological distress range from 34.3% (phobias or fears) to 88% (schizophrenia) compared to 18.3% 
with no such illness. In clinical settings, screening for tobacco use and offering effective cessation 
treatments would likely further reduce tobacco use prevalence and result in a substantial reduction in 
tobacco-related morbidity and mortality." (MMWR, 2013, Vol. 62, pl-3). 
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Baseline: Based on an RTI survey conducted in August 2014, with a 60% response rate from 75 mental 
health and substance abuse treatment organizations; 50% of the respondents indicated a written policy, 
protocol or guideline regarding interventions to address tobacco use. 

Evaluation: Increase in behavioral treatment programs written policy, protocol or guideline evidence­
based nicotine dependence interventions. 

Lead: ND Center Statewide Programs manager 

Strategies: 

1. Assess current interventions used during the treatment period and develop a database. 
2. Provide and document educational opportunities for licensed mental health practitioners, 

addiction counselors, and students about treating tobacco use during the treatment process . 
3. Work with providers to integrate clients quitting, offer addiction counseling related to 

nicotine/tobacco dependence and provide reconunended FDA approved tobacco cessation 
therapies into standards of practice during behavioral health treatment. 

4. Promote tobacco-free campuses for all half-way houses, transitional living, homeless shelters, 
human service centers, and addiction treatment facilities . 

Goal 4: Build Capacity and Infrastructure to Implement a Comprehensive Evidence-Based 
Tobacco Prevention and Control Program 

Objective 1: By June 30, 2017, maintain and enhance the administrative structure to manage the 
comprehensive North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Program adjusted annually by 
most current CDC Best Practice for Tobacco Prevention and Control Programs. 

Rationale: "A comprehensive tobacco control program requires considerable funding to implement; 
therefore a fully functioning infrastructure must be in place in order to achieve the capacity to 
implement effective interventions. Sufficient capacity is essential for program sustainability, efficacy 
and efficiency, and enables programs to plan their strategic efforts, provide strong leadership and foster 
collaboration among the state and local tobacco control communities. An adequate number of skilled 
staff is also necessary to provide or facilitate program oversight, technical assistance and training." 
(Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs, January, 2014, p. 64). 

Baseline: January 2015 agency is fully staffed with 8 full time employees. 

Evaluation: Funding based on CDC Best Practice for Tobacco Prevention and Control Programs 
secured for the next biennium, 2017-2019. 

Lead: ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 
Strategies: 

1. Align initial budget, then maintain and document biennial fiscal management and program 
budgets by most current CDC Best Practice recommended percentages. 
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2. Maintain and enhance a real time fiscal and programs management/reporting system to ensure 
program accountability at the state and local level and for state grantees or contractors. 

3. Advocate for most current CDC Best Practice state level funding. 
4. Recruit and employ competent and adequate number of staff to achieve program goals. 
5. Review and modify grant allocation guidelines. 
6. Integrate goals, objectives, and strategies from the State Tobacco Prevention and Control Plan, 

"Saving Lives, Saving Money", into ND Department of Health Chronic Disease CDC tobacco 
prevention grant, state wide coalitions, state wide and allied health organizations, and 
associations. 

7. Implement the Health Communications Plan, educating the public and decision makers on the 
health effects of tobacco use and evidence-based program and policy interventions. 

8. Participate in professional development opportunities. 
9. Assist in recruiting and provide orientation to new advisory committee members. 

Objective 2: By June 30, 2018, build local/state infrastructure and capacity to collaboratively 
deliver evidence-based tobacco prevention and control interventions from the most current CDC 
Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs and The Guide to Community 
Preventive Services: Tobacco Use Prevention and Control with on-going recommendations to 
reach all citizens in local public health units and tribal reservations including one Indian service 
area. 

Rationale: "The social norm change model presumes that lasting change occurs through shifts in the 
social environment - initially or ultimately - at the grassroots level across local communities." Best 
Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs (January, 2014, p.7). 

Baseline: All public health units have at least a half-time tobacco prevention coordinator position since 
2012. The position due to funding may be a combination of personnel positions to equal 0.5 FTE. 

Evaluation: Grantees meet or exceed 0.5 FTE tobacco prevention coordinator position. 

Lead: ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy, ND Department of Health for tribal 
grantees 
Strategies: 

1. Maintain funding to local public health units, tribes, statewide and community partnerships and 
evaluate funding allocations dependent on emerging issues. 

2. Assure staff is adequate in number, have qualifications, and competency in tobacco prevention 
and control. 

3. Update strategic annual training plan for grantees, partners, tribal partners, and Advisory 
Committee. 

4. Provide quarterly strategic trainings interfaced with the state plan and work plan objectives and 
technical assistance to grantees and partners. 

5. Build, practice and strengthen skills in mobilizing partners and effectively communicating with 
decision makers about policy change at grassroots to support and reinforce "Saving Lives, 



Saving Money " in communities i.e. public, boards of health, policy and decision makers and 

effectively counter pro-tobacco influences. 
6. Monitor grantee and contractor work plan and budget activities. 
7. Collaborate with local states attorneys and law enforcement to ensure compliance with local 

and state smoke-free laws. 
8. Publicize tobacco prevention and control successes. 

Objective 3: By June 30, 2018, implement effective, ongoing tobacco prevention and control 
health communication initiatives that focus on changing the broad social norms of tobacco. The 
communication initiatives will deliver strategic, culturally appropriate and high-impact earned 
and paid messages through sustained and adequately funded campaigns integrated into the 
overall comprehensive North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control plan. 

Rationale: "Mass-reach health communication interventions can be powerful tools for preventing 
smoking initiation, promoting and facilitating cessation, and shaping social norms related to tobacco 
use. (p. 30) An effective state mass reach health communication intervention delivers strategic, 
culturally appropriate and high-impact messages via sustained and adequately funded campaigns that 
are integrated into a comprehensive state tobacco control program effort. Best Practices for 
Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs (January, 2014 p. 32) On December 17, 2014 the ND 
Center met with CDC staff and authors of Best Practice Guidelines and CDC approved the ND Center 
to exceed the recommended levels, due to the facts that North Dakota has a fully-funded 
comprehensive tobacco prevention and control program and that North Dakota youth and adult tobacco 
use rates are higher than the national average. It was also determined that the primary target market for 
transforming social norms has flexibility to target ages 25-54, with a secondary market of targeting 

ages 12-24. 

Baseline: FY 2015 PDA health communications independent evaluation reports ND mass-reach health 
communication meets CDC Best Practices for Tobacco Prevention and Control Programs. 

Evaluation: CDC Best Practices mass reach health communication recommended levels include: 1,600 
GRPs per quarter for four quarters for addressing cessation or protecting people from the harms of 
secondhand smoke, targeting ages 25-54. An additional 1,200 GRPs per quarter for four quarters are 
recommended for each of two ongoing campaigns: transforming social norms and the remaining 

campaign category not included in the primary 1,600 GRP campaign. 

Lead: ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 

Strategies: 

1. Maintain PETF funding from local public health units . 
2. Educate policy makers, leaders, and the public on the harmful effects of secondhand smoke 

and tobacco use, costs of tobacco, tobacco industry tactics, benefits of increasing the price of 
tobacco, cessation, increasing the minimum age of sale for all tobacco products, youth access 
to tobacco, point of sale strategies and new and emerging products. 

3. Educate policy makers, leaders, and the public on the importance of policy and its impact on 
changing social norms. 



4. Annually update and distribute health communications guidelines. 
5. Assure that messages, where appropriate, emphasize all tobacco products. 
6. Assure that messages, where appropriate, emphasize priority populations. 
7. Emphasize to policy makers, leaders and the public, the importance of sustaining a 

comprehensive tobacco prevention program funded at the CDC recommended level. 

Objective 4: By June 30, 2017, review and update a comprehensive statewide surveillance and 
evaluation plan. 

Rationale: Key outcome indicators help measure progress toward achievement of tobacco prevention 
and control goals and objectives. 

Baseline: Since 2010 a comprehensive statewide surveillance and evaluation plan has been in place. 

Evaluation: A revised, current comprehensive statewide surveillance and evaluation plan is completed. 

Lead: ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy and ND Department of Health 

Strategies: 

1. Meet annually with partners (government/non-government) to assess data needs, share data 
sets, and distribute information. 

2. Analyze and synthesize data or receive feedback from existing data sets, i.e. ATS, BRFSS, 
YRBS, YTS, National Survey on Drug Use and Health (NSDUH), ND Quits evaluation, 
Synar, tax, Comprehensive program independent evaluation as per ND Century Code, and 
other studies. 

3. Develop and implement data collection systems, research, and evaluation studies that monitor, 
measure, and assess program outcomes. 

4. Document and publish findings from tobacco prevention control program activities and 
initiatives. 

5. Develop and implement tobacco prevention efforts to achieve health equity and reduce 
tobacco-related disparities among population groups . 

6. Maintain a current inventory of Center funded-research. 
7. Update internal evaluation and surveillance standards. 

Objective 5: By June 30, 2018, sustain ND comprehensive tobacco prevention and control 
program in conformance with current CDC recommendations. 

Rationale: "Evidence-based, statewide tobacco control programs that are comprehensive, sustained 
and accountable have been shown to reduce smoking rates, tobacco related deaths and diseases caused 
by smoking" (Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs, (January 2014, p. 6). 



Baseline: 2013-2015 Independent Biennial Report by RTI states the ND comprehensive tobacco 
prevention and control program is in conformance with the current CDC Best Practices for Tobacco 
Prevention programs. 

Evaluation: ND Comprehensive tobacco prevention and control program based on current CDC Best 
Practices for Tobacco Prevention meets current CDC Best Practices for Tobacco Prevention programs 
for 2015-20 17. 

Lead: ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 

Strategies: 

1. Modify the comprehensive evidence-based tobacco prevention and control program' s state 
plan based on the independent biennial evaluation recommendations. 

2. Advocate and communicate regularly with Governor, Health Officer, legislative body and 
partners regarding progress and outcomes of program. 

3. Partners and local public health reinvigorate and mobilize local grassroots coalitions and 
recruit new local/statewide partners. 

4. Communicate outcomes, the need for continual funding in light of new and emerging tobacco 
products/issues and the consequences of not continuing a comprehensive program. 

5. Build, practice and strengthen skills in mobilizing partners and effectively communicating with 
decision makers about policy change at grassroots to support and reinforce "Saving Lives, 
Saving Money" in communities or at the state level and to effectively counter pro-tobacco 
influences. 

6. Examine and modify the comprehensive evidence-based tobacco prevention and control 
program' s state plan using The Guide to Community Preventive Services. 

• 



' ~ -

Definitions of Terms: 

Adult Tobacco Survey (ATS): Adult Tobacco Survey is an annual phone based survey that provides 
state level data on adult [::_18 years) tobacco use, knowledge, attitudes, and tobacco use prevention and 
control policies. It also provides state-level data on long term, intermediate, and short-term indicators key 
to a comprehensive tobacco prevention and control program. Both a national and state ATS are done if 
funding is available. 

Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System (BRFSS): Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System is 
a national telephone survey developed and conducted on a monthly basis to monitor state-level prevalence 
of the major behavioral risks among adults which are associated with premature morbidity and mortality. 

E-cigarette: Means any device that can be used to deliver aerosolized or vaporized nicotine to the person 
inhaling from the device, including an e-cigarette, e-cigar, e-pipe, vape pen ore-hookah. E-cigarette 
includes any component, part, or accessory of such a device, whether or not sold separately, and includes 
any e-cigarette substance. E-cigarette does not include any universal use battery or battery charger when 
sold separately. In addition, e-cigarette device does not include drugs, devices, or combination products 
authorized for sale by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, as those terms are defined in the Federal 
Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act. 

Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control Act: Became law on June 22, 2009. It gives the 
Food and Drug Administration (FDA) the authority to regulate the manufacture, distribution, and 
marketing of tobacco products to protect public health. For more information see: 
http://www. f da. gov /tobaccoprod ucts/ guidancecomp 1ianceregulatoryinformation/ucm246l29 .htm 

Health Equity in tobacco prevention and control: The opportunity for all people to live a healthy, 
tobacco-free life, regardless of their race, level of education, gender identity, sexual orientation, the job 
they have, the neighborhood they live in, or whether or not they have a disability. 

Healthcare settings are establishments where health care providers provide client specific health 
encounters potentially occurring in a variety of places, i.e. medical clinics, hospitals, dental offices, 
chiropractic offices, mental health facilities, etc. 

Local Education Agencies: BreatheND reports comprehensive schools as identified by the North Dakota 
Department of Public Instruction. A Local Education Agency (LEA) includes operating and non­
operating public districts as well as special education units, career and technology centers and BIA, 
nonpublic and state institution schools. 

Multi-unit housing: Classification of housing where multiple separate housing units for residential 
inhabitants are contained within one building or several buildings within one complex. 

The National Survey on Drug Use and Health (NSDUH) provides national and state-level data on the 
use of tobacco, alcohol, illicit drugs (including non-medical use of prescription drugs) and mental health 
in the United States. NSDUH is sponsored by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration (SAMHSA), an agency in the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS). 

Public Education Task Force (PETF): Local public health units pool locally-dispersed funds, which 
collectively contributes to a statewide health communications tobacco prevention educational campaign 
to prevent and reduce tobacco use prevalence. 
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Preemption: In Public Health, preemption typically is action taken by higher levels of government, (like 
state legislatures or Congress) to limit the authority of lower jurisdictions to adopt stronger laws. 

Priority populations are populations who experience a disproportionate health and economic burden 
from tobacco use. In ND, our priority populations are Native Americans, LGBTQ (Lesbian, Gay, 
Bisexual, Transgender, and Questioning), persons with mental health and substance abuse addiction 
issues, homeless, and low socioeconomic persons (100% offederal poverty level). (Tobacco prevalence 
data is usually based on the poverty threshold equal to the 100% of federal poverty level). 

Public Housing Authority is a government agency, generally affiliated with a local government which 
has responsibility for the ownership and operation of subsidized housing and rental assistance programs. 

Synar: Synar Amendment, which requires States to have laws in place prohibiting the sale and 
distribution of tobacco products to persons under 18 and to effectively enforce those laws. 

Tobacco: Any product that contains tobacco, is derived from tobacco, or contains nicotine or similar 
substances, that is intended for human consumption or is likely to be consumed, whether smoked, heated, 
inhaled, chewed, absorbed, dissolved, or ingested by any other means. The term "Tobacco Products" 
includes E-cigarettes and other electronic smoking devices, pipes and rolling papers, but does not include 
any product approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration for legal sale as a tobacco 
cessation product and is being marketed and sold solely for the approved purpose. 

Tobacco Technical Assistance Consortium (TTAC): A part of the Emory' s Center for Training and 
Technical Assistance, dedicated to assisting organizations in building capacity to achieve and develop 
highly effective tobacco control programs and policies. TTAC provides individualized technical 
assistance, customized trainings and extensive resources to help clients succeed in their tobacco control 
efforts. 

Traditional tobacco use as defined by the CRST Cultural Preservation Office and the Great Plains Tribal 
Chairman's Health Board means "plants for healing the mind, body, and spirit. There are four plants that 
are used in Lakota ceremonies: tobacco, sage, sweet grass and cedar. Traditional Tobacco is called 
"calJSaSa," another name is "kinikinik." CalJSaSa translates to red willow. Tobacco is used: 1) in our 
sacred pipe in ceremonies and is not inhaled; 2) in its natural form to make tobacco ties for prayer or 
thanksgiving in times of need; 3) only for special purposes in prayer, offering or rituals; 4) as an offering 
to an elderly when we need his or her help, advice or prayer; 5) as an offering when we see the sacred 
eagle in the sky, as the eagle is the intercessor to Tunkasila, Great Spirit; 6) as an offering to the drum at 
pow-wows to give special blessing to the heartbeat of the nation and onto the singers at the drum; 7) as an 
offering when a person asks someone to do a ceremony such as naming (hunka) - pipe ceremony, 
singing, sweat lodge or any of the Lakota ceremonies; 8) as an offering to a person as a way to ask for 
forgiveness to heal bad feeling when emotions are hurt; 9) as an offering or to an elderly to seek 
knowledge and to show appreciation to that person for sharing. Traditional tobacco is never abused 
because it is in its natural form without additives." 

Treatment Reach: North American Quitline Consortium (NAQC) defines treatment reach as "the 
proportion of the target population (all adult smokers) who receive an evidence-based treatment (both 
counseling and pharmacotherapy) from a quitline. 

Youth access is the North Dakota legal age of 18 to purchase tobacco products. 
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Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBSS): Youth Risk Behavior Surveillance System is a national written 
survey which monitors six priority health-risk behaviors that contribute markedly to the leading causes of 
death, disability, and social problems among youth. It is conducted every two years (odd numbered 
years) during the spring semester providing data representative of 9th_ 12th grade students in public and 

private schools throughout the United States. 

Youth Tobacco Survey (YTS): Youth Tobacco Survey is a survey done, dependent on state interest of 
middle and high school youth, measuring tobacco-related beliefs, attitudes, behaviors, and exposure to 
pro-and anti-tobacco influences. A national Youth Tobacco Survey is done roughly biennially. 



ND Comprehensive Tobacco Prevention and Control Program Objectives by Goal and CDC Best Practices 

Objective 

Increase the cigarette excise tax 

Increase the% of tobacco-free schools 

Increase the #oftobacco-free post-

secondary institutions 

Develop and advocate point of sale 

ordinances to restrict youth access 

Support of federal tobacco excise tax by 

ND congressional delegation 

Uphold statewide smoke-free law 

Prevent preemption in state tobacco 

prevention and control laws 

Increase of indoor smoke-free air 

exempted from ND smoke-free law 

Increase of smoke-free and tobacco free 

outdoor venues 

Increase treatment reach of NDQuits 

Increase health care settings using 

Public Health Service (PHS) guidelines 

Increase of mental health providers 

providing clients with evidence based 

nicotine dependence interventions 

Maintain and en hance administrative 

structu re to manage comprehensive 

program 

Build local infrastructure and capacity 

Implement health communication 

initiatives 

Conduct surveillance and evaluation 

Sustain program in conformance with 

Current CDC Best Practices 

Prevent 

Initiation 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

II 

Eliminate 

Secondhand 

Smoke 

Exposure II 

x 

x 

x 

x 

Promote 
Q . . and 

u1ttmg II lnfrastructurll 

CDC Best Practices Component 

Build Capacity 

x State and community 

State and community 

State and community 

x State and community 

x State and community 

x State and community 

x State and community 

x State and community 

x State and community 

x Cessation 

x Cessation 

x Cessation 

x Administration and management 

x Administration and management 

x x Health communication 

x Survei ll ance and evaluation 

x Administration and management 
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ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy 

Program Logic Model 
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Chairman Polle rt and members of the House Appropriations Human Resources Division: 

Good morning, I'm Becky Anderson, a registered respiratory therapist with a 37-year career 

serving the people of ND. As a respiratory therapist, I have been on the front lines of the 

tobacco epidemic for my entire career. My early professional years were marked by caring for 

people with chronic disease, especially those with COPD and lung cancer. Those at the end of 

their lives spent a considerable amount oftime hospitalized. As an impressionable young 

therapist, I remember their names, I remember their faces, and I remember their stories. I 

remember the physical devastation and emotional burden which are the result of nicotine 

addiction. I have sat beside the bed of thousands of patients, trying to bring some small 

measure of comfort and light at a time many of them were at the end of their lives ... dying way 

too young in their SO's and 60's, a few in their 70's. As they shared their stories with me, it 

always struck me as tragic that nicotine addiction is an epidemic which starts in childhood, 

some under ten years old, and 90% of tobacco users start before the age of 18. Th is is 

disturbing on many levels and significant because children are becoming addicted to nicotine 

when their brains are still developing. The result is that they become addicted easier and have 

a more difficult time quitting. 

Healthcare professionals seek out evidence of "best practice" to build our care programs. This 

is what the ND Center for Tobacco Prevention is good at. They have impressive results. For 

these reasons the timing to move this program is wrong. Uprooting this program now will have 

long-term negative consequences when it comes to educating on and implementing effective 

tobacco prevention policy, on both the local and state levels. Policies are important because 

they make tobacco use less acceptable to the public, which is why kids choose to never start 

using tobacco, and it's what encourages current tobacco users to quit. These policies include 

• tobacco-free and smoke-free parks and recreation areas, tobacco free grounds, and tobacco 

free schools. And yes, this includes educating and advocating to increase the price of tobacco. 

Without strong leadership, and the ability to stand strong for policy, we risk compromising 

I 



educational and policy efforts to the point where efforts are ineffective. For these reasons, I 

ask that you keep the Center funded. The Center staff and partners can get this job done the 

right way. ND's children deserve a better future ... and it's within our grasp. This is a fight to the 

finish and it's within our grasp. 
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Chairman Pollert and members of the House Appropriations Human Resources Division: 

I'm here today to roll up my sleeves and talk results with you. As a doctor and a person who is 

passionate and dedicated about improving the health of our communities, results matter to me. And 

they should matter to you, because these aren't just numbers. These are your family members, your 

neighbors, your friends, and this is your wallet. To have a serious discussion about reducing health care 

costs must include this. 

BreatheND is focused on results. From the beginning, this program has carried out smart and 

effective efforts to drive successful tobacco prevention and improve health. For example, North Dakota 

passed a Smoke-Free Law in 2012. BreatheND laid the groundwork for this law by preparing and 

assisting local communities to put policies in place. And then they followed through after the vote by 

helping every community comply with the law, which passed in every legislative district. 

Prior to the state law, Grand Forks passed a smoke free city ordinance. 

Smoking and secondhand smoke affects the heart and blood vessels, increasing the risk of heart 

attacks in both smokers, and non-smokers. Just four months after the Smoke-Free ordinance was 

implemented, we found the rate of heart attacks a North Dakota hospital treated decreased by 

24.1%. That's a quarter fewer heart attacks compared to 4 months before the law was passed. And 

that's just one hospital. Not only were families spared the emotionally taxing experience of dealing with 

a loved one hospitalized for a heart attack, they were also spared the bill. That reduction amounts to a 

cost savings of more than $150,000 in that four month period. Those results matter and were published 

in a leading tobacco related disease research journal. 

This is what BreatheND is so good at: identifying the methods that will make the greatest impact 

and thoroughly executing them . This is known as best practices- those that have the science behind 

them . My fellow Governor appointed Executive and Advisory Committee members have always been 

excited to see the science at work for every day North Dakotans. 

In my career, I have treated both young people and adults suffering from severe illnesses and 

health conditions caused by tobacco. The pain and suffering I've seen nicotine-addicted users put 

themselves and their families through is needless. One case at a time, I can and do work to get people 

healthier. 

BreatheND has been on the path of best practices from its beginnings. As a physician, I am 

interested in quality interventions that matter, and that includes strong policy pieces that translate to 

better health for all. Treating tobacco addiction is an important component in public health policy, but 



among the scientific community, we know prevention is critical. I have been so fortunate to be 

associated with successful health policy here in North Dakota . My clinic practice has been focused on 

chronic disease processes and how they affect patients for nearly 25 years; In addition to Breathe ND, I 

serve on national committees with the American Medical Association and the American Diabetes 

Association that also create best practices for education and prevention in the areas of chronic disease. 

I have a good working knowledge of how to address "the big picture" . BreatheND has been the engine 

for creating an environment where chronic disease prevention actually exists, specifically related to 

tobacco. 

The normalization of smoking into our society after decades of successful marketing by tobacco 

companies has collectively lulled us to sleep, allowing us, at times, to deny the truly horrific scope of 

death and disability inflicted by these products. 

I can't tell you how you should vote on BreatheND's funding. I can tell you that BreatheND has 

been the home to sound scientific practices in the world of tobacco prevention and control for North 

Dakota that can influence the rates of tobacco death and disability for our state. 

• 
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North Dakota House Appropriations Human Resources Division: 

Theresa Will, RN/ Administrator: City-County Health District, Valley City 

Phone: 701-845-8518 

Good morning, Chairman Pollert and members of the House Appropriations Human Resources 

Division: 

My name is Theresa Will, I am the Director at City-County Health District, the Local Public Health Unit for 

Barnes County, located in Valley City. I am here to voice my support for keeping SB2024 funded. This bill 

supports the vote of the people and their decision to invest a small portion of tobacco settlement dollars for 

tobacco prevention - not only for 7 years, but through its entirety. With this program, we have made 

remarkable progress in decreasing the tobacco use rates. The partnership between public health and the 

Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy is helping North Dakotans live healthier lives - here are 

some of our successes: 

o a local ordinance that protects our youth from the dangers of electronic cigarettes; 

o smoke free parks; 

o tobacco free County and City grounds and vehicles; 

o model school policies in all schools within our county; 

o and we assist apartment managers with the tools to help their buildings become smoke-free 

so all tenants can have healthier, smoke-free homes. 

This local policy work could not be achieved without the local policy grant, and technical assistance from 

the Center, which has supported approximately 1.3 FIE in Barnes County over the past many years. 

Before the vote of the people, before we had our comprehensive program, outcomes were limited. 

Through the leadership of the Center and with a STRONG FOCUS ON POLICY, we now see consistent 

results across the state. 

Now is not the time to move this program The Center's expertise gives us the strong backbone to hold 

the line and keep policies strong so we continue to see youth tobacco use rates drop to the low single 

digits. Moving this program now is short sighted. It will have serious long-term consequence on our kids' 

health and health care costs will continue to be out of control. Keep the Center funded and let's end the 

tobacco epidemic. 

I 



0 
• 

56WZl./ 03·08- l..Ol-=1 H fj 
Crosby • Upper Missouri District Health Unit 

DIVIDE COUNTY 
Divide Co. Comthouse 
P.O. Box 69 
300 Main St. N 
Crosby, ND 58730 
Phone 701-965-68 13 
Fax 70 1-965-6814 

"Your Public Health Professionals" 

MCKENZI E COUNTY 
No1them Plains Building 
P.O. Box 1066 
109 W 51" St. 
Watford City, ND 58854 
Phone 701-444-3449 
Fax 701-842-6985 

Senate Bill 2024 

MOUNTRAIL COUNTY 
Memorial Building 
P.O. Box 925 
182"'1 AveSE 
Stanley, ND 58784 
Phone 701-628-2951 
Fax 701-628-1294 

ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy Budget 
8:30 a.m., March 8, 2017, House Appropriations 

W ILLIAMS COUNTY 
110 W. Bdwy, Ste 101 
Williston, ND 58801-6056 
Phone 701-774-6400 
Fax 701-577- 8536 
Toll Free 1-877-572-3763 

Good Morning, Chairman Pollert and members of the House Appropriations Committee, Human 
Resources Division. I am Javayne Oyloe, Executive Officer of Upper Missouri District Health 
Unit, which provides services in Divide, McKenzie, Mountrail and Williams Counties. 

The track record of the Center is impressive. You have heard testimony in regard to the 
substantial decrease in tobacco use across our state due to the single-focused approach using 
tobacco settlement funds. These are not just numbers or percentages but our fellow community 
members, friends and family who were finally able quit using tobacco or they are the children 
who will never start. 

About a decade ago, I am one of the people who led the conversation in regard to leveraging the 
tobacco settlement funding to create a statewide, coordinated tobacco prevention effort. At that 
time North Dakota youth smoking rates were stalling, and chewing tobacco rates were climbing. 
Nationally, aggressive prevention efforts were successful in a short period of time. In a number 
of states we saw with a quick reduction in tobacco use rates, reduced healthcare costs followed. 
It was time to intensify our efforts. 

Today we see the track record of documented results because ofleadership from the Center, the 
dedication of public health professionals and other partners. These tobacco prevention efforts are 
driven through policy. Policy drives change, the ND Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Policy must remain fully funded if we want to continue to reduce tobacco use at an accelerated 
rate. Help us to continue making critical tobacco-prevention gains and keep effective policies in 
place. As you have heard, this work is not done. Please keep this work funded at BreatheND. 

Sincerely 

Javayne Oyloe 
Executive Officer 
Upper Missouri District Health Unit 
701 -774-6400 
joyloe@umdhu.org 

"It takes safe, healthy cities with vibrant, walkable main streets in downtowns to attract and retain a skilled 
worliforce". Governor Burgum. We too want safe, healthy communities. 
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Good morning Chairman Polle rt and Members of the House Appropriations, Human Resources 

Committee. I am Kathleen Mangskau. I am retired and spent many years working on tobacco 

prevention in North Dakota. I am unable to attend the hearing today and have asked a colleague to 

read my testimony. I am providing information on some of the historical perspectives that may help to 

shape the future course of tobacco programming in the state. Progress in tobacco prevention in North 

Dakota has been a very slow and tedious process. It took more than 20 years to pass a strong 

comprehensive smoke-free law in the state. 

In 2001 with the infusion of the Community Health Grant Program funding, we finally were able to put 

in place some programs that helped us reduce the youth smoking rates. We had a strong focus on Best 

Practices implementing what we knew was proven to work. With the strong commitment of local 

health departments we were able to pass numerous smoke-free policies in schools and communities 

and finally in 2005 an initial statewide smoke-free law. This law however was not comprehensive and it 

took another 7 years and a statewide initiated measure in 2012 to put a strong, comprehensive law on 

the books. With these efforts between 2001 and 2009 we saw youth smoking rates drop from 40.6 

percent to 22.1 percent. During this period there were some significant components lacking. No 

funding had been appropriated for public education thus severely limiting the state program's ability to 

encourage policy and environmental change as well as drive people to quit. There was also limited 

funding for evaluation of the program, which is a critical omponent of implementing quality programs. 

By 2007 with only the limited Community Health Grant Program funds and some federal funding we 

were not able to continue our significant decline and we started to see youth smoking rates plateau. By 

2009 the low hanging fruit in cessation had been picked and we needed further education and policy 

change to drive tobacco users to quit. When only extremely limited additional funding from the 

Strategic Contribution Funds were appropriated in 2007, tobacco control advocates felt the need to 

join forces to put forth an initiated measure to acquire the necessary funding for a comprehensive 

program to continue the tobacco prevention efforts to further reduce youth tobacco use rates and 
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help adults to quit. With the infusion of the Breathe ND tobacco settlement funds we were once ag. 

able to reduce youth smoking rates further from 22.4 percent in 2009 to 11. 7 percent in 2015. 9 

While significant progress has been made, our job is not done. Still far too many children and adults 

continue to use tobacco resulting in significant health costs and loss of lives. To cut these efforts now 

and reduce this to a maintenance program* is not the time. We do not want to backslide and see these 

efforts in vain. SB 2024 needs to be supported and the tobacco tax needs to be increased before we 

should be thinking about a maintenance program only. lfthe North Dakota Legislature wants to fund 

only a maintenance program then they should significantly increase the tobacco tax so we have the 

necessary policies that we know work in place. 

Thank you for the opportunity to share this information. If you have questions, I can be reached at 701-

214-7010. 

*A maintenance program tries to maintain current efforts but does not work on implementing 

additional policies, programs and services. 
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Chairman Pollert and members of the House Appropriations Human Resources Division: 

You've heard the words "comprehensive statewide tobacco prevention program" a few times today. I'm 

here today to share my personal experiences that speak to what that means and why it's the best way 

to reduce the toll tobacco takes on North Dakota. 

I've held a variety of roles in the Bismarck-Mandan community over the years. 

o I served as the mayor of Bismarck from 2002-2014. 

o I've practiced orthodontics for 43 years and counting. 

o And I am currently the Dean of the Gary Tharaldson School of Business at the University 

of Mary. 

In each of those areas of the community, I've watched BreatheND make a meaningful impact. Let's start 

with my orthodontics practice as I've been there the longest- since 1973. 

o Every day I average 75-100 patients. 

o Which means I have personally seen and treated a large portion of the oral health needs 

in the Bis-Man community. 

o Before BreatheND's efforts, a significant portion of my patients- men and women, 

teenagers and adults- suffered from serious health effects caused by tobacco products. 

• I saw many cases of leukoplakia, the thickened, white patches that form inside 

the mouth. 

• A handful of my patients were even diagnosed with oral cancer. 

• That was particularly prevalent for patients using smokeless tobacco. 

After BreatheND embarked on educational efforts, I saw a direct and dramatic decline in use and oral 
manifestations. 

Then, as Mayor, I watched the process at work. In 2010, BreatheND worked with us to develop a smoke­

free ordinance that included bars in the city. 

• 

• 

In 2011, a special election was held and 60% of the voters opted to keep the 

smoke-free ordinance. 

This was big step forward for city officials to protect all citizens from second­

hand smoke and encourage the cessation of tobacco users. 

• The public education efforts of BreatheND were instrumental in the creation 

and sustaining of the ordinance through the vote. 

o The ordinance worked to protect the citizens of Bismarck. 
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o I attribute that to the success of BreatheND and the courage of the Bismarck City 

Commission to stand up against Big Tobacco and the hospitality bar industry, and put 

health first. 

I'm now serving as Dean of University of Mary' s school of business, where I've continued to watch 

BreatheND positively impact the lives of young people. 

o The program worked closely with student government and the student population to 

achieve a tobacco-free status. 

o I enjoy working on a tobacco-free campus, which means a healthy workplace for myself 

and my colleagues, and a healthy environment for students to learn. 

o I also recognize the important example this sets for the 18-22-year-olds on our campus. 

• We are instilling healthy behaviors for these young people to have even brighter 

futures. 

My experience with BreatheND tells the story of the many levels on which this program works. 

o Changing cultural norms about the use of tobacco is not a one-size-fits-all approach. We 

need education, policy work, and strong partnerships. 

o We need to respond to the changing cultures of one generation to the next. 

o That's why BreatheND is aggressive and creative about its educational efforts, from 

working with college students to building relationships with city officials. 

o And that's just here in Bismarck. 

o These comprehensive efforts are happening all over the state. 

I can actually see the results of all this work at my practice. I have fewer patients suffering serious oral 

health conditions caused by tobacco than ever before. 

I fully support full funding for BreatheND to continue th is multi-layered approach . I' m encouraged by 

the program's successes thus far and excited for what the future will bring. 

It's important to remember that BreatheND is about policy prevention work, and not treatment reach . 

No other agency can do this work. The difference is that treatment reach impacts those already 

suffering. Tobacco prevention means that North Dakota will save money and lives, by having to address 

fewer chronic diseases caused by tobacco - the leading cause of preventable death and disease. 
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Chairman Pollert and members of the House Appropriations Human Resource 
Division, 

My name is Beth Hughes and I am a respiratory therapist and an educator. I have 
just a few words of my own to add to this testimony. Thank you for listening 
carefully. 

The people of ND have given you the enormous responsibility of making thoughtful, 
considerate decisions regarding their safety and well-being. I believe that each of 
you takes this responsibility very seriously. 

So I ask you. Do you want to have the dubious distinction of being the first 
legislators in ND history to go on record as voting directly against the will of the 
people? Do you want to go down in history as the lawmakers who chose to 
dismantle a nationally recognized, efficiently run, model program that saves the 
lives of North Dakotans of all ages? 

Do you want to go on record as saying that the number one killer of North Dakotans 
is not worthy of a comprehensive program (that does not use general funds) that 
aims to stop kids from ever starting to use tobacco? 

Or instead, would you like to go on record as saying, ''Yes! I want to support the vote 
of the people! I want to be known as an advocate for kids, and a thoughtful, 
considerate lawmaker who has reviewed BreatheND's comprehensive model for 
tobacco control and am proud to support the many people in local public health and 
the staff members at Breathe ND who work indefatigably to make great strides, in a 
very short period of time, in tobacco control! 

I have to tell you, I have been waiting for you folks to look at what has happened in 
the area of tobacco control in ND since Breathe ND came into existence, and to take 
some credit for the strides that have been made! I have been waiting, and hoping, 
that, by now, you folks would be proudly touting the 50% reduction in youth 
smoking, the many new smoke-free public places and the increase in the number of 
smoke-free multi-unit housing facilities. You have a nationally recognized program 
of excellence that I would have thought you would be incredibly proud oft 

For 37 years, I have poured my heart and soul, both through my work, and as a 
volunteer advocate, into this battle against Big Tobacco, its deep, deep pockets, and 
the death and disease it has inflicted upon too, too many North Dakotans. If you vote 
to defund Breathe ND it will be a win for them, and a loss for all the rest of us. Is that 
what you want? 

Dubious distinction of dismantling a successful, comprehensive tobacco control 
program, or great pride in representing a state that is a national leader in strong 
health policy? Which will you choose? 
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Pam Crawford, North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Advisory and Executive Committee 

Chairman Pollert and members of the House Appropriations Human Resources Division: 

I am Pam Crawford. I am a member of the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee 
and I am here today advocating for this organization. 

I AM IN SUPPORT OF KEEPING BREATHEND FUNDED. 

This group has one sole purpose and focus. They exemplify efficiency, fiscal responsibility and 
creativity in government. They have a proven track record of making a difference for the better 
for North Dakota citizens. 

The funding and mission of this organization were established by North Dakota voters in 2008 
with the passage of Initiated Measure No. 3 requiring the State to develop and implement a 
comprehensive statewide tobacco prevention and control plan consistent with CDC's best 
practices. Funding for this agency is provided through the Tobacco Settlement strategic 
payments. 

This agency has been fiscally responsible in its utilization of those funds. 

To terminate this agency at this time will erode the good work that has been done. By good 
work I mean policy interventions that impact our tobacco use rates, in both youth and adults. 
And policy is about changing the social norms to make tobacco use less acceptable for 
everyone, so that fewer kids start. 

The strategy used by BreatheND is sound, and is proven to work. It's about using CDC Best 
Practices - it's about driving the hard line on policy and to not buckle when policies are 
challenged by opposing forces, mostly under the influence of the tobacco industry. 

Sound policy is what will reduce our youth smoking rates and get tobacco users to quit. Every 
smoke-free and tobacco free policy makes tobacco users wonder if smoking is worth the effort, 
and it encourages kids to never start - out of sight - out of mind. 

Let BreatheND finish this program to driving youth use rates to single digits before you put it into 
a maintenance program . 

I urge you all to support the continuation of the work of Breathe North Dakota AND KEEP 
SB2024 FUNDED. To discontinue this program at this time appears incongruent with the wishes 
of North Dakota voters who wanted this comprehensive program and wanted the strategic 
payments to be utilized to fund this program. 

Thank you . 
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With budgetary constraints continuing to play a major role in establishing funding 
priorities for the next biennium, I wish to express strong support for programs 
specifically established for the prevention of smoking. Such as BreathND. 

BreathND's specific funding has had a measurably positive impact on preventing 
many, many North Dakota patients from facing the detrimental health effects, 
and negative economic impacts, of smoking related illness, disability and even 
death. 

The funding already established by a vote of the people should continue to be 
preserved exclusively for BreathND's effective tobacco-prevention work and its 
many, many community health benefits. 

Respectfully, 

Marvin J. Lein, CEO 
Mid Dakota Clinic, PC 
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My name is Heather Austin, and I am the Executive Director for Tobacco Free North Dakota. 
Tobacco Free North Dakota (TFND) and many other organizations have all signed a formal: 

Resolution to Support the Continuation of North Dakota's CDC-Based Comprehensive Tobacco 

Control Program Delivered by the North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Policy (BreatheND) Through the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund. 

In it, we recognize that tobacco use remains North Dakota's number one preventable cause of 

disease and death, with 1,000 North Dakotans dying annually. We highlight the staggering cost 
of smoking-caused direct healthcare needs for North Dakota's taxpayers. And, we 
acknowledge that the tobacco industry is never going to stop targeting our youth with new 
emerging products aimed at creating new lifelong addicts to nicotine. We hope that by 

providing our vocal support to North Dakota's fully-funded comprehensive tobacco prevention 
program and to BreatheND, we can convince our legislators to continue to provide funding for 
saving lives and for saving money in North Dakota. Thank you. 

• This Resolution has been signed by: 

• 

The American Lung Association, 
Bismarck Tobacco Free Coalition, 
Cavalier County Board of Health, 
Central Valley Health District, 
City-County Health District Board of Health, 
Dickey County Tobacco Free Coalition, 
Foster County, 
Grand Forks Board of Health, 
Grand Forks Tobacco Free Coalition, 
Lake Region District Health, 
Nelson-Griggs District Health Unit, 
The North Dakota Society for Respiratory 

Care, 
North Star School Board, 
North Star SADD {Students Against 
Destructive Decisions), 

North Star FCCLA, 
Ransom County Board of Health, 
Richland County Health Department Board 
of Health, 
Rolette County Public Health District Board 
of Health, 
SAFE Coalition of Fargo, 
Towner County Commissioners, 
Towner County Public Health Board, 
Towner County Safe Communities Coalition, 
Traill County Board of Health, 
Upper Missouri District Health, 
Walsh County, 
Walsh County Health District Board, 
Walsh County Tobacco-Free Coalition, 
Wells County District Health Unit, 
and Tobacco Free North Dakota . 
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The Resolution reads as follows: WHEREAS tobacco use remains North Dakota's leading preventable cause 
of death, with 1,000 North Dakotans dying each year from their own smoking, and 14,000 kids under the 
age of 18 who now live in North Dakota are projected to die prematurely due to smoking; 

WHEREAS tobacco use in North Dakota also imposes a staggering economic burden, with smoking­
caused direct healthcare costs alone amounting to $326 million each year, and each North Dakota 
household paying $795 per year in "hidden" state and federal taxes for smoking-caused government 
expenditures; 

WHEREAS the tobacco industry is continuously introducing new nicotine products and marketing them 
to youth through product innovations, technology, and flavorings, resulting in a high school e-cigarette 
use rate of 22.3%; 

WHEREAS new nicotine products often circumvent existing local, state and federal laws, such as legal 
age of sale restrictions, advertising restrictions, smoke-free laws, and tax laws; 

WHEREAS on November 4, 2008, 54% of North Dakota voters approved Initiated Measure #3 to 
allocate the state's Strategic Contribution Fund payment to a Best Practices tobacco prevention 
program fully-funded at the CDC recommended level, and public support for this program has grown 
significantly to 81. 7% as of 2016; 

WHEREAS the establishment and success of North Dakota's Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Policy, the nation's only fully-funded comprehensive tobacco prevention program, has contributed to a 
reduction in adult tobacco use from 21.9% in 2011to18.7% in 2015, and a reduction in youth tobacco 
initiation from 22.4% in 2009 to 11.7% in 2015; 

WHEREAS the North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy, in order to continue to 
succeed in effectively preventing youth initiation and in reducing tobacco-caused death and disease, 
and to respond effectively to new tobacco product introductions, operates with an independent 
Governor appointed committee of tobacco control policy and medical experts to insulate the program 
from political and tobacco-industry influence and to effectively use proven scientific approaches; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that, in keeping with North Dakota voters' establishment of and 
support for the North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy and its mission of 
Saving Livings-Saving Money: ND's Comprehensive State Plan to Prevent and Reduce Tobacco 
Use, TFND supports the continuation of North Dakota's Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Policy funded by the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund. 

Heather Austin 
Executive Director, Tobacco Free North Dakota 
Cell: 701-527-2811 
heather@tfnd.org 
www.tfnd.org 
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Chairman Pollert and House Appropriations Human Resources Division, 

My name is Reba Mathern-Jacobson with the American Lung Association in North 
Dakota. With a grant from BreatheND we've collaborated on a project to 
integrate tobacco treatment into behavioral health settings. 

North Dakota's behavioral health professionals need more professional 
education on tobacco intervention and recovery. Their agencies and 
workplaces need technical support to implement best-practice policy (such as 
tobacco-free grounds) and procedures (such as standardized tobacco 
assessment and treatment protocols). One beauty is that this includes private 
and public behavioral health systems, so that improvements can be 
comprehensive, sustainable and statewide. 

While smoking rates in the general population have been on a steady 
downward trend, smoking rates among those with mental illness or addiction 
remain high, making them the largest disparity group. They purchase 40% of all 
tobacco in our country. Three fourths of smokers have a past or present 
problem with mental illness or addiction . At least 65% of people in treatment 
for substance use disorders also smoke cigarettes. 

As a consequence, smoking is the number one cause of death in people with 
mental illness or addiction. People with a serious mental illness die 25 years 
younger than the rest of the population, due to tobacco. People with an 
alcohol addiction die more often of tobacco related illnesses than from alcohol. 

People with behavioral health disorders need, and in fact want, treatment 
opportunities and support within the context of their behavioral health care. 
Tobacco use is inextricably related to the problems presented due to mental 
illness and other addictions. Quitting smoking is associated with improved 
mental health outcomes and even a 25% increased likelihood of long-term 
abstinence from alcohol and drugs. 

Clients and their counselors will have greater success with mental health and 
addictions treatment when tobacco treatment is integrated into behavioral 
health settings. These are good strides in North Dakota but much work remains 
yet to be done. 

Maintaining funding for BreatheND is crucial to this project. 

Thank you, 
Reba Mathern-Jacobson, MSW, Director Tobacco Control 

Bismarck, ND 58501 

Ph: 701 -223 -5613 F: 701 - 223 - 5727 800 - 252 -6325 
1-800-LUNGUSA LungND.org 
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Title of Project: Treating Tobacco Dependence in Behavioral Health Settings 
Training Dates Covered by the Report: June 21 & 22, 2016, Fargo, North Dakota 

In June 2016, Rutgers, Robert Wood Johnson Medical School, Division of Addiction Psychiatry 
conducted an on-site 2 Day CE/CME Activity on "Treating Tobacco Dependence in Behavioral 
Health Settings". Providers from the areas surrounding Fargo, North Dakota attended 2 days of 
training and rated the experience as excellent. The program had 95 registrants, of which 74 
attended. 

The first lecturer for the program was Jill Williams, MD. The emphasis in Day 1 was an 
overview of tobacco use in mental health populations in addition to assessment and 
pharmacology treatment to tobacco users. Participants reported that Dr. Williams was an 
effective presenter. More than half of the participants indicated that this education increased 
their understanding of the sub'ect and based on the content of the activity, hey would 
imQlement a change in there Rractice/workplace. Of the seventy four (74) participants in 
attendance the breakdown shows us that, seventy (70) participants completed the evaluation, of 
which the majority rated Dr. Williams and program content in the highest possible rating (5). 

The second day of the training featured lecturers' Marc L. Steinberg, PhD., and Trish Dooley, 
MA, LPC, CTTS. :The emphasis in Da~ 2 was using motivational interviewing in tobacco 
dependence treatment, as well as explaining the role of mental health professionals in 
prompting a tobacco free environment, and to teach a wellness-based group treatment 
approach to facilitate the adoption of a tobacco free lifestyle for mental health consumers. The 
overall majority of participants rated the lecturers as effective presenters and felt this education 
met their expectations. 

Additionally, all participants gave a moderately high rating, stating that they would as a result of 
the training be able to better: 

1. Describe the prevalence and consequences of tobacco use and mental illness (99%). 
2. Explain the neurobiology of smoking and behavioral health condition (92%). 
3. Recognize the basic "spirit" of motivational interviewing, treatment engagement 

strategies (i.e., open-ended questions, affirmations, reflective listening) and describe 
"change talk" (97%). 

4. Describe valuable tools for assessing tobacco dependence including DSM criteria , 
Fagerstorm scores and measurement of expired carbon monoxide (99%) 

5. Review the risks, role and benefits of the FDA approved medications for treating tobacco 
dependence including indications and contradictions, special precautions and warnings 
(97%). 

6. Identify brief interventions, group and individual counseling, and social supports to 
address tobacco use and prevent relapse after a quit attempt (85%). 

7. Describe the advantages of using a peer-to-peer approach to addressing tobacco for 
individuals with behavioral health conditions (84%). 

8. Determine ways policy can reduce tobacco use and support treatment and review 
practical strategies to overcome common challenges in becoming a tobacco free facility 
(90%). 

9. Assess the influence that tobacco marketing communications have on smoking 
behaviors and dispel myths and misconceptions about tobacco products (96%) 



1 o. Identify evidence-based treatment plans for treating tobacco dependence in special high 
risk/diverse populations with behavioral health conditions (89%). 

The majority of participants in the training stated the program enhanced their understanding of 
the suoject (99%); woula influence how they dia their job(97%); would help improve thei~ 
performance [92%); was eviaence based and scientifically balanced {99%). The following is a 
list of some of the comments from participants. Additional evaluation feedback from participants 
can be found on attached report. 

• Excellent training- Thank you! 
• This provided great information, current info that was well-organized and presented in an 

interesting energetic manner. 
• This trio was refreshingly clear-enthusiastic-enjoyed sharing the latest research- and 

were so knowledgeable, friendly, extending. Dynamic presenters, invaluable information 
• Supercalifragalistic experience, as expected 
• Great program! 
• It was excellent 
• Excellent workshop, great information, useful 

Participants are supportive of implementing changes based on new learning (57%), however 
barriers identified included billing concerns, time and support, smoking among staff members, 
time constraints, lack of facilities and facilitators to conduct cessation are among many of the 
barriers expressed on the evaluation forms. 

Participants were successful in acquiring new knowledge. Seventy three people completed a 
pretest and 72 completed a post test. Pretest scores ranged from 0 to 83% correct; the mean 
pretest score was 41 % correct (SD 17), indicating baseline knowledge was poor. Post test 
scores ranged from 8 to 100% correct; the mean posttest score was 67% (SD 19) correct. 

Mean posttest scores significantly increased from pretest (n=70; Paired t test, t= -11. 7( df 69); 
p<0.001 ). Scores increased by an average of 27 points between pre and posttest. 

We hope we have met your training needs and look forward to working with you again in the 
future. 

Sincerely, 

Lucija Milicevic 
Program Assistant 
Division Coordinator Addiction Psychiatry 
Rutgers Robert Wood Johnson Medical School 
Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey 
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Chairman Pollert and members of the House Appropriations Committee, my name is Kristie 

Wolff, I am the Manger of Tobacco Prevention and Advocacy for the American Lung Association 

in North Dakota. 

Today I am here to speak in support of a fully funded tobacco prevention program following 

CDC best practices, as voted on by the people. 

Currently 80% of my work at The American Lung Association is funded by a grant from the 

Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy also known as BreatheND. 

Over the past year my work has included developing a partnership with Fire Depts. across the 

state and with the ND Fire Prevention Association. This partnership has focused on education 

related to smoking material fires. 

According to the National Fire Prevention Association, smoking material fires are the leading 

cause of fire deaths in the United States and 25% of people who die in a smoking-material fire 

are not the smoker. 

In the spring of 2016 cities across the state saw a significant spike in smoking material fires. To 

help bring awareness to the issue, several ND fire departments adopted Operation Butt Out, a 

locally developed education program that focuses on how to safely extinguish smoking 

materials "all the way, every time." 

The American Lung Association in ND became a resource for participants in this program by 

providing education on smoke free multi-unit housing policies and e-cigarette fires and 

explosions. BreatheND's numerous resources have been a valuable tool used during this 

education process. 

This important work has only just begun. There is so much more to do. The next step in this 

partnership is to help guide rental property owners through the process of implementing 

smoke free policies. These policies save lives and save money. 

Another primary focuses of my work funded through BreatheND is statewide education related 

to electronic cigarettes. These flavored high tech products are addicting the next generation. 

Currently 22.3% of ND high school kids use electronic cigarettes. Continued education and 

monitoring of these emerging products is vital. The tobacco industry is not going to stop, 

therefore we cannot stop either. 

1 



Tobacco is still a problem in ND, so it is critical to continue to fully fund North Dakota's tobacco 

prevention program through BreatheND. This agency has a single focus and a proven track 

record of success. Thank you for your time and consideration, I would be happy to answer any 

questions. 

2 



• TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF FUNDING FOR SB 2024 

Sommer Wilmeth 
1236 North Parkview Drive 
Bismarck, ND 58501 
(701) 934-0540 

56zozc_/ 
03.oi . 2.0r1 
#11 

Chairman Pollert and Members of the House Appropriations, Human Resources 
Committee. 

My name is Sommer Wilmeth; I am a senior at Century High School. I am speaking on 
behalf of the Century High School Students Against Destructive Decisions (SADD) 
students. I am here to provide testimony in support for funding Senate Bill 2024. 

With the work of BreatheND, local public health units, and community members of all 
ages since the program's implementation in 2008, resulted in cutting youth smoking 
rates in half. 

This is an incredible achievement for our state. However, the tobacco industry is clever 
and continues to find ways to addict kids to nicotine. Their latest attempt - electronic 
cigarettes. 

• When walking from my car to school in the mornings before class, I can say on an 
average day I see 5 to 10 classmate's vaping in their cars. It appears the tobacco 
industry's slick advertising has created a persona that vaping is cool and harmless. 
Personally, I have seen my peers and a very close friend fall into big tobacco's trap. 
Since I have turned 18 I have been asked multiple times to buy nicotine products. 

Thank goodness I'm educated on the effects of these products and able to explain to 
my peers how they are being targeted by big tobacco. I learned these skills back in 
October when I attended the Bismarck Tobacco Prevention Youth Summit, funded by 
BreatheND. At the summit there were about 60-70 youth from area schools each being 
trained to be a youth advocate in tobacco prevention , just like me. At the summit we 
learned how the tobacco industry uses slick advertising to get youth hooked. 

The tobacco industry will never stop, whether it's through traditional cigarettes, 
e-cigarettes, or smokeless tobacco. This means that North Dakota needs to continue to 
take a stand against big tobacco and fund the good work being done through 
Breathe ND. 

A successful tobacco prevention and control program is based off of the Centers for 
Disease Control Best Practices. The Center, along with Bismarck Burleigh Public Health 
and other local public health units across the state, are important partners to keep North 
Dakota on track to continue to reduce youth tobacco use rates. Together we can 
continue to decrease youth tobacco use rates and sustain a generation free from an 

• addiction to nicotine. Please fund SB2024. Thank you . 
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My name is Mara Yborra; I am speaking on the behalf of the Healthy Community 

Coalition from the United Tribes Technical College. I am here to provide testimony and 

support for funding SB 2024. 

The Healthy Community Coalition is a group comprised of representatives from campus 

departments who focus on health initiatives for the campus. We are fortunate enough 

to have received technical support and funding through Bismarck Burleigh Public 

Health, Tobacco Prevention and Control program to work on adopting a comprehensive 

tobacco free college policy to include the entire campus. 

A majority of the students at United Tribes Technical College are Native American 

and their family members live on campus with them. Native Americans are 

disparately affected by tobacco. There is a 42% smoking rate for Native Americans 

in North Dakota. The tobacco industry is counting on this disparity and the college 

age group becoming addicted to their products in order to secure sales for the 

future. United Tribes is committed to the health and well-being of the children, 

students, faculty and staff of our campus, and to visitors who come here. 

Bismarck Burleigh Public Health (BBPH) Tobacco Prevention Program provided technical 

support through education, resources and information about the importance of 

strengthening UTTC's smoke-free policy to a comprehensive tobacco free policy to 

• include the entire campus. We were able to move forward on passing a tobacco free 



policy at the United Tribe Technical College in 2013 with implementation in 2014. We 

have learned that a tobacco-free policy provides an environment that reinforces healthy 

behavior. As the policy removes the immediate threat of exposure to secondhand 

smoke, it also decreases the use of tobacco and the number of people who start 

smoking in college. It establishes a healthy learning environment while maintaining our 

respect for Native American traditions. 

This funding also gave us the available resources for an implementation plan that 

included: tobacco- free signs, interior sidewalk signs for the buildings because of the 

cold weather, bathroom posters, payroll stuffers, window decals for campus building 

doors and residential homes, compliance cards and ND Quit Ads in their newsletter. 

The United Tribes Technical College has become the first tribal college in North 

Dakota to adopt a "Tobacco Free" campus policy and 3rd in the United States. At the 

time the policy passed, UTTC joined 811 other colleges to have a tobacco free policy 

for their campus. This policy trend has grown to 1,427 colleges and universities 

across the US. They recognized the value of tobacco-free policy will benefit their 

students in present and the future by providing a healthy and safe environment to 

live and learn. United Tribes Technical College now protects approximately 900 

students, faculty, staff and families from exposure to tobacco. 

Please support funding SB2024. It is important to continue to fund The Center for 

Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy, because of their policy expertise. If North 

Dakota wants to continue reducing tobacco use rates, and keep tobacco from 

influencing the next generation, we need to remember that it's about policy change. It's 

about working with good partners like the Center and Bismarck Burleigh Public Health. 

Thank you. 

• 

• 

• 
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Chairman Pollert and Members of the House Appropriations, Human Resources Committee. I'm 

Alison Harrington, a respiratory therapist. On average I counsel 5-15 tobacco users a day. I 

always ask them at what age did they start using tobacco, the most common answer is between 

13-15 years old. The youngest age I've heard is as young as 5 years old. The younger they are 

when they start using tobacco, the more addicted they are and the harder it is for them to quit. 

I counsel tobacco users of all ages who want to quit for many different reasons but most 

commonly it is for their health, their family, they've experienced a life threatening event, 

they've been diagnosed with a chronic disease or lung cancer, or they are pregnant. 

As a respiratory therapist I see what smoking does to the lungs at all age levels, from the young 

children who are exposed to 2nd and 3rd hand smoke that have asthma, to the adults who have 

been diagnosed with lung cancer or Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD). 

This addiction is like no other, it cannot be quit very easily despite what many think. As part of 

my profession, I help pregnant women through nicotine addiction counseling. In North Dakota 

nearly 14% of pregnant women are hooked on nicotine. This is a serious health situation and 

addiction is real and nearly impossible for some people to quit. This is why we need to fund 

prevention - we know that 90 percent of our youth start smoking by their 18th birthday. If we 

can prevent this, we are close to solving the problem of tobacco addiction. 

Tobacco kills 1,000 North Dakotans each year and costs us $326 million in health care each 

year. If we want to reduce health care costs, we must address the leading cause of preventable 

death and disease - tobacco use. If we can prevent children from ever starting we can cut down 

on the cost of healthcare treatment. This good work must be kept at BreatheND. They know 

how to get the job done. It's about prevention . We need to start our focus on the End Game 

and reduce tobacco use to the low single digits, and the way we do this is to prevent our 

children from ever starting. We need to make the world a better place for them. They are our 

future. 
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60verview of Key Studies of the Effects of Smoking Bans on Acute 
Coronary Events 

In this chapter, the committee discusses key studies, and 11 publications from those studies, of the 
effects of smoking bans on acute coronary events. The articles reviewed in this chapter address two of 
the associations that the committee is evaluating: 

• The association between secondhand-smoke exposure and acute coronary events (Questions 
2, 3, and 5, see Box 1-1). 

• The association between smoking bans and acute coronary events (Questions 4, 5, 6, 7, and 
8, see Box 1-1). 

Eleven publications deal with studies that looked at the effects of smoking bans in eight natural 
experiments: three studies in overlapping regions of Italy (Barone-Adesi et al., 2006; Cesaroni et al., 
2008; Vasselli et al., 2008); one study in Pueblo, Colorado, after 18 months offollowup (Bartecchi et al., 
2006) and after 3 years of followup (CDC, 2009) ; and one study each in Helena, Montana (Sargent et al. , 
2004), Monroe County, Indiana (Seo and Torabi , 2007), Bowling Green, Ohio (Khuder et al., 2007), New 
York state (Juster et al. , 2007) Saskatoon, Canada (Lemstra et al., 2008), and Scotland (Pell et al. , 
2008). The legislation in Bowling Green, Ohio, allowed smoking in some restaurants and bars; it called for 
a smoking restriction rather than a smoking ban. The studies examined changes in heart-attack rates, or 
acute myocardial infarctions (acute Mis) after the implementation of the bans (and one restriction) and 
were not designed to answer questions about the association between exposure to secondhand smoke 
and cardiovascular disease. Most of the studies did not measure individual exposures to secondhand 
smoke or the smoking status of individuals; thus, they were designed to evaluate the association between 
smoking bans and acute Mis, not the effects of secondhand-smoke exposure. The publications on the 
smoking bans in Monroe County, Indiana, and Scotland, however, contain data on smoking status and 
results of analyses only in nonsmokers; these two studies were designed to assess the association 
between secondhand-smoke exposure and acute Mis. 

The committee discusses the studies below, including information on the smoking bans and restriction in 
the different locations, available information on secondhand-smoke exposure, study designs, and study 
results. Publications that examine the effect of the same smoking ban are discussed together; the most 
comprehensive or recent publication is discussed first. The different smoking bans are discussed in order 
by earliest publication date. Details of the smoking bans and restriction in the different regions are 
presented in Table 6-1; available information on the effect of the bans on potential secondhand smoke 
exposure- including data on enforcement and compliance, air monitoring, and biomonitoring-is 
presented in Table 6-2; and details of the study designs and published results are presented in Table 6-3. 
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Secondhand smoking (passive smoking) is associated with many 
ncg~l1vc hl·,tl lh cl fct.:1" prinrnrily rc>piratur)' and carJ i11v<1srnlar 
diseases (Institute of Medicine, 2009; U.S. Department of H.-alth 
mid Human !:>ervices, 2006).Approxinrntel)'. 46,000 deaths from 
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Introduction: Secondhand smoking (passive smoking) is asso­
daLcd wilh m,111)' ncgalivL· hcdlLh c lkc l ~. primarily ll"ptrdlllr)' 
and cardio\•ascul•1r diseases. Approxi111a1cly, 46,000 <ll•alhs from 
cardiovascular disease are associated with secondhand smoke 
exposure annually in the Uniled States. which is roughly 150 
dearhs in North Dakota. Studies shnw thal passage nf smoke­
frec laws at the community level can reduce the incidence of 
heart attack. 

cardiovascuhtr disease are associated with secondhand smoke 1.90 

Methods: We conducted a rc-trospective review of electronic 
medical reCllhL~ of p;nicnts a,lmittcd fnr heart ,1ltacks 4 months 
prior (April 15, 21110 1hrnugh Augusl l 'I, 2010) In imple111en­
lalion ,,f 1hc snw kc-fn:c orJinancc and 1 11rnn1hs following 
(August 15, 20 10 lhrough December 14 . 2010) i111pk•menlation 
of the comprehensive smoke-free ordinance in Grand Forks. 
ND, United States. 

Results: V•/e found an association hclween the heart allack rale 
and implcmenl<1tinn of the cnmprchcnsivc smoke-free law. ·1 he 
heart attack rate prior to the ban was 0.5% (83/ 16,702) com­
pared wilh 1J.3•)(, (63/ 18.513) dftcr lhc li<tn (p = .023). 'lhus. lhc 
rate of heart al tacks decreased 30.6% and number of heart attack 
admi.ssiuns dccrcaseJ 21. l '!f>. frum 83 lu 63. dfter implenwnt.i­
tinn of a comprehensive smoke-free law. 

Conclusions: We found '1n implcment<Jlion of the compre­
hensive smoke-free law was associated wi th a decrease in lhc 
heart att'1ck rate. The heart attack rate decreased 30.6%. Our 
finding was similar to previous community level smoke-free 
law impleme ntation studies and notable for the change goi ng 
from a par tial smo ke-free law to a comprehens ive smoke­
free law. 

doi: I 0.1093/ntr/nts2 I 6 

exposure annually in the United States. (Myers, 2010), which is 
roughly 150 deaths in No rth Oakotu. Secondhand smoke, even 
in brief exposure, can increase risk of heart attack and those with 
prc-exisli ng heart disease are at p;trticular risk (U.S. Department 
of Health and Human Service•, 2006). Studies show that pas- 1.95 
sage of smoke-free laws at the community lcvd can reduce the 
incidence of heart attack (Bartecchi, Alsever, Nevin-Woods, 
Estachio, Bartleson, & Krantz, 2006; Bruintjcs, Bartelson, Hurst, AQ3 
Lcvin>11n, Hokanson, & Krantz, 2011 ; Herman & Walsh, 2011 ; 
L.e1mtra, Neudorf, & Opondo, 2008; Myer~. 2010; Naiman, 1.1 00 
Glazier, & Moineddin. 2010; Sargent, Shep,1rd, & Glantz. 2004). 
I lowevcr, another sludy (nuncl nn Si!(nificanl difference in thl· 
acute myocardia l infarction (AMI } mortalit y in six states with 
bans compared with other slates with no l>an (Rodu, Peiper, & 

Cole,2011 ). 1.105 

On August 15, 2010, Grand Forks, NO implemented a 
smoking ban ordinance. Prior to the comprehensive law, the 
city had a part ial smoke-free workplace law that had exempted 
bars and other sdecl areas and businesses. '1l1t• purpose u( I his I. I lo 
study was tu ddenninc whether a smoking free ordinance 
was associated with dccrcused hospitalization for heart attack. 
Specifirnlly. dala fmm a rurnl communily hospilal were used 
to compare admissions for myocardial infarction (Ml) and 
acull' Cl>fl>l1arr :.yndrumc ·1 munlh:, prior lu anJ 4 nwnlhs 1.11 5 
fo llowing the implementation of the comprehensive smoke-free 

ordinance. 
1.118 
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Charnctcristic Total 100% (11 = 1•16) Prior ban 56.9% (11 = 8.' ) Aller han •lJ .1% (11 = 6.1) p Va lue 

Hea rl attack ra te-' 0.42( 146) 0.49 (83) 0.34 (63) 0.023 
Age, mean ± SD 65.3:!. 14.0 67.0i 13.4 63.l ± 14.7 0.093 
Gender. men 61.0 (89) 56.6(•17) 66.7 (•12) 0.2 18 
Death rate 17. 1 (25) 21.7 (18) I I.I (7) 0.093 

"I le<Jrl all<Jc-k r<Jlc - numhcr ,, f heJ rl <J llacks/ lnial aum1ssion» 

Characteristic Total 100% (11 = 33. 19•1) Prior ban 47.3% (11 = IC.,693) i\ft~r ban 52.6% (11 = 18.50 I) p Va lue 

Heart attack ralC'' 0.42 ( 146) 0.49 (83) 0.34 (63) 0.023 
Age, mean ± SD 48.3 ± 19.6 48.5 ± 19.6 118.2 ± 19.5 0.238 
Ge nder, men 40.4 (14 .212) •10.1 (6,695) 40.6 (7.5 17) 0.317 
Death rnt c 2.2 (759) 2.5 (421) 

"Hearl attack ra te = number 11fhL·arl a1tacks/ lnlal aunm»i1111" 

We conducted a retrospective review of elec tronic medical 
rccnrds uf paliL'nls ddmilted 1·ur heart allac·ks •1 months prior 
(April 15, 20 10 tlm>ugh August l•l, 20 10) ll> implementation of 
lhc smnkt'-frce nrdinanCl' and 4 mnnlhs fn llnwing (A ugu.'I 15, 
20101 hrllugh Decemher 14, ~010) implc ml'll lalion llflhc com ­
prehensive smoke-free ordi nance in Grnnd Forks. ND, United 
Stal es. Th~ '1 -n1l)nth tlm ~ fra mc "'m• USl'd tn reduc~ any S!!aso n ­

ality impact that the severe winter months of January, Februar y. 
and Ma rch may have on heart attack admiss ions. Hearl attacks 
were defin e,l using ln lenrntional C: lassificat inn of Diseases, 
Ninth Revision (JCD-9) codes for the diagnosis for Ml and 
acute wrnnary s)·ndrnme (i\CS). sredf1~a ll y : 4 I O.•:Hl-/\ ,\1 1 or 
unspecifi ed site, episode of Cdrc unspeci fied: •110.91 At.I I of 
unspt·c ificd , il c, initial cpi ,otk or ca re: '111 . I -inlcrmcdi;ik 
cnninary syndrome. Hearl allack rJ te was delincd as !ht• m1111 -
ber of heart divided by the total number o f admissions for the 
given pt•riod. ll1c inslilutiona l rcvit·w hoa rds of the Unil·ersil y 
of North Dakota and Altru Health Systems approved this stud y. 

Setting 
Grand Forks, ND has a population ofSS,600 with approximate!)' 
92% being White. Altru Health Systc111s is a rural. com111unity· 
based hospital and clinics with 3,800 hea lth professionals se rv­
ing 200,000 residents of northeast North Dakota and northwest 
Minnesota. Altru Health Systems hospita l, a 262 bed acute care 
center, is the onli1 one in Grand Forks and within a 70 mile 
radius. As a result, within the communit y, the in tended pub­
lic health benefit t' f' the smuke-fr eL' law could he mll rc eas il y 
assessed compared with larger urban areas with multiple medi · 
cal centers. Data were limited to patients from the metro area 
of Gra nd forks (zipcodes 58201. 58202. 58203, and 58206). 
Similar to the Helena. MT ('-<1 rgcnl cl ;1 \. , 201\ \) and Pueblo, 
CO (fldr lecd 11 LI di.. 200h) studies , only patients that made ii 
to hospital ali ve were included in the stud y. Patien ts transferred 
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1.8 (33R) 0.000 

from other facilities in the region were not included in the study 
because in all like lihood the patient lived outside Grand Forks 
and lhw. would nut be significdn tly impackd lw the u1dina1Ke. 

SPSS 19.0 for Windows was used to ana lyze demographi c 
and clin ical characteristics of patients. Frequencies and relative 
percentages were computed for each categorical variable. Chi ­
square tests were performed to determine which categories were 
signilican tly dillcrcnt from nnc another. an d t test was used to 
compare continuous variables. All p va lues were two-sided, and 
p va lue < Cl.05 was consi dered significan l. ~liss i ng data were 
excluded from ana lysis. 

Overall, during the entire study period, the heart attack ra te was 
0.4% (11 = I ·16), wi th t 7. I% (25) resu lting in death Cl .1hlc I ). ·1 he 
ave rage age for heart attack patients was 65.3± t ~ . II years and 
61.0% (n = 89) were men . 

·n1cre wa' an associa l ion hcl ween lwarl allack rate and impk­
mcnl al iPn nf lh l' cn111prchensiw smoking ban. Tht· heart allack 
rate decreased from 0.5% (83/16,702) prior to the ban compared 
with 11.3% (63/JH.513 ) after !he han (p = .OD, ·1~1hl e I ).'] hus, the 
heurl attack rate decreased 30.6% and the number of heart att ack 
admiss i0 n .~ dc(rcascd 24 . I%. frnm 83 In 63. rl fl cr implcmcn1 arion 
of a comprehensive smoke-free law. However. there was no asso­
ciation in the death rate imd the comprehensive smoking ban, 
21.7% (11 = 18) prior versus 11 . I (11 = 7) afte r (p = .093, J°Jbl e I ) . 

' lhnc was 1w associ<Hion bctwl'<.'n gender L>r significant dilflT­
cnce in age in he:.1rl al lack patients pri11r m aft er the implementa­
tion of a comprehensive smoke-free law ('l ahlc I ). 

Ouring the study period, there were a total of 35.2 15 
h11al adm issi11 ns. 'I he average age lc• r pat irnl s ad milled was 
48.3 ± 19.6 years and 40.4% (11 = 14,212) were me n (' lahk 2). 
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'I here were 11<1 ' i);!ll ifi canl Jifferencc' in gcnJc· r o r age he llWl'n 
the tntal ad miss ions hcfnrc and alter the' implcmcntut1 nn ,,f 
a comprehensive smoke-free law. However, the death rate 
significantly J ccrl·ascd after impkmcnlal io n of a w 1nprehrnsivc 
smoke-free la1~ compared with before, 1.8% (n = 338 ) versus 
2.5% (n = 12 1 ). (p < .00 1, Tahl t' 2). 

We found an association between the heart attack rate and 
i111plc111rn1 a1 ion of I ht· cnmprchcn,;iVl' smnke-frcc law. 'I lw hear! 
attack rak decreased 30.6% and the number ni heart atta ks 
J.ccrcascd by 24. 1 % after im ~'lcmc n la li <' n of a comprehensive 
smoke-free law. Thb is w mrarable lo resulls ,, f similar commu­
nit y studies following the implementalion of s111oke- free laws 
including K.1 rt ccd11 .:t al. (2000), who found a 27. I% decrease in 
AMI ra tes. Given that the comnrnnil)' in this study already had 
a part ia l smoke-free workplace law prior tu the study dates, the 
ctfoc t 1s of partkulJr intcr.:st. 

'I here arc a number nf limil dtions to our stud)'. Our sludy 
was ,1 hd11 rc an,! dftcr ecolug1ca l s111dy dc"gn ,rnd llni. ,«1sc 
,rnJ dkLI ca nnol he Jdnmincd, unlr J"od<lliun . 1\lany olhcr 
factors may have impacted the result s. Also, the stud y did not 
measure indi vidual smoking ha bits or exposure to secondhand 
s111oke. Another limitation is we did not .:ollcc t data or control 
for other potentia l risk factors (i.e., co111orbiditics, seasona lit y). 

'J he result s of this study and o ther:, suggest thJt smuking 
bans may be associated with reductio n in heart attack admis­
sions (Ml and ACS) . Future directions shou ld include assess­
ment nf any pcrsistcnl cH·l·ct nf dl'crcas.:d heart altack incidence 
ove r longer periods of time and controlling for other risk factors. 

None declared. 
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Percent of FTE time of N.D. Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy employees spent 

assisting local public health unit grantees on achieving shared State Plan goals and objectives 

Community Programs Manager- 100% 

• Grants administration for multiple grant programs: develops grant guidance, approves 

grant applications, tracks deliverables 

• Manages the grant reporting system: handles all reimbursements, payments, and 

progress reporting 

• Provides technical assistance to grantees 

Field Coordinator- 100% 

• Assists and verifies all policy work 

• Reviews progress reports 

• Provides technical assistance 

Health Communications Coordinator- 80% 

• Individualizes all marketing materials 

• Creates all individualized signage 

• Maintains agency website for tobacco education resources 

• Assist with IT questions 

Statewide Programs Manager- 40% 

• Implementation and evaluation/reporting of Ask, Advise, Refer (AAR) in local public 

health units 

• State Plan- assures State Plan goals and objectives are part of local grants, and that local 

grant report data is used to evaluate progress in accomplishing State Plan 

• Assures statewide grantees (American Lung Association, Tobacco Free North Dakota, 

and other grants) work closely with local public health units 

Business Manager- 25% 

• Assists with grant reimbursements and payments 

• Preforms audits of grant reimbursements to verify expenses 

• Provides technical assistance 

Accountant- 20% 

• Fiscal responsibilities for grant payments and tracking 

• Audits of reimbursements 

Health Communications Manager- 20% 

• Assists in developing local communications plans 

• Adjusts policies for local needs 



• Develops and distributes all communications messaging 

Executive Director- 10% 

• Provides updates of national and statewide partners 

• Provides updates of all regular and interim legislation 

• Final approval for all payments and any contract changes 

• Reports all local progress to Advisory and Executive Committees 

Administrative Assistant- 5% 

• Updating any lists and databases 

• Tracking of grantee training attendance 

Surveillance and Evaluation Manager- 3% 

• Provides survey data 

• State Plan- ongoing development and evaluation 

Equivalent FTEs- 4.03 
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March 10, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2024 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide an 
appropriation for defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco control 
advisory committee; to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 54-27-25 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to the tobacco settlement trust fund ; and to 
provide for an independent review and report to the legislative management. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section, or so much 
of the funds as may be necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys in the tobacco 
prevention and control trust fund, not otherwise appropriated, to the comprehensive 
tobacco control advisory committee for the purpose of defraying the expenses of the 
committee, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. 

Comprehensive tobacco control 
Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Base Level 
$16.548.039 
$16,548,039 

8.00 

Adjustments or 
Enhancements 

($1 .654,804) 
($1 ,654,804) 

0.00 

Appropriation 
$14.893,235 
$14,893,235 

8.00 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 54-27-25 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. There is created in the state treasury a tobacco settlement trust fund . The 
fund consists of the tobacco settlement dollars obtained by the state under 
subsection IX(c)(1) of the master settlement agreement and consent 
agreement adopted by the east central judicial district court in its judgment 
entered December 28, 1998 [Civil No. 98-3778] in State of North Dakota, 
ex re l. Heidi Heitkamp v. Philip Morris, Inc. Except as provided in 
subsection 2, moneys received by the state under subsection IX(c)(1) must 
be deposited in the fund. Interest earned on the fund must be credited to 
the fund and deposited in the fund . The principal and interest of the fund 
may be appropriated to the attorney general for the purpose of enforcing 
the master settlement agreement and any disputes with the agreement. All 
remaining principal and interest of the fund must be allocated as follows: 

a. Transfers to a community health trust fund to be administered by the 
state department of health. The state department of health may use 
funds as appropriated for community-based public health programs 
and other public health programs, including programs with emphasis 
on preventing or reducing tobacco usage in this state. Transfers under 
this subsection must equal ten percent of total annual transfers from 
the tobacco settlement trust fund of which a minimum of eighty 
percent must be used for tobacco prevention and control. 

b. Transfers to the common schools trust fund to become a part of the 
principal of that fund. Transfers under this subsection must equal 
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forty-five percent of total annual transfers from the tobacco settlement 
trust fund. 

c. Transfers to the water development trust fund to be used to address 
the long-term water development and management needs of the 
state. Transfers under this subsection must equal forty-five percent of 
the total annual transfers from the tobacco settlement trust fund. 

SECTION 3. TOBACCO PREVENTION AND CONTROL PLAN -
INDEPENDENT REVIEW AND REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT. At least 
once during the 2017-19 biennium, the comprehensive tobacco control advisory 
committee shall provide for an independent review to evaluate the effectiveness of the 
statewide tobacco prevention and control plan and report the results of the review to 
the legislative management." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2024 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - House Action 

Base Senate 
Budget Version 

Comprehensive tobacco control $16,548,039 

Total all funds $16,548,039 
Less estimated income 16,548,039 

General fund $0 

FTE 8.00 

House 
Changes 
$14,893 235 

$0 $14,893,235 
0 14 893,235 

$0 $0 

0.00 0.00 

House 
Version 
$14,893,235 

$14,893,235 
14,893,235 

$0 

0.00 

Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of House Changes 

Restores 
Funding to 

90 Percent of 
Base Level1 

Comprehensive tobacco control $14,893,235 

Total all funds $14,893,235 
Less estimated income 14,893,235 

General fund $0 

FTE 0.00 

Total House 
Changes 
$14,893,235 

$14,893,235 
14 893 235 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding is provided from the tobacco prevention and control trust fund to restore the funding for the 
Comprehensive Tobacco Control Advisory Committee to 90 percent of base level. 

This amendment also adds sections to: 
Amend North Dakota Century Code Section 54-27-25(1) to remove the requirement that 80 
percent of the transfers from the tobacco settlement trust fund to the community health trust fund 
be used for tobacco prevention and control. 
Provide, at least once during the biennium, the Comprehensive Tobacco Control Advisory 
Committee arrange for an independent review to evaluate the effectiveness of the statewide 
tobacco prevention and control plan and report the results of the review to the Legislative 
Management. 
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